TIANLI

HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED
RANEREEER AT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RS2SR BRAR)
(Stock Code B&AX5E:117)

e )

ek *' - v
l; Nrf,.i"l )
'L.N -'

i LS N

ANNUAL REPORT

2023+



Contents

B

23

29

50

65

76

78

80

81

84

Financial Highlights

M E

Corporate Information

REIEK

Chairman’s Statement

FRERS

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEES RO

Board of Directors and Senior Management

EEGREREEAES

Corporate Governance Report

TEERKRS

Report of the Directors

EFERE

Independent Auditor’s Report

WAL AR &

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

reBmkEMEEWGER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMBARRER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

LREHLBER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

Notes to the Financial Statements

RS R AR MR



2

Financial Highlights

MBBE

The following tables are summaries of the Group’s results,
assets, liabilities and equity for the past five financial years:

Year ended 31 December

TERBTEBBESBEVREEZEE B
E-BEREDOBE:

BENBAMHLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

2023F 20224 20214 20205 20195

Results ES RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AEEFR ARETx ARETRT ARETRT AR®ETR

Revenue comprising: W A BLEE 488,016 361,377 548,507 441,570 446,236

MLCC business MLCCEH 441,495 356,609 444,589 352,236 367,285
Investment and REREHRT

financial services 46,521 4,768 103,918 89,334 78,951

Cost of sales HEMAK (410,147) (345,625) (330,316) (290,784) (381,920)

Gross profit E7 77,869 15,752 218,191 150,786 64,316
(Loss)/Profit for the year KATHEE ANES

attributable to owners of FE (BB /A
the Company (222,148) (63,851) 68,819 (5,767) (125,976)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX (58) /27 (298)centsfll (8.6 centsfll 9.2 centsfll  (0.8) cents flll  (16.9) cents fll
As at 31 December
®12831H

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

2023 20225 20214 2020 2019F

Assets and liabilities BEERER RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETR ARETT AR®TR ARETR

Total assets BEE 2,013,790 1,816,697 1,589,542 1,364,869 1,318,648

Total liabilities maf 1,345,827 926,454 641,100 478,337 438,855
Total equity attributable to NI 2SN

owners of the Company farER 667,963 886,598 939,226 870,683 867,888
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Chunhua (Chairman)
Mr. Pan Tong (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. David Tsoi

Mr. Xu Xuechuan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman)
Mr. David Tsoi
Mr. Xu Xuechuan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Xu Xuechuan (Chairman)
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus
Mr. Zhou Chunhua

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Xuechuan
Mr. Zhou Chunhua

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suites 2711-12, 27th Floor
The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong
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Corporate Information

KEEH

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

EYANG Building

No.13 Gaoxin North 4th Road
Songpingshan Community
Xili Subdistrict

Nanshan District

Shenzhen, the PRC

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zhou Chunhua
Mr. Lo Chung Man

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lo Chung Man

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17M Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation

Bank of China Limited

Ping An Bank Co., Ltd

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd

Bank of Dongguan Co., Ltd

China Development Bank

Bank of Communications Co. Ltd Hong Kong Branch
Chong Hing Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
Citibank N.A.
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LEGAL ADVISOR AS TO HONG KONG LAW
Michael Li & Co.

LEGAL ADVISOR AS TO CAYMAN
ISLANDS LAW

Conyers Dill & Pearman

AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

STOCK CODE
117

COMPANY WEBSITE
http://www.tlhg.com.hk

Corporate Information
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRS

ANNUAL RESULTS OF 2023

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s overall
revenue amounted to RMB488.0 million, representing an
increase of RMB126.6 million compared to last year, of
which the gross profit margin of the Multi-layer Ceramic
Capacitors (“MLCC") business increased to 7.1% in 2023
from 3.1% of last year. The loss attributable to owners of
the Company for the year was approximately RMB222.1
million, as compared to a loss of RMB63.9 million from last
year.

MARKET TREND

In 2023, due to the slowdown in global economic growth,
the expansion momentum of the technology industry
has also become relatively conservative. The consumer
electronics market has been affected to a certain extent,
and the chip industry, which is closely linked to MLCC,
has also experienced a period of downturn. It is expected
that the market demand of global MLCC will enter a low-
speed growth cycle, demand for orders will be weakened
while pressures from price competition among suppliers will
remain to exist. As such, the Group continued to monitor
and control our production capacity.

In the long run, the Group still firmly believes in the
future development of the MLCC industry. Although
the confidence on end-use consumer market remains
uncertain, demand for mobile phones, PCs and laptops
has begun to bottom out steadily. With the destocking
process in the electronics technology industry comes to
an end, we strongly believe and expect the industry will
embrace a relatively mild recovery. As for the global MLCC
market, despite of a slower rate of growth, it keeps on
the track of a slow but steady growing trend, which is
driven by a number of factors. Firstly, the explosive growth
in the field of artificial intelligence, including the growing
popularity of Al servers, Al PCs and Al smartphones, has
already brought new opportunities for growth to the
MLCC market. In particular, the emergence of mobile
phones with Al computing capabilities is expected to
trigger a wave of phone replacements in the future,
further driving the growth in MLCC demand. Secondly, the
continuous improvement of chip computing power has
also led to an increasing demand for storage, providing
more development opportunities for the MLCC market. In
addition, the accelerated penetration of third-generation
semiconductor solutions, especially for the application in
markets such as electric vehicles, data centres, renewable
energy, industrial power supplies, and fast chargers/
adapters, has also driven the expansion of related products
including high-end MLCC.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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The funds managed and invested by the Group mainly
invest in alternative products in Mainland China and
mature overseas markets. The funds valuation is sensitive
to the overall global macroeconomic trend of the market.
In 2023, our overall performance continued to be affected
by the interest rate hikes in UK and the United States which
had a significant impact on global social economy and
livelihood, resulting in a drastic fluctuation of the financial
markets, which posed certain challenges to this segment
operation of the Group. The global financial markets are
expected to bounce back as the epidemic and inflation of
developed countries are under control.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

The Group has been focusing on the MLCC industry for
over 20 years. With long-term technical accumulation,
good market reputation and a stable talent team, the
Group is at the forefront of the domestic market in areas
such as small and ultra-micro size, ultra-thin dielectric with
high specific capacity and high-power RF applications.
In response to the changing market environment, the
Group continues to increase investment in research and
development and accelerate strategic deployment in the
industrial and automotive grade, expand the shipment
proportion of the industrial and automotive grade products
significantly, and benchmark our technical standards
against leading international MLCC manufacturers. In
2023, Shenzhen Eyang Technology Development Co., Ltd.*
(FIITHFBERFEZEEBRAT), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, was recognised as an
excellent brand of electronic components by the China
Internet of Things Industry Conference and awarded
the Blue Dot Award — New Breakthrough Award by the
Shenzhen Electronic Chamber of Commerce demonstrating
the recognition and acknowledgment of the Company’s
technology and product innovation capabilities.

Chairman’s Statement

EHEHRS

FEBEFMEEARRENESTEETEKE
RIBINERATHETSEERRE EEMHE
HH S ERRECEEZR AR 12023
FAEEEREXEERERREZIMERE 2
KHEgEE - EEELEEARE EE/MT
BRERIZURE  HAEBIERENEEHR—
ERRE - BERBEREEARBRZE
ERERTHRFIEERLE -

B REER

REBHINMICCITE_+HRF HBEEH
MEMIBE BRENHHEOBUKREBENA
THRE ENMAMBHMRT SHERBENE
DA R K T =€ 59 4B & FE 25 48 33 BE 70 & P 48 ot 7K
FoEmHBENMBRIE 2EBEFEMAH
B A MR T EMERREFVEEIE
ARBIBRATERERFERWHE ML &1
K EAZEREEEMLCCR R - 20234 » A&
BB EZ2EMNBAT R TFBERNEER
BRABDRITEYBPBEXAEIABEFTT
HEURERFR)NTE B GBS R
EWRIBUR QDN EMAERBIFE DN
RAERETE
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRS

In order to seize the opportunity of domestic substitution
and meet the increasing demand of customers, the Group
has established new production bases in Chuzhou and
Dongguan respectively to achieve the relocation of existing
production capacity, moderate expansion of production
capacity and product upgrading. The new plant in Chuzhou
has been in operation since January 2023 while the new
plant in Dongguan will commence operation in the second
quarter of 2024. Although the simultaneous operation
of the old and new plants has exerted pressure on the
Group in the short term, upon the completion and smooth
operation of two new bases, the Group will greatly improve
its production capacity and further optimise product mixes,
gross profit and cash flow will return to normal levels, and
thus enhance the industry competitiveness accordingly.

In the asset management segment, the Group will
strengthen internal management and achieve compliance
operation. Meanwhile, we will improve the asset valuation
through active management. In the future, The Group
will maintain a stable team and actively look for new
investment opportunities.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Last year, under the persistent impact of global economic
downturn, the development of the Company was affected
negatively. However, with the joint efforts of the directors
and colleagues of the Company, the operating condition
of the Company was stable with an upward momentum. |
would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
to all of our directors and colleagues for their efforts
and dedication during the past year. Also, | would like to
express my gratitude to all shareholders, investors and
customers for their constant trust and support. The Group
will strive for the sustainable development of the businesses
so as to maximise value for the shareholders and other
stakeholders.

Zhou Chunhua
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2024

* For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the global
market experienced a downturn due to geopolitical
conflicts and high inflation. Despite some industries
showing signs of recovery, sluggish economic growth
continued to pose challenges of varying degrees for the
Group’s MLCC segment and investment and financial
services segment.

MLCC

In 2023, despite continued volatility in the global macro
environment, the overall economy has resumed growth.
With inflation persistently declining, there was a slow
resurgence in demand for consumer electronic products,
including mobile phones and laptops, since the second
guarter. The growth in demand was particularly significant
in the second half of 2023 as compared with the second
half of 2022 and the first half of 2023. Against this
backdrop, after undergoing destocking and capacity
adjustments since mid-last year, the inventory levels in the
MLCC industry have returned to normal. Downstream
orders have started to gradually increase month by month,
the bottom of the industry has passed, indicating a clear
recovery in the end-market in the second half of the year.
By actively expanding our customer base and increasing
market share, the Group’s MLCC segment achieved a
year-on-year increase in sales volume of over 35.1%.
However, due to capacity expansions by several domestic
competitors, the increased supply has resulted in intense
price competition, leading to an approximately 8.3%
decline in our average product price. As a result, the Group
achieved sales revenue of RMB441.5 million in 2023,
representing an increase of 23.8% compared to 2022.
Although the increase in revenue was smaller than the
increase in sales volume, due to the bottoming out of the
market, sales revenue in the second half of 2023 increased
by 27.3% period-on-period as compared with the first
half of 2023, and increased by 41.9% period-on-period as
compared with the second half of 2022.

BEESwmA D

E 5ol A

BE2023F12A31HLEFE  RMGEAET
RhBERNEE 2T HEET —RES
He-BE -—ETXMABRTEERNTR B
REEREEEAEBMICCHEMKRENE
RRBDENAEE FNEREENDEE -

MLCC

1220234 > & %%ﬁ?%ﬁ%ﬁi&’%ﬁ%’*ﬂﬂ’
TEIWE“M/%@1§1§ BEBRFERLE &
EFH EXLEERTERANHES ?Equ’J

HER-2 jﬁ%%:*rtﬁaﬂﬁ EIEEIFH > MR
2023¢T¥¢ttzozzfﬁTﬁlﬁE%DZOBEi
FYEEFBHEENER -THEBEET KEEE L
FEERRBMNEEFLEMNESEFE  MLCCE
XENEFEKFEBEREE FHEUEMHAE
E%§’|‘§i§’§¥§ﬁ5%«L£ T ¥ ER IR
TENRELRBEE BEAEBEHERRLA
RBATBME ZEBMLCCH MIHEER L
EHEBEIS A%  EHRBERZXEI1TESE
B HHAEN BERERGFEIN AAQF
EmTFHBRERINFETA8.3%  HIL>2023
FEIRHFEWRAARK441. 55%7_5’?2022
FEA23.8% BEWALANBERHE

ERBEAR/ ) BHRTHREEBFHA 2023¢
THEENHEWALL2023F F¥FBH FH
27.3% > tE2022F FHFEE L EF41.9% o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESwmADH

Despite the sluggish market conditions during 2023, the
Group remained committed to increasing investment in
research and development and technical cooperation,
accelerating product deployment in the areas of ultra-
micro, high capacitance, high temperature, and high
reliability to enhance our competitiveness in the high-
end market. During the reporting period, the Group has
continued to make breakthroughs in the research and
development, and delivery of industrial and automotive-
grade products. We have also developed multiple series of
niche products for specialized circuit applications, including
three-terminal, copper-terminal, and gold-terminal MLCCs,
to meet the needs of high-end customers. Currently, the
Group’s product portfolio covers the consumer-grade,
automotive-grade, and industrial-grade sectors, and we
have made significant efforts to expand our product range
from primarily focusing on small sizes components to larger
sizes and specifications with high capacitance and high
voltage.

Currently, the Group has production bases in Chuzhou
and Dongguan. The Group has a positive outlook on
the long-term development of the MLCC industry and
the construction of new bases has been completed,
renovating and upgrading the production environment and
infrastructure, in order to expand the capacity for high-
end products to meet the growing demand in the industrial
and automotive markets. During the reporting period, the
Group's production base in Chuzhou has been completed
and put into operation, the relocation of major production
equipment has been completed and mass production
has commenced. The new production base in Dongguan
has also been completed and will begin production in
the second quarter of 2024. Upon the completion of
the relocation and expansion of the production base
in Dongguan, the Group’s production capacity and
technological capability will be significantly enhanced, and
it is expected the gross profit and cashflow will normalize
accordingly.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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Asset Management
As at 31 December 2023, the Group is managing 11
funds, each with a distinct focus. The Group derives asset
management fee income by providing asset management
services to the funds. The capital commitments from their
limited partners are listed in the table below. The Group,
being one of the limited partners, also directly invests into
six of the funds.

Unit: US$ million

Fund Name

EEniE

Management Discussion and Analysis

Initial
Closing Date
ez A

Term
(Year)
HAIR (£4R)

BEESwmA D

EEEIE

R2023F12831H AEBEEI1EES
REESHEFANKREEM - AEBERS
SRS EE RS MAELEESE
BWA - ZEET2EREBEAZERKIET]
MRTIRA-AEBEAEF—LEBEREBAI
ERRERHEPREES

Bl BEET

Capital Commitment
BREIE
Total of  Total from
the Fund”  the Group”
BEEE KrERBEY

Investment Focus

REEH

1

Tianli China Opportunities Fund I L.P.
KA BB E S5

Tianli SPC

Tianli SPC

Tianli Private Debt Fund L.P.

AEREES

Tianli Private Debt Capital L.P.

LB EERER

Tianli Global Opportunities Capital L.P?

FRBREE A

Tianli Special Situations Capital L.P.

AAHBER

January 2017
2017418

January 2017

2017518

January 2017

201718

March 2017

2017438

March 2017
2017438
March 2017

2017438

7.6

Not Applicable

B

7420

Project fund established for an 116.4 17.5
investment in Beijing

AN LRN—EREER
MmEMNEEESE

Invest in a wide range of assets 98.4 -
including private equity
investments, listed and unlisted
securities, debt securities and
other financial instruments

REREBEE OHELERE
2E FHRIELhES.
BHEFREMEMIA

Invest in a wide range of private 300.0 35.0
debt instruments with regional
focus primarily in developed
countries and China

RENZENGERIR BE
M FEEREEERRK
i

Invest predominantly across a 175.0 9.8
wide range of private debt
instruments globally

FERER NS BIEEHE
IR

Invest globally across various sectors 175.0 12.2

and distressed assets

BRERENFRTERTREE

Invest predominantly in global
mergers and acquisitions, private
equity or other corporate finance
transactions

ITERBREUHARE DERE
FHMPERERS

35.0 9.8

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZREMARAR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESwmADH

Capital Commitment

BRKIE
Initial Term Total of  Total from
Fund Name Closing Date  (Year) Investment Focus the Fund”  the Group”
E&4iE MEREA R (EH REEHR BEBE rERBEY
7 Tianli Public Markets Capital L.P. March 2017 8 Invest predominantly in the 20.0 5.6
secondary market of publicly
] traded securities globally
FHARTHRER 2017438 FERENER_RTHN
LrHEERS
8  Tianli M&A Investment L.P. March 2017 10 Invest predominantly in global 120.0 -
mergers and acquisitions or
other corporate finance related
. investments \ 9
FHBREES 2017538 IZRERIRHIEIHMERR
BRARE
9  Tianli China Opportunities Fund Il LP.  April 2017 93 Project fund established for an 80.4 -
X __investment in Shanghai ‘
FHPERERE S 5 2017548 AR DEN—EREEEME
MIEEES
10 Tianli UK Opportunities Fund L.P. March 2017 9.3 Invest predominantly in projects 150.4 =
. located in the United Kingdom
RAAEERBEES 2017438 FIERENURERNEES
11 Tianli US Opportunities Fund L.P. May 2017 8 Invest predominantly in projects 12.6 -
located in the United States
FHEERBEES 2017458 FERENUNEENER
Notes: B -
1. Extension upon recommendation of the general partner with 1. KEBEBAERRRESZEE —SUHUERIER

the unanimous approval of the investment committee

2. Formerly known as Tianli Real Estate Capital L.P.
3. Including cross holdings among the funds
4. Including direct capital

As at 31 December 2023, the total capital commitment of
the above funds (after eliminating the cross-holding effect)
was approximately US$647.8 million, among which the
Group had committed approximately US$89.9 million with
US$77.5 million capital invested. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the six funds that the Group has invested
resulted in a net loss of RMB3.1 million to the Group's
financial results, in addition to the asset management fee

income of RMB49.7 million.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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Unit: US$ million

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESwmA D

By . HEE7T

Product
Em
Common Preferred Invested

Fund name Country/region Debt equity equity amount
BEe4iE BR,/ & L EiEfEm Bk RESHE
Tianli China Opportunities Fund I L.P. PRC - 107.7 - 107.7
R PEHERE S5 ]
Tianli Private Debt Fund L.P. Australia - - 17.5 17.5
RS EEES M

Korea 5.5 - - 5.5

2

UK 22.2 - - 22.2

HHE
Tianli M&A Investment L.P. Hong Kong 56.4 - - 56.4
RHBEREES BH
Tianli Private Debt Capital L.P. Cayman Islands 32.1 - - 32.1
RAIWEEEER HEHS
Tianli China Opportunities Fund Il L.P. PRC - 66.9 - 66.9
RAPEHERE S 5% alE
Tianli UK Opportunities Fund L.P. UK - 134.0 24.1 158.1
A REHBRERES 2RE
Tianli US Opportunities Fund L.P. us - 16.6 - 16.6
PGIESET Felith =5 eS|
Total st 116.2 325.2 41.60 483.0
Consistent with prior periods, the investments made by ZEEERNNEBRIME (BEFERMN-F
these funds were in six countries or regions, including BBE PEEEKRER) (FHEE > M
Australia, Hong Kong, Korea, PRC, UK and the US, and ERENAFAAREE - ZEEDNEBLER
these investments were in the form of debt, common BUATHEAR — e
equity or preferred equity.
Investment ’rE
The Group has no new investment during the year ended HE2023F12B31HEEE AEBLEN
31 December 2023. S B o
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

MLCC, with its small size, high capacitance, and ease
of surface mounting, is one of the most widely used
and rapidly developing chip electronic components. It is
widely applied in consumer electronics, communications,
automotive electronics, and other fields, earning the title
of “rice of the electronic industry.” At the same time,
high-end capacitor and resistance are also considered as
one of the “bottleneck” technology projects in China.
Against the backdrop of China’s accelerated development
as a technology powerhouse to achieve technological self-
reliance, the trend of domestic substitution for MLCC is
evident.

Although the development of the MLCC industry in
2023 remains challenging due to the macroeconomic
environment and the consumer electronics market,
the long-term outlook for the MLCC market remains
positive. The demand for the Internet of Things and
5G communications, new energy vehicles and Al
servers are expected to grow consistently. The MLCC
segment continues to adhere to its consistent strategy
by consolidating its position in the general consumer
market and actively exploring opportunities in automotive
electronics, communication base stations, data centers,
and other markets to expand the scope of cooperation
with leading customers in the target market. Apart from
increasing investment in research and development,
equipment, environmental protection, automation and
informatization to meet customer needs, the Group
will make full use of favorable conditions such as the
significantly improved cleanliness level and equipment
precision of the new factory this year to increase efforts
to reduce costs and increase efficiency, and continuously
enhance core competitiveness through developing new
materials and new processes. While the Group has excelled
in small-and-micro sized MLCCs, through continuous
investments in research and development in recent years,
the Group recently has not only achieved technological
breakthroughs in miniature and high-capacitance products
to consolidate its leading position in the PRC, but also
successively broadened the medium-and large-sized
product portfolio with high-capacitance, high-Q, high-
temperature and high-voltage characteristics, especially
those that meet reliability requirements of industrial and
automotive grades. The Group will continue to explore
new markets, actively promote internationalization strategy
and expand its market share, and provide customers with
better products and services through ongoing innovation,
technological advancement and excellent quality.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In respect of investment and financial services segment, the
Group will reinforce the post-investment monitoring and
management of existing projects in its fund operation, take
various measures to prevent and mitigate potential risks,
through enhancing risk-control measures and reducing risk
exposure based on the terms of the existing agreements
in order to safeguard the interests of fund investors.
During 2023, the Group implemented various strategies to
enhance the performance of the investments. With most
of its efforts directed towards the subsequent management
of existing projects, the Group will also start developing
new business when appropriate, exploring value-added
opportunities for investors in stable and reliable investment
projects.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
revenue was derived from (i) MLCC segment; and (ii)
investment and financial services segment. Total revenue
of the Group was RMB488.0 million, which represented
an increase of RMB126.6 million, or 35.0%, as compared
to that for the year ended 31 December 2022. Revenue
from the MLCC segment for the year ended 31 December
2023 was RMB441.5 million, representing an increase
of RMB84.9 million, or 23.8% from the year ended 31
December 2022, which was due to weakening market
circumstances in the industry. Revenue from the investment
and financial services segment for the year ended 31
December 2023 was RMB46.5 million. Among this, the
asset management fee income was RMB49.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 which represented
an increase of RMB11.2 million, or 29.2%, as compared
to that for the year ended 31 December 2022. And the
Group's net loss from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL"), which recorded RMB3.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 as compared to a loss
of RMB33.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Gross Profit Margin

Aggregate gross profit margin for the year ended 31
December 2023 was 16.0%, representing an increase of
11.6 percentage points as compared to the year ended 31
December 2022.

BEESwmA D

ERELSRRBEB I E ~EEFMRE
TEFRAFEENBEREGZENEE R
TEEEHENCRIELRNER  THA
1% 5% 15 7k B B 28 8 0 58 R B 4% 1 45 I K B&
BRER HEESTREENMN m1R20234F >
AEBERZERBEAKRERF - FTER
BRRENEREEEBREEEN AEEHTE
FHEBERERNES SHERIRENRER
BERnREERMEBEKTG-

FiA 5ol B8

HE2023F 12831 HIEEE  AEBNWA
REBMLCCOE ; R(INWREBEHERRTS D
HoAEBFBNRIMAABARKIZS0BE T
BB E2022F12B31HLEEEEMNARIE
126.6 B & TE35.0% & £2023F 12831
HEFE > MLCCOZHNWMARARLI41.5
BET REE2022F12831H IEFEE N
ANR¥S4 9B ETH23.8%  THARERNTIH
TERFARN -HE2023F128318BIEEE >
REHTRRFOBHNBABZARKLI6.5H
Brx -2 EEEEBWRANEZE2023EF
12B31HIEFEAARKIOTEE T BE
F2022F12B31HIEEEEMARKI1.28
BrH29.2%  tboh REBE B A FEF AE
m (B AFTEFABRD NESRHEERER
2023F12A3 HEFERESHEFBEARE
32BEL MEE2022F128318 IEEEA)
BEBEBARK3IZTEE T

EHE

HE2023F12B3 1B LEENBENXA
16.0% > WE E2022F 12831 H IEFEEEM
11.6fE8 7R
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The gross profit margin of the MLCC segment increased
from 3.1% for the year ended 31 December 2022 to 7.1%
for the year ended 31 December 2023. This was mainly
due to the enhancement of the production mix. At the
same time, the Group had exercised a certain level of cost
control since the second half of 2022, leading to a decrease
in average cost.

Other Income

The Group’s other income amounted to RMB17.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023, representing an
increase of 29.1% from the year ended 31 December
2022. The increase was mainly due to the increase of
government grant amounted to RMB1.8 million and
increase in gross rental income from investment amounted
to RMBO.6 million.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The Group’s selling and distribution costs totalled RMB20.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2023, and this was
an increase of 13.6% from the year ended 31 December
2022. This was mainly due to an increase in sales level
of MLCC segment leading to a corresponding increase in
relevant sales expenses.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses for the year ended
31 December 2023 were RMB87.0 million. There was no
material change from the year ended 31 December 2022.

Research and Development Costs

The Group incurred research and development costs of
RMB65.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2023,
representing an increase of RMB9.0 million from the
year ended 31 December 2022. The increase was mainly
due to the Group’s continuous efforts in research and
development of new products and technologies during the
year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs amounted to RMB34.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 representing
an increase of RMB9.8 million from the year ended 31
December 2022. The increase was mainly due to the
additional drawdown of bank and other loans in 2023.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The net book values of the Group's property, plant and
equipment were RMB913.5 million as at 31 December
2023, increased by RMB161.6 million from the balance as
at 31 December 2022. The increase was mainly due to the
additions to plant and machinery used in production of
MLCC.

Investment Properties

The Group's investment property was carried at RMB24.1
million as at 31 December 2023, comparable to the
carrying value of RMB24.9 million as at 31 December 2022.
The decrease is mainly due to the depreciation in 2023.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's financial assets at
FVPL had a carrying value of RMB412.1 million. There was
no material change from the balance as at 31 December
2022. This was mainly due to a fair value loss of RMB3.8
million and net off the effect of appreciation in exchange
rate in Renminbi for the US dollar based financial assets.

Accounts and Bills Receivables
As at 31 December 2023, the Group'’s accounts and bills
receivables amounted to RMB347.2 million, an increase
of RMB85.6 million from the balance as at 31 December
2022. The increase was mainly due to an increase in
revenue during the year of 2023.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

As at 31 December 2023, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables in current assets amounted to RMB45.0 million,
representing a decrease of RMB8.7 million as compared to
the balance as at 31 December 2022. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in prepayment to suppliers.

BIEE W Ezﬁ#ﬁ

Bb e R s
HE2023F 12831 HIEEFE  AEEBNRE
BABANRKEI4A2EE T WEE2022F12
B3BLEEEEMNARKISEE T BT
MAEERMR2023FBIIMNERRBITREME
FTEY o

ME - -BERSZE

R2023F12B31H A"EENYE -HE X
RENEREFEAARKIIZISEE T &
2022F12A31HNEHREMAR®161.6
BEET -BREAEMNMIDEEHRAERBREE
MLCCRI R B R s B FTEY ©

KREME

R2023F12B31H AEBZZREMEZER
HEASARE24 1858t 82022512831
BMNEREEARK24 058 TS - AR
T EERMN2023FE BRI -

BATEAABGEHNEMEE
R2023F12B31H Z"EBEAFEFT A
BEaMNERmEENEEEAARK412.18
BrcHBH2022F12R31BERREHRIESTERE
o HFEHRAFEEEARKISEE
TRIIBUETAERNESHEEN AR
EXAENTEMRR-

P& U 7R IE e FE U ZE

R2023F12831H  AEBNEWHRIERE
WEE A ANRI347. 28875 B2022F128
STHMWEKREMARKSS 6Bt ARAE
M EERRA2023FEWFIE M-

FAFRIE e R EHMMEWFRIE
R2023F12B31H RHBEEFRMNAENLR
B -BEREMEURZREAARKIS 0EE
T B2022F12B3 1Bz &E B D AREES.7
BEET - ERERLCTERRAEESEFLENE
I RRIE R D FTEY ©
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Cash and Bank Balances and Pledged Bank Deposits
As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and bank
balances totalled RMB46.9 million, decreased by RMB15.6
million from 31 December 2022. The decrease was mainly
due to increase in purchase of machinery during the year of
2023.

Trade and Bills Payables

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade and bills
payables amounted to RMB116.0 million, an increase of
RMB55.3 million from 31 December 2022. The increase
was mainly due to the increase in MLCC production during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Deferred Income, Accruals and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2023, total deferred income, accruals
and other payables amounted to RMB109.3 million.
There was no material change from the balance as at 31
December 2023.

Bank and Other Loans

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank and other
loans was carrying RMB715.8 million, which represented
an increase of RMB295.7 million from RMB420.1 million as
at 31 December 2022. The increase was mainly due to the
additional drawdown of the bank and other loans.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2022: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had capital
commitments of RMB261.90 million (31 December 2022:
RMB366.6 million), including undrawn commitment to
Tianli Private Debt Fund L.P. of approximately US$102.3
million, or RMB92.8 million (31 December 2022: US$13.2
million or RMB91.3 million), Tianli China Opportunities
Fund | L.P of approximately US$1.2 million, or RMB8.4
million (31 December 2022: US$1.2 million or RMB8.7
million) from the investment and financial services segment.
Also, the capital commitment for construction of plant
of approximately RMB111.3 million (31 December 2022:
RMB220.8 million) and additions to production equipment
of approximately RMB40.7 million (31 December 2022:
RMB45.8 million) from the MLCC segment. The decrease
was mainly due to the completion of major parts of new
factories from the MLCC segment, and the increase of the
capital commitment of the investment and financial services
segment was attributable to the decrease of the exchange
rate of Renminbi. There was no material change in terms
of US dollars for the capital commitment of the investment
and financial services segment.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2023, details of significant investments
(with individual investment value of 5 per cent or more of
the Group’s total assets) held by the Group were set out as
follows:

(i) Investment in Tianli China Opportunities Fund |
L.P. (“REI")
The Group recorded investment in REIl as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss”. REl is a
project fund established for a property investment in
Beijing. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
unrealised loss of RMB9.7 million on revaluation
of the investment in REl has been recorded by the
Group. No realised gain or loss and dividend have
been received from this investment.

BEESwmA D

B AR

R2023F 1283 1H A"EBHNERKES A
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(ij)  Investment in Tianli Special Situations Capital

L.P (“SSC")

The Group recorded investment in SSC as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss”. SSC
invests predominantly in global mergers and
acquisitions, private equity or other corporate
finance transactions. During the year ended 31
December 2023, unrealised loss of RMB6.7 million
on revaluation of the investment in SSC has been

(i) REXFIBEER (IXFIHBEEZE)

FEBRBRERMBBERURATF
B ABGZNEMEE AR XF®E
BEATERENEKHEB - LERE
HHEMEEMERS - &8 E2023F128
B1HLEEE AEBEREREXRAK
BEXELAREFEBEEARKB6TESR
ToRRETEELEERKNTNEE

recorded by the Group. No realised gain or loss and & ¥
dividend have been received from this investment.
Carrying
value
to total
Interests Total assets assets of
Nature of investments held Investment cost Carrying value of the Group  the Group
RE{ER
TEE FEESE
REME EESY 3 REMK REE BERE HB{ELLAI
RMB
NG
0) Tianli China Opportunities Fund | L.P. 15.04% USD16,264,000 UsDb21,099,000 1,816,697,000 7.0%
(approximately (approximately
RMB103,081,000) RMB148,372,000)
XA FEHBLEEE % 16,264,000 75 21,099,000% 7T
WARE WARE
103,081,0007T) 148,372,0007T)
(ii) Tianli Special Situations Capital L.P. 5.60% UsD9,800,000 USD25,729,000 1,816,697,000 8.5%
(approximately (approximately
RMB62,117,000) RMB180,931,000)
RRRBEX 9,800,000% 7T 25,729,000% 7t
WARE WARE
62,117,0007T) 180,931,0007T)

The above significant investments are in line with the
Group's assets management segment’s strategy. The
Group will continue to consolidate resources, strengthen
compliance and risk management control, and proactively
focus on key markets and projects, thereby improving the
value of investment assets through sophisticated, proactive
management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current
assets of approximately RMB41.8 million (31 December
2022: net current assets RMB113.9 million), comprising of
current assets of RMB1,005.4 million (31 December 2022:
RMB728.7 million), net off current liabilities of RMB963.6
million (31 December 2022: RMB614.8 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current ratio was 1.0
(31 December 2022: 1.2). The decrease in current ratio was
mainly due to the increase in bank loan during the year of
2023.

Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure incurred by the Group (representing
acquisition and deposit of property, plant and equipment)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately
RMB326.4 million (2022: RMB360.1 million). The Group
anticipates that the funding required for future capital
expenditure will be principally financed by cash generated
from operations and bank borrowings, although the
Group may consider raising additional funds as and when
appropriate.

Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had been granted
four new banking facilities of RMB550.0 million in
aggregate, which utilised banking facilities amounted to
RMB364.0 million. A leasehold land and land use right of
the Group with carrying values of approximately RMB122.4
million in aggregate was pledged to a bank to secure
the banking facilities and a guarantee was provided by a
wholly owned subsidiary to the bank in respect of the bank
facilities.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had been granted
banking facilities of RMB788.0 million in aggregate,
which utilised banking facilities amounted to RMB643.6
million. A leasehold land, land use right, machinery and
bills receivables of the Group with carrying values of
approximately RMB198.9 million in aggregate was pledged
to a bank to secure the banking facilities and a guarantee
was provided by a wholly owned subsidiary to the bank in
respect of the bank facilities.
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Gearing Ratio

The Group monitors its capital structure through gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by capital plus net debt.
Net debt is calculated at the sum of bank and other loans,
lease liabilities, trade and bills payables and accruals and
other payables (excluding deferred income and receipt in
advance) less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents
equity attributable to the owners of the Company
(excluding share capital). As at 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2022, the gearing ratios of the Group were
approximately 65.5% and 47.8% respectively. The increase
in gearing ratio was a result of the increase in bank and
other loans during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Financial Resources

With the amount of liquid assets on hand as well as credit
facilities granted by banks, the management is of the view
that the Group has sufficient financial reserves to meet its
ongoing operational requirements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
revenue was mainly denominated in Renminbi, US dollars
and HK$, whilst its purchases were mainly denominated
in Renminbi, US dollars, HK$ and Japanese Yen. The trade
receivables denominated in US dollars were greater than
the trade payables denominated in US dollars, and the
trade receivables denominated in HK$ were smaller than
the trade payables denominated in HK$. Meanwhile, the
Group is exposed to risks in respect of trade payables
denominated in Japanese Yen, but is basically not exposed
to risks in respect of trade receivables denominated in
Japanese Yen. In the event of vigorous fluctuation of
exchange rates, foreign exchange risk will exist to a certain
extent. The Group will adopt corresponding hedging
measures in relation to its foreign currency exposure,
with a view to providing protection against future foreign
exchange risk.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment,
investment property, bills receivables and restricted
bank deposits, of the Group with carrying amounts of
approximately RMB597.3 million (31 December 2022:
RMB51.8 million), RMB4.6 million (31 December 2022:
RMB4.7 million), RMB74.6 million (31 December 2022:
RMB49.9 million), and RMB14.2 million (31 December
2022: nil) respectively have been pledged as securities for
bank and other loans facilities.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Chunhua, aged 46, joined the Company as
an executive Director in January 2016 and was appointed
as the chairman of the Board of the Company in January
2018. Mr. Zhou was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company in July 2018. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhou holds a
Master of Business Administration degree in Finance
from Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern
University, a Master of Philosophy degree in System
Dynamics from University of Bergen and a Bachelor of
Science degree in Management Information Systems from
Fudan University. Mr. Zhou had held various executive
positions in a reputable investment bank and had worked
for various international financial institutions and business
organizations. Mr. Zhou has extensive experience in
financial management, investment and corporate finance.

Mr. Pan Tong, aged 52, was appointed as chief executive
officer of the Company and ceased to be chief risk officer
of the Company in April 2019. Mr. Pan is an executive
Director since August 2017. Mr. Pan is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Pan holds a
bachelor’s degree in international finance from Hunan
College of Finance and Economics (currently known as
Hunan University). Mr. Pan had held various executive
positions at several banks and financial institutions in China
with extensive experience in the fields of risk management,
corporate banking and investment.
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EFEREREERAR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, aged 59, joined the Company
as an independent non-executive Director in April 2007.
Mr. Chu is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Chu holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from The
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chu is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Chu is also an associate of both The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He has extensive
experience in corporate finance, audit, accounting and
taxation. Mr. Chu was previously a deputy chairman and
executive director of Chinese People Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 681) until October 2020, and an
executive director of Momentum Financial Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1152) until March 2022, the shares of which
are all listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange™).

Mr. Chu is currently or used to be an independent non-
executive director of the following companies, the
securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange:

o Mingfa Group (International) Company Limited
(stock code: 846) since November 2016;

o Madison Holdings Group Limited (formerly known
as Madison Wine Holdings Limited) (stock code:
8057) since September 2015;

o Huayu Expressway Group Limited (stock code: 1823)
since May 2009;

o China First Capital Group Limited (formerly known
as China Vehicle Components Technology Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 1269) since October 2011;

o Hyfusin Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8512)
since December 2021;
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

° Flyke International Holdings Limited. (former stock
code: 1998) until December 2020;

° Xinming China Holdings Limited (stock code: 2699)
until August 2021,

o SuperRobotics Holdings Limited (formerly known
as SuperRobotics Limited) (stock code: 8176) until
November 2021;

o Peking University Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited (stock code: 618) until October 2022; and

o Silk Road Logistics Holdings Limited (stock code:
988) until April 2024.

Mr. David Tsoi, aged 76, has been an independent non-
executive Director since August 2017. Mr. Tsoi is also a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Tsoi obtained a master's degree in business administration
from the University of East Asia, Macau (currently known
as the University of Macau) in 1986. He is a certified
public accountant registered with the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a chartered certified
accountant registered with the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a chartered professional
accountant and certified general accountant certified
by the Chartered Professional Accountants of British
Columbia, Canada, fellow member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, The Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and the CPA
Australia. He is also a certified tax adviser registered with
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Currently, he is the
managing director of Alliott, Tsoi CPA Limited and senior
consultant of Patrick Wong C.PA. Limited.
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Mr. Tsoi is currently or used to be an independent non-
executive director of the following companies, the
securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange:

o Green International Holdings Limited (stock code:
2700) since June 2017;

o Universal Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code:
1026) since June 2013;

o Everbright Grand China Assets Limited (stock code:
3699) since December 2017;

° InvesTech Holdings Limited (stock code: 1087) since
May 2021;

o Guoen Holdings Limited (stock code: 8121) until
August 2023; and

o VPower Group International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1608) until December 2023.

Mr. Xu Xuechuan, aged 60, has been an independent
non-executive Director since July 2015. Mr. Xu is also
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Xu holds a
bachelor’s degree in economics from Peking University in
China, a Master of Arts in Economics degree and a Master
of Science degree in Marketing Research from University
of Guelph, Canada. Mr. Xu has extensive experience in
direct investment and corporate finance. Mr. Xu has held
senior management and consulting positions in various
international enterprises in Canada, Hong Kong and China.
Mr. Xu is currently an independent non-executive director
of Yangzhou Guangling District Taihe Rural Micro-finance
Company Limited (stock code: 1915) since January 2024,
the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jing Wenping, aged 42, joined the Group in July
2005 and is currently the president of MLCC segment
of the Group. He is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. He was previously an executive director
of the Company from May 2013 to July 2019. Mr. Jing
is in charge of the Group’s MLCC product management,
including development, quality, production and plan. Mr.
Jing holds a master's degree in business administration from
Peking University HSBC Business School.

Mr. Zhuang Yixin, aged 59, joined the Group in January
2009 and is currently the vice president of MLCC segment
of the Group. He is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Zhuang is in charge of the Group’s
MLCC product daily management in Eastern China as
well as the external relation. He is also responsible for the
construction of the new production base of a subsidiary.
Mr. Zhuang holds a bachelor's degree specializing in
electronic ceramic materials and components from South
China University of Technology.
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Mr. Tang Yingchun, aged 42, joined the Group in July
2005 and is currently the vice president of the MLCC
segment of the Group. He is also an executive director
and legal representative of a subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Tang is responsible for the daily production and
operation and the external relations of a subsidiary of
the Company. He is also responsible for the construction
of the new production base of such subsidiary. Mr. Tang
holds a Bachelor of Laws and a Bachelor of Engineering
specializing in inorganic non-metallic materials engineering
from Changchun University of Science and Technology. Mr.
Tang studied business management in Tsinghua Shenzhen
International Graduate School between 2009 and 2011.

Ms. Xue Yuan, aged 43, is currently the vice president
and general manager of the marketing centre of the MLCC
segment of the Group. Ms. Xue is in charge of sales of
MLCC products and market development of the MLCC
segment. She left the Group in March 2007 and rejoined
the Group in March 2020. Ms. Xue holds a Bachelor of
Engineering specializing in measurement and control
technology and instrumentation from Tianjin University
and a Master of Business Administration from University of
Science and Technology of Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company recognises that good corporate governance
is vital to the success of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) and the enhancement of
shareholders’ value and sustains development of the
Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
high standards of corporate governance practices. The
Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG
Code”) set out in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with
the CG Code.

CULTURES AND VALUES

A healthy corporate culture across the Group is integral to
attain its vision and strategy. It is the Board’s role to foster
a corporate culture with the following core principles and
to ensure that the Company’s vision, values and business
strategies are aligned to it.

1 Integrity and code of conduct

The Group strives to maintain high standards of
business ethics and corporate governance across
all our activities and operations. The Directors,
management and staff are all required to act
lawfully, ethically and responsibly, and the required
standards and norms are explicitly set out in the
training materials for all new staff and embedded
in various policies such as the Group's employee
handbook (including therein the Group’s code
of conduct), the anti-corruption policy and the
whistleblowing policy of the Group. Trainings
are conducted from time to time to reinforce the
required standards in respect of ethics and integrity.
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EEELAHRS

2. Commitment

The Group believes that the culture of commitment
to workforce development, workplace safety and
health, diversity, and sustainability is one where
people have a feeling of commitment and emotional
engagement with the Group's mission. This sets
the tone for a strong, productive workforce that
attracts, develops, and retains the best talent and
produces the highest quality work. Moreover, the
Company's strategy in the business development
and management are to achieve long-term,
steady and sustainable growth, while having
due considerations from environment, social and
governance aspects.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company, oversees the Group’s businesses and evaluate
the performance of the Group. The Board also focuses on
the overall strategies and policies with particular attention
paid to the growth and financial performance of the
Group.

The Board is collectively responsible for the management
and operation of the Company. All Directors are aware
of their collective and individual responsibilities to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and
have exercised their duties of care, skill and diligence.

The Board is also responsible for monitoring the financial
performance and internal control, overseeing the risk
management system of the Company, performing the
corporate governance duties including developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing its business strategies and managing
the day-to-day operations of the Group’s businesses to
the executive Directors and senior management. Besides,
the Board has established three Board committees,
namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, and
Remuneration Committee, and has delegated to these
Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.
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Corporate Governance Report

All Board members have separate and independent access
to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their duties.
Independent professional advice can be sought to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group's
expense upon their request.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of
five Directors, and the list of Directors is as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Chunhua (Chairman)
Mr. Pan Tong (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. David Tsoi

Mr. Xu Xuechuan

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among members of the Board.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Board of Directors and Senior Management” of
this annual report. An updated list of Directors identifying
their roles and functions is maintained on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The chairman of the Board is Mr. Zhou Chunhua and the
chief executive officer is Mr. Pan Tong. The roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer are separate and
are not performed by the same individual. Their respective
roles and responsibilities were set out in writing.

The chairman of the Board is responsible for overseeing
the strategy planning and leadership of the Company and,
with the support of executive Directors and the company
secretary, seeking to ensure that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and that
they receive, in a timely manner, adequate and reliable
information. The chief executive officer is responsible for
managing the Group’s business and overall operations. The
day-to-day operations of the Company is delegated to the
management with divisional heads responsible for different
aspects of the businesses.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
of independence from each of the independent
non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. With the assessment conducted by the Nomination
Committee, the Board still considers that each independent
non-executive Director is independent in character and
judgement.

Board Meetings

The Board meets at least four times each year or more as
required. Directors may participate in meetings either in
person or through electronic means of communication. At
least 14 days' notice of all regular Board meetings together
with the meeting agenda is given to all Directors such that
all Directors are given the opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. All accompanying Board
papers were sent to the Directors in a timely manner and at
least three days before the meetings (or such other period
as agreed). For other meetings, Directors are given as much
notice as reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
Except for those circumstances permitted by the Articles
of Association and the Listing Rules, a Director would
abstain from voting on resolutions approving any contract,
transaction or arrangement in which he or any of his close
associates is materially interested in, and such Director is
not counted for determining a quorum.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing
the agenda for each meeting and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations regarding the proceedings
of the Board meetings are followed. The Company
Secretary records all matters considered by the Board,
decisions reached and any concerns raised or dissenting
views expressed by the Directors. Draft and final versions
of the minutes will be circulated to the Directors for
comments and record respectively within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for the
Directors’ inspection.
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The attendance of each of the Directors at Board meetings,
Committee meetings and annual general meeting held
during the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below.

EEELHRS

U>?f
et
i

7 P

L E2023F12H31HLEEE
Bg FKX

3 >
BINERLLH ZESLH

B RBHIMT o i

N
15
a FE

A

Number of meetings attended/held during the year (Directors’ tenure)

FRHE/ FINGERY ES2EH

Annual

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
EEy EXg BrRZEYE FWEEET RLZET RRBEAY
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhou Chunhua (Chairman) BEELSE (Z/E) 12112 = 17 11 i
Mr. Pan Tong BV RE 12/12 - - - 0/

(Chief Executive Officer) (fTHAE#)
Independent Non-executive BIIFHITES
Directors

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus KRERE 12/12 4/4 1/1 11 1/1
Mr. David Tsoi BERMERE 12112 4/4 - - 17
Mr. Xu Xuechuan ®"EN%E 12112 4/4 171 11 171
Apart from the above-mentioned Board meetings, the fREMEZEGEEIN B ZE20235F12/831H
Chairman also held one meeting with the independent \EEE > ERIN RS 3F MITESET—RI
non-executive Directors without the presence of executive BUTESBSEENGE-
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2023.
Appointment and Re-election of Directors BEEZREREE
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service BEHTESFSEERARARBFT IR ERRA=
contract with the Company for a specific term of three HNERBEHA JEHEBE BEEHEZTHAL
years, which is automatically renewable until terminated BEHAVR=ZEANEEBEMNK LRI

by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by
either of the Director or the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a specific term of one year, which is automatically
renewable until terminated by either of the Director or the
Company in writing prior to the expiry of the term.

In accordance with the articles of association of the
Company, at every annual general meeting of the
Company one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only before the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and may be
re-elected at that meeting.

BEBEARBDEBERMA REAREEERR
BEAREGL ERF=ZDZ—KHNEF (AR
= =WEH UBRBABFDR=52
—BAR EHRERT HREF (BEREE
THEZEE) BEVB=FHESTE— R

EREE S 5 IEMER TR
BEBEARTD TERRBFEARNGZA > I H
EZARELEEEF-
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3
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TEELRHRS

When an independent non-executive director proposing
for re-election has served the Company for more than
nine years, and if the proposed independent non-executive
director will be holding his or her seventh (or more) listed
company directorship, his or her re-election will be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved at the annual
general meeting of the Company. The directors who
shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company are set out on page 52 of this
annual report.

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus has served the Company as an
independent non-executive Director for more than nine
years and does not have any executive or management role
in the Company nor has he been under the employment
of any member of the Group. The Board considers that he
has made considerable contributions to the Company with
his relevant experience and knowledge throughout his year
of service and he has maintained an independent view in
relation to the Company’s affairs.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Directors shall keep abreast of responsibilities as a director
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Group.

Each newly appointed Director is provided with the
necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations
and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities under the
relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Briefings and updates on the latest
development in the Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements are provided to each
of the Directors to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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According to the training records maintained by the
Company, the continuing professional development
programmes had been received by the following Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2023:

EEELAHRS

BREBEARNDRENEICE 8 E2023F12
B31HLEEE U TEFERZFBEXRHE
st EIE I

Type of continuous
professional development
FREEEEEE

Read

regulatory

Participated updates or
in seminars/ other relevant

conferences/ reference

webinars materials

REBEERTE

2HMEE BEMENE

g8 Hth+HRA

Name of Directors EEHY i E 2EEHN

Executive Directors WITES

Mr. Zhou Chunhua BEERE 4 v/

Mr. Pan Tong E RS 4 4
Independent Non-executive Directors B IEMITE

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus KERFE 4 4

Mr. David Tsoi BARUMESE v/ v

Mr. Xu Xuechuan wE)||fE 4 v/

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of the Directors, which includes
but is not limited to:

(a)

(b)

to develop and review the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

EZeMIACEXELRRAESTAREERE
£ BEERRR

(a) HELWMAERBDAEMEEREBHER
RER

(b) BNTEREFEkSREZEASNEI
REFBEEER

() BAABERFABDEETZEIEKREER
ERHEHNBRKRER
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EEELAHRS

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and the Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the compliance
with the CG code with support by the Audit Committee.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
as the code of conduct regulating Directors’ dealings in
securities of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of
all the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in Model
Code regarding their securities transactions throughout the
year ended 31 December 2023.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board committees are
accountable to the Board and will report their outcomes,
opinions, findings and recommendations arrived at the
committee meetings to the Board. All Board committees
have been established with defined written terms of
reference which are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the expense of the Company.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman), Mr. David Tsoi and
Mr. Xu Xuechuan, all of them being independent non-
executive Directors and at least one member who possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. None of the
members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
existing external auditor of the Company.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist
the Board in providing an independent review of the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems, oversee audit
process and perform other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board. The Audit Committee monitors the
integrity of the Company's financial statements, annual
report and accounts and half-year report and reviews
significant financial reporting judgements contained in
them. The Audit Committee also reviews the relationship
with the external auditors by reference to the work
performed by the external auditors, as well as their
independence, fees and terms of engagement, and makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors.

The Audit Committee meets at least two times a year.
During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings
and reviewed, the following matters:

(i) the audited financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
unaudited interim financial statements of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2023
before submitting to the Board for approval;

(ii) the internal audit report and risk assessment
report on the risk management and internal
control systems, including the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company's accounting and
financial reporting function;

TEELRHRS

B%EEE

BERZEEHR=-2ME (BIKRBREEE (£
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(i)  the independence of the external auditor and
the recommendation to the Board on the
re-appointment of the external auditor; and

(iv)  the corporate governance practices and policies in
order to comply with CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee met the external auditor twice during
the year in the absence of the management, to discuss
matters relating to any issues arising from the audit and any
other matters that the external auditor may wish to raise.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Xu Xuechuan
(Chairman) and Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, and one
executive Director, namely Mr. Zhou Chunhua. The majority
of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.
The Remuneration Committee reviews and determines the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors
with reference to their responsibilities, workload, the time
devoted to the Group and the performance of the Group.
The Remuneration Committee also reviews and/or approves
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year.
During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to review the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management.

No Director nor any of his associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.
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Remuneration Policy

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management
(other than the Directors) whose particulars are contained
in the section headed “Board of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report by band for the year
ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:

EEELHRS

#rEHE SR

RIBGEEATHNTRXFEEN.K 5
MEEAB (EEMRI) B E2023F12831H
EFEENHFN (EXBERNEAEFREEE R
SHREEAEI—®) REEZSOT

Remuneration Band

Number of individual(s)

FrEM et A
Nil to RMB1,000,000 ZTE AK#1,000,0007T 2
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AE#1,000,0017TE

A E#62,000,0007T 3

Further particulars regarding the emoluments of the
Directors and the five highest paid individuals for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in notes 11 and 12
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus
(Chairman) and Mr. Xu Xuechuan, and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Zhou Chunhua. The majority of them
are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company's corporate strategy, and
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The Nomination Committee is also responsible
for assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year.
During the year, the Nomination Committee met once and
had performed the following works:

(i) reviewed the structure, size, composition of the
Board and recommended the re-appointment of the
retiring Directors at the annual general meeting of
the Company;

(i) reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the
Nomination Policy;

(i) assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; and

(iv) reviewed and was satisfied with the corporate
governance mechanism to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board.

Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) in December 2018 which sets out the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted to guide
the Nomination Committee to select and recommend
candidates for the Board. The nomination will be in
pursuit of a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives in the Board appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business as well as succession continuity.
The Nomination Committee will identify and nominate
qualified individuals for appointment as additional
Director(s) or to fill vacancies as and when they arise.

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
Nomination Committee would consider factors including:

(a) reputation for integrity;

(b) experience in (i) investment and financial services
business; and (ii) MLCC business;

(@) accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules;
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(d)  diversity in all its aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service;

(e) commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest; and

(f) requirements in respect of independent
non-executive Directors in accordance with the
Listing Rules and whether the candidate would
be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing
Rules.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to
be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee
has the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the requirement
set out in the CG Code. Such policy aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
appointment of new directors of the Company shall be
based on meritocracy, and candidates shall be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. In selecting director
candidates, board diversity shall be considered, including
but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. Directors with technical,
legal, financial, management and audit background will
provide various extensive business experiences to the
Company. Such factors will be considered by the Company
based on its business model and specific needs and
the ultimate decision will be based on merit, value and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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The Nomination Committee monitors, from time to
time, the implementation of the policy, and reviews, as
appropriate, the policy to ensure the effectiveness of the
policy. The Nomination Committee will continue to give
adequate consideration to these measurable objectives
when making recommendations of candidates for
appointment to the Board.

The Board values gender diversity and targets to appoint
at least a female director no later than 31 December 2024.
The Board will take initiatives to identify suitable candidates
to strengthen the Board diversity.

The Board recognizes the importance of diversity at the
workforce level. As of 31 December 2023, the ratio of
male and female employees (including senior management)
of Company was 57.2% and 42.8% respectively. The
Board was satisfied with the current gender diversity
across the workforce (including senior management) of
the Group. When hiring employees, the Group considers
a number of factors, including gender, age, cultural and
education background, qualification, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills and knowledge etc.

Mechanism to Ensure Independent Views to the
Board

In order to ensure that independent views and input are
made available to the Board, the following mechanisms are
reviewed annually by the Board, through the Nomination
Committee, to ensure their effectiveness:

1. A sufficient number of three independent non-
executive Directors representing more than one-third
of the Board and all of them continue to devote
adequate time contribution to the Company;

2. All independent non-executive Directors share their
views and opinions through regular meetings and
particular heads of business units would be invited
to join such meetings on independent non-executive
Directors’ requests;

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &#

REEZEEIHERZBERNANIT REEE
FR BT Z R UERZBRITZAN R
LEEEENESTIMEREATMIFLHERS
ERF REBRENEEXSAFERR

ESEERMUNZ T BRABIN20245F12
A3EAELEE—LXMREF -EFEHR
REERDESBNEREA UNBEFES
k(v

BEEgHHAETITEES TIENEESE -HE
2023F12BA31H AR EMERZTEET
(BHESHREEBEAR) LADBA57.2% K
428% EECHAEEHHETL (BESH
BEAS)NUENZTERI GE-BAET
BoAEEEREZEREZ BEMEN FH# -
XERIEEE - BER - BR FELRE - F
BER A E -

EREFEEFSBLS RIS

SRERRESENESBUBREKRER EFXg
BFEBRBVEZEGTEUTHES UEFRE
BRE

1. EET LA RN =GB IIENITES
(HEEEgABEN=22Z2—ULE) B
FMTEEEFEHEEAARALRIRATENF
Bl

2. FIABINTEFEBTHERDZ
REMBEHNER BEXBHFIEE
ATEEBIFANTESTNERRES

2MERSE



Corporate Governance Report

3h All independent non-executive Directors did not
involve in the daily management of the Company
nor in any relationship or circumstances which
would affect the exercise of their independent
judgement;

4. Annual meeting between the Chairman and all
independent non-executive Directors without
presence of other Directors providing effective
platform for the Chairman to listen independent
views on various issues concerning the Group; and

5. Independent professional advice would be provided
to independent non-executive Directors upon
reasonable request to assist them to perform their
duties to the Company.

Company Secretary

The company secretary is a full time employee of the
Company and is appointed by the Board. He possesses
the day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs and
is responsible for facilitating the Board’s processes and
communications among Board members, with shareholders
and with management. During the year, the company
secretary has confirmed that he has undertaken sufficient
hours of relevant professional training in compliance with
rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
ensure that the preparation of the consolidated financial
statement of the Group is in accordance with the statutory
requirements, the Listing Rules and applicable standards.

The independent auditor of the Company had made a
statement about their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in
the section entitled”Independent Auditor’s Report” of this
annual report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the total fee
paid or payable to Crowe (HK) CPA Limited, the auditor of
the Company, for audit and non-audit services provided to

e VR ER GRS

HE2023F12831HIEFE > A E R R
T B RIFZERTE S X EN A QB S
EZHMEESE (F8) 2stMEXEMER

the Group are set out below: NEINEERHINOT
Fee paid/
Category of Services payable
gt/
AR 75 48 A1) FE1{+ & F
RMB’000
ANEEFT
Audit services % B AR TS 1,499
Non-audit services IEZBARTS 309
Total “ast 1,808

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems (including
those relating to environmental, social and governance
risk, performance and reporting) and reviewing their
effectiveness.

The Board has established an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks
faced by the Group and this process includes enhancing
the systems of risk management and internal controls from
time to time in response to the changes to the business
environment or regulatory guidelines. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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A review on the internal control systems of the Company,
including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions for the year
ended 31 December 2023 has been carried out by an
independent consultancy company with staff in possession
of relevant expertise to conduct an independent review.
The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control report
and risk assessment report and no significant deficiency
was identified during course of review and the systems
were operating effectively and adequately. The Board
assessed the effectiveness of internal control systems by
considering the internal control review report and risk
assessment report and reviews were performed by the
Audit Committee and concurred the same.

The Board is of the view that no internal audit function
is considered necessary in consideration of the current
operation size and organisation structure of the Group.
The Audit Committee and the Board have considered
the internal control report and risk assessment report
prepared by an independent consultancy company and
communications with the Company's external auditors
in respect of any material control deficiencies identified
during the course of the financial statement audit to form
the basis to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
The Audit Committee and the Board will continue to review
the need for an internal audit function on an annual basis.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group is aware of its obligations under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) and the Listing Rules
and is required, as soon as reasonably practicable after
any inside information has come to its knowledge, to
disclose the information to the public. The Group has been
maintaining procedures in handling and dissemination of
inside information in an accurate and secure manner, in
order to avoid possible mishandling of inside information
within the Group. Also, in order to comply with all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to the anti-
money laundering and terrorist financing, the Group has
adopted an anti-money laundering and know-your-client
policy to combat money-laundering and terrorist financing
activities and to generate a level of awareness of the
obligations and responsibilities of staff on the anti-money
laundering and terrorist financing.
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DIVIDEND POLICY R 2B R

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend ETTEHEAN—MEBRRERERANEKE
Policy”) which outlines the principles of payment on BRX(TREKRK) REBKXEREELAEER
dividend. The Dividend Policy would be in the best interests RAERBRENREN G EZGREIFE
of the Group and the shareholders of the Company. HEREHER BRKEmERRAZEHEZEEEX
The Board endeavours to maintain a balance between EEZEARETEE-

meeting the Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital
management with a sustainable Dividend Policy.

The Board shall also take into account the following RERERRKMKRER  EFGHRAEZRELU
factors of the Group when considering the declaration and THRZR EFaiE
payment of dividends, inter alia:

(@) the Company’s actual and expected financial (@) ARBNERMTEHAMBES;
performance;

(b)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the (b) HAEBZzRBEFRMNERADIKEE;
Group;

() the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return () HAEBZEBERBRALLERARERXK
on equity and the relevant financial covenants; BRI B EHEZ KT

(d)  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may (d) HXEBERAQTERMNZERIKER
be imposed by the Group’s lenders; i ;

(e)  the Group's expected working capital requirements (e) XEBERHAEESEEETREARKER
and future expansion plans; &

(f)  general economic conditions, business cycle of (f) EBELKLERRT -AXEBEMLCCERZH
the Group’s MLCC business and other internal or X BEPRRAUEHSARB ZEBTIUM B X
external factors that may have an impact on the EEMREEREZHMANIIER ; &

business or financial performance and position of
the Company; and

()  any other factors that the Board deem appropriate. (90 EEZgRABEZAMNHEMRAZER-
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company's constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2023.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investor understanding of the Group’s business,
performance and strategies. The Company endeavors
to maintain an ongoing dialogue with Shareholders
and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. The Chairman of the Board, the
chairmen of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee or, in their absence, other members
of the respective committees, will make themselves
available at the annual general meetings to meet
Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Shareholders’ communication policy of the Company
sets out the Company's procedures in providing the
Shareholders with prompt and equal access to information
about the Company, in order to enable the Shareholders
to assess the Company’s overall performance, exercise their
rights in an informed manner and engage actively with the
Company.

The Company also maintains a website at www.tlhg.com.hk,
where up-to-date information and updates on the
Company’s financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Shareholders’ communication policy.
Having considered the multiple channels of communication
and engagement in place, it is satisfied that the
Shareholder’s communication policy has been implemented
during the year ended 31 December 2023 and is effective.

EEELHRS
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(a)

Convening extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. Such requisition shall
be made in writing to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting
shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The requisition must state clearly the name of the
requisitionist(s), their shareholding in the Company,
the reason(s) to convene an extraordinary general
meeting, the agenda proposed to be included
and the details of the business(es) proposed to be
transacted in the extraordinary general meeting and
signed by the requisitionists.
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(b)

(9]
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Proposing for election as a director

Pursuant to the article 88 of the Articles of
Association, no person other than a retiring Director
shall, unless recommended by the Board for
election, be eligible for election as a director at any
general meeting, unless a written notice signed by a
shareholder (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose that person for election as a director and
notice in writing by that person of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged to the Company
provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such notices are given, shall be at least
7 days. The period for lodgment of such notices
will commence on the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the
date of such general meeting.

Putting forwards enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns
in writing together with their detailed contact
information to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary by post at Suites 2711-12, 27/F,
The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong,
or by email to info@tlhg.com.hk. The Company
Secretary shall then forward the same to the
appropriate executives of the Company or members
of the Board for further handling.

(b)

(0
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRS

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Tianli Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) presents
their annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2023, the discussion on the
Group's future business development and description of
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set
out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report. A separate Environmental, Social and Governance
Report will set out the Group's environmental policies
and performance, compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and relationships with key stakeholders.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 are set out in the consolidated financial statements
on pages 76 to 77 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 2 of this annual report.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the section
headed “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity”
on page 80 of this annual report and note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to the Shareholders was RMB647,587,000
(2022: RMB645,697,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in investment properties of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group are set out in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales to the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for approximately 45% of the Group's
total revenue and sales to the largest customer accounted
for approximately 15% of the Group's total revenue during
the year.

The aggregate purchases from the five largest suppliers
of the Group accounted for approximately 40% of the
Group’s total purchases and purchases from the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 18% of the Group’s
total purchases during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors,
holding more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company) has any interests in the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Chunhua (Chairman)
Mr. Pan Tong (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. David Tsoi

Mr. Xu Xuechuan

In accordance with article 87(1) of the articles of
association of the Company (the “Article of Association”),
Mr. Zhou Chunhua and Mr. David Tsoi shall retire by
rotation from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.
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The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation
of independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Notwithstanding that Mr. Chu Kin Wang,
Peleus has served as independent non-executive Director
for more than nine years, he meets the independence
guidelines set out in such Rule 3.13 and has never been
involved in the daily management of the Company nor
is he in any relationships or circumstance which would
interfere with the exercise of his independent judgment.
The nomination committee of the Board has assessed
and is satisfied with the independence of all independent
non-executive Directors. Hence, the Board is of the opinion
that all the independent non-executive Directors remain
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules by
reference to the factors stated therein.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section
of "Board of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors and
the officers of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets of the Company which
may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duties.
The Company has maintained liability insurance to provide
appropriate cover for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of any
business of the Company were entered into during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management, having regard to their relevant
experience, duties and responsibilities, performance and
achievement, and market rate. None of the Directors
will determine their own remuneration. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions and Balances” as set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or their close associates had engaged
in or has any interests in any businesses which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company

Report of the Directors
EFEHRS

EFRESRITHRAGR KRG  HEARGS K
BEEZEmRXE

R2023F12B31H RESBEFES/1E
BHEABEKRA (TBHFRIBEHEAL ) $3521F
AABBFEEZSRMEPFFAE HRELS
RAFMBZ LHETAESTETESRSW
BETFR STHEERRBD R XA F
EEBEEASBRITHAERARAST N ETAE
BErE (TEEREBESMPERAEXVE) 2K
M EREARNDREESETFHEEEGAABE
FlER

TATRGREMRRZIFE

Number of
underlying
Capacity/ Number of shares - Total  Percentage of
nature of ordinary award number of total issued
Name of Director interest shares held shares* shares shares”
MR — LB &TRG
S Bin/HztE FEZERHE REBRHEBE* R AR 488 mEgRas
Mr. Zhou Chunhua Beneficial owner 1,400,000 5,958,000 7,358,000 0.99%
BEESRE BREBA
X These represent the shares to be issued and allotted by the * ZERMIER A BIRBERD RE 2R ERBRGD

Company upon vesting of award shares under the Share
Award Scheme.

" The percentage is calculated based on 744,750,000 shares of
the Company in issue as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, so far as was known to the
Directors, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, substantial shareholders of
the Company and other persons (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or
which were notified to the Company, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company

XVEBE 2/ 5H

RAEQTRGREMKRBZEE

FERRREMA LR RBRKRDZ
*‘EE&U{

1R2023F 128318 REEFRAERME
3D WMZHEXARAEKE > =
BREFFRBERAEIBHRARTIEATHEE
ZEMSE RENEERRF > ARFE
ERFREMAL (FRATEFHARSTEHA
BRI RERBRMDBEBRMDTER Z#
mEKRAEWT -

Capacity/ Percentage
nature of Number of of total
Name of Shareholders interest Shares held issued shares?
HEBTRHN
IRt B HEHE FrisiR i & B wWYME DL
(a) Substantial shareholders
FERR
Cosmic Riches Investments Limited Beneficial owner 93,443,650 12.55%
R ERRAR EREAA
Ms. Du Weilin Interest of a controlled 93,443,650 12.55%
IEM - corporation (Note 1)
SRR EE R (Hta#1)
(b) Other persons
HfhA L
China Tian Yuan Manganese Limited Beneficial owner 60,590,482 8.13%
RERTTHREBRAE BREAA
Ningxia Tianyuan Manganese Interest of a controlled 60,590,482 8.13%
Industry Group Co., Ltd. corporation (Note 2)
EERTHEEERFRAR SR EEE R Hta#2)
Mr. Jia Tianjiang Interest of a controlled 60,590,482 8.13%
BREIE corporation (Note 2)
SR EEE R (Htz#2)
Ms. Dong Jufeng Interest of spouse 60,590,482 8.13%
REBLZTLT BB D (Note 3)
(B75£3)
E The percentage is calculated based on 744,750,000 shares of # Bt ER2023F12A31BEA QB BETRG

the Company in issue as at 31 December 2023.
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Notes:

(1) 93,443,650 shares are directly held by Cosmic Riches
Investments Limited which is wholly owned by Ms. Du Weilin.
As such, Ms. Du Weilin was deemed to be interested in the
93,443,650 shares held by Cosmic Riches Investments Limited
by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

) 60,590,482 shares are directly held by China Tian Yuan
Manganese Limited, a company wholly-owned by Ningxia
Tianyuan Manganese Industry Group Co., Ltd. which is in turn
wholly owned by Mr. Jia Tianjiang. As such, Ningxia Tianyuan
Manganese Industry Group Co., Ltd. and Mr. Jia Tianjiang
were deemed to be interested in the 60,590,482 shares held
by China Tian Yuan Manganese Limited by virtue of Part XV of
the SFO.

(3) Ms. Dong Jufeng was deemed to be interested in the
60,590,482 shares held by China Tian Yuan Manganese
Limited by virtue of her being the spouse of Mr. Jia Tianjiang
for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023,
there were no other persons (other than Directors or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or
which were notified to the Company.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The following is a summary of the principal terms of a
share award scheme adopted by the Company on 14 July
2017 (the “Share Award Scheme” or the “Scheme”):

(a) Purpose

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to
(i) encourage and retain the eligible participants
of the scheme to work with the Company;
(i) provide additional incentive for them to achieve
performance goals which in turn increase the
value of the Company; and (iii) align the interests
of eligible participants directly with that of the
shareholders through ownership of interests in the
Company.
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Mt -

(1) 93,443,650 IRID IR IRERR AT EERFA
HREREERATHMLIER L T2 EES -FHIL-
RIE %5 & SR FI BEXVER » HIBH & THRAR
R ERRATFTIEA 293,443,6500% B2 15
B

) 60,590,482 kP H R EI R Tt XA R AR BIER
B HPBRTHERARADREERTHEERE
RABZE2BEHARE MEEXTHEEMAR
NEHERFREZBER - EIt RBESF R
EFRAIEXVED EEXRTREEEFRABRERX
RAEERBERNPERTEEZBRABDRFTREZ
60,590,482 i {n A ko

®3) REBLEIRERGREEZRRB WIREES R
ERBISEXVED > HRA RN RERTHEERRAT
PR¥5H 260,590,482 R {7 th A it

b EXPRIREHE SN > 1R2023FE 128318
BEHEHMALT (AR EFTIRSTEHABR
8) AR~ B B D S A RE R 10 A BE B 2m o K
B EREBHESKHERANEXVEF2RES
DPBZBRXBAABDHE > A RBESERBE
BEIFEIZIEREANBBFFEEZE LML
HERNGARAT

A7 82 Rh 5181
UFR/ARBR2017F7B14B KM H
HEstd ((ROERAS I NEHE) HEE

R E
(@ B8

B 1n 2B 5T 8 2 BB R (i) BB K 3% B8 51
ENEBERBHEEYHERT (VAR
FIRMEAIINER ERNRBEER UR
SEREEE; R(IINEBEARA BT
BEERROERSHEEARR M mE
R o
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(b)

(9]

Participants

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Board
may propose or determine which eligible participant
shall be entitled to receive grants of award shares
("Award Schares”) under the scheme (”Selected
Participant”), together with the number of shares
to which each Selected Participant shall be entitled,
and make the relevant grant of Award Shares to the
Selected Participant under the scheme subject to
such conditions as the Board may deem appropriate
at its discretion. The Selected Participants include
any Director and employees of the Group.

Total Number of Shares Available for Issue

The total number of Award Shares, whether they
are new shares to be allotted and issued by the
Company or existing shares to be purchased on-
market by the trustee of the Scheme, underlying all
grants made pursuant to the Share Award Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time. As at the date of
this annual report, the total number of shares of
the Company available for issue under the Share
Award Scheme was 74,475,000 shares, representing
10% of the issued shares of the Company. Up to
the date of the date of this annual report, a total
of 5,958,000 shares had been awarded under the
Share Award Scheme. The total number of shares
available for grant under the Share Award Scheme
as at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 were
68,517,000 shares.
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2H%

REBERDEBESE  EFFREZIR
TARRBEAEERERRN ((HBR
MNHNEERSHEE (TEEBHRE) L
REEE2HERERZRNHHBE LR
BEFERUENBEIR/BEZREMET
FNEE2HEERHBRBRD -EES
BELREIMNEEAREEERE

A EITARID MRS

RIFERODEZEBE BB 2 RERMD (F
WEARNB B E KRBT RS X
ERTABETEBAZEERMD) 42
HEHFTEBRELARABD AR ZE ST
FRAR10% - A ARFEIFHRBHE > KA BRI
R IRE S T HETHRDBES
74,475,000 A RAB B EITRDN
10% BEEAXNFRHE > KD EE)HE
IETEEFE5H5,958,0001 1% 2
2023F1H1HKR2023F12H31H 1R
BERORBFE IHEBEEIRDEHES
68,517,0008% °



(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

There is no specific maximum entitlement for each
eligible participant under the Share Award Scheme.

Vesting Date and Condition

The Selected Participant shall be entitled to receive
the awarded shares vested in him/her in accordance
with the vesting schedule and the vesting conditions
set forth in the notice of awards issued to them.
Subject to the expiration of the Share Award
Scheme, in the event that the specific vesting
conditions cannot be fulfilled on a particular vesting
date of any given year, the entire vesting schedule
shall be adjourned until such conditions are met.
Upon expiry of the Share Award Scheme, any
outstanding but unvested award shares shall lapse
and become returned shares.

Acceptance of Award

No amount is payable by the Selected Participant
upon acceptance of the award.

Duration and remaining life of the Share Award
Scheme

Unless terminated earlier by the Board, the Share
Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period commencing on 14 July 2017 and ending on
the tenth anniversary of such date, and will expire
on 14 July 2027.

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, no share of the
Company has been purchased from the open market. At
31 December 2023, no share of the Company was held in
trust by the trustee.

HE2023F12831HEFE T EBART
LEBEARATIRM -HR2023F1283180 K&
NEWERMDBEZTEALUETEFTA -

Details of movement of Award Shares under the Share FR RMOEBE THNRER GO EEF B
Award Scheme during the year were as follows: T
Number of award shares
#BRHEE
Unvested at Granted Vested Cancelled Lapsed Unvested at
1 January during during the during the during the 31 December
Grantee(s) Date of grant Vesting period the year year year year 2023
120235
120231818 12A31H
EEA BHAM FES 58 REAET RERGE REAEH RERKH HWAHE
Director
g%
Mr. Zhou Chunhua 14712017 31/3/2018-31/3/2020 5,958,000 - - - - 5,958,000
AERELL (ote) (#22)

Note:  Subject to the expiration of the Scheme period, in the event
that the vesting conditions cannot be fulfilled on a particular
vesting date of any given year, the entire vesting schedule
shall be adjourned until such conditions are met. Upon expiry
of the Scheme period, any outstanding but unvested Award
Shares shall lapse and become returned Shares.

EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENTS

Saved as disclosed in the section headed “Share Award
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of
the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2023 was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2023.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
had no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which fell to be disclosed in accordance with
the provisions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
To the best of the Director’s knowledge, information and
belief having made all reasonable enquiries, none of the
related party transactions as disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements constitutes a connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of
1,285 (2022: 1,084) employees. The Group recognises
the importance of human resources to its success.
Compensation for the Group is made in reference to the
prevailing market conditions, individual performance,
contributions as well as duties and responsibilities.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Details of the employee retirement benefits of the
Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately RMB18,000 (2022:
RMB43,000).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s
environmental, social and governance (the "ESG") strategy
and reporting, and is responsible for the Group’s ESG risk
management and internal control systems to ensure that
the ESG strategies and reporting requirements are met. The
details of ESG performance of the Group are set out in the
“2023 Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF THE ERENES

DIRECTORS

The changes in information of the Directors, which is B FHREE13.51B(1)E > BARA52023
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of FHRRFIBEURBFREZ2ESERNEE (B
the Listing Rules, as notified to the Company, since the MEARRAT) HFWTF -

publication of the Interim Report 2023 of the Company are

set out below:

Changes in Biographical Details

Name of Directors

EXUR

BESBZRE

Details of changes

BB

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus
KERTE

Mr. David Tsoi
BARMESE

Mr. Xu Xuechuan

=2 llsass

appointed as an independent non-executive director of Silk Road Logistics
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 988), on
11 September 2023 and resigned the same position on 19 April 2024
R2023F9A N BEZERMRBYIRIERBRAS (MBMLHHNAE (IR1H
X5k © 988)) WAL IFHITES > W B R2024F48 190 BHEAEE BT

(i) resigned as an independent non-executive director of Guoen Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Guru Online (Holdings) Limited), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8121), on 8 August 2023
12202358 B8H B ERIRIER AR AT (FIBEB AR (1K) BRAE)
(RSP LA B (BRIDASE - 8121)) B IFRITES

(i) resigned as an independent non-executive director of VPower Group
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1608), on 5 December 2023
1R2023F 12B5A R EREEERKIZERBRAT (KB LHHNAT
(B 5% : 1608)) FIBILIFMITEE

appointed as an independent non-executive director of Yangzhou Guangling
District Taihe Rural Micro-finance Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1915), on 19 January 2024

20241 B19R EZEABINT ERERNEN/NEERRNDBRAT (L
RFT EMBART BRAHAE 0 1915)) NEIIIERNITES
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the
Company or by the Group since 31 December 2023 and up
to the date of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
at least 25% of the Company’s issued share capital as
required under the Listing Rules is held by the public during
the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of
this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 have been reviewed
by the audit committee of the Company. The principal
responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company
include the review and supervision of the Group’s financial
reporting process and risk management (including but not
limited to business, operation as well as environmental,
social and governance related risks) and internal control
systems.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA
Limited, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Zhou Chunhua

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Tianli Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
65 to 252, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

VRS IR

BEEEE &FH gtMEBABERAR
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

& SRE ISRETTR 1BER 08
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

RRXANEREBEARABDKRRZ
B EEN RS

(RHEEHSZMELIERAE)

=R

RPEEZIENE65HEEHE 2528 XA #E
REBAERRAT (TERF) RENBAR (4
BIEEER) NGEEMBRE ZXFHROVH
HRAREENR2023F12B31BNGEH B RN
REBEZHLFENGGREakEMER
WamEx - FEaRmEPHRNGEaHRERER
URkiraMBRENE (BREARGSHERE
K1) o

R FEUBEREREEBERHE SR
#HEE (AREAREEZSE)) BEMAE
R BRSEINEHERNEEMAFTHR
B BEENR2023F12A31BNEEHBER
M UREBEZBLEFENGREUBRER
HERTRE TEBREBLATEARIKE
RMEZRMmHE-
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BAZREMER S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, which indicates that the Group
incurred a net loss of RMB223,516,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2023. This condition, along with
other matters as set forth in note 2(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, indicates that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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NON-CONSOLIDATION OF STRUCTURED
ENTITIES AND VALUATION OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

Refer to notes 2(i), 17 and 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Key Audit Matter
A E%EIR

VRS IR

FFEHEBEERIRNRATESAETR
HNEMEERNGE

F2REEMBBERMEE2() 17xk19°

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAINEZLMFAREZER

The management of the Group made significant judgments to
assess whether the Group has the power over and is exposed
to significant variable returns from structured entities, mainly
the private equity funds, to determine whether or not it has
control over the structured entities, which the Group has
accounted for as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

il SEERSHERMUER FERALERER
L) BEERNEREERHEATED®R BEEEEE
EBEH TEXRHE UTHESHEBEERERZH
#. EEBERZZIEBUEBARIAEATESA
BaMEREE-

The valuation of these financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is based on unobservable inputs which involves
significant management judgement.
HZERATEFABaNERBENGEDERAITHR
RWMARB ET S REXNEEREHE -

Due to the significance of these structured entities to the
Group and the uncertainties inherent in these judgments, this
is considered as a key audit matter.
HRZEERMEERY SEENEZMLUKER
FERFFEI BN AREN A ERGEAMBEZS
I o

Our procedures to assess the recognition of interests in structured

entities as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and

their valuation included the followings:

HR

REEMEREaRISRATES A BEaNEREE

DUIKREMGE HANTEREFEENTEE !

obtaining and evaluating the management’s assessment
regarding whether or not to consolidate the structured
entities that the Group holds an interest;
ERUsTEEREEHMAY SERFAEZNERBILE
BES S ARPIER TS ;

reviewing the terms of the relevant contracts, considered
the returns of the underlying assets, and assessed the
Group's power on and the exposure to the variability of
returns from the structured entities;

BRBASANGR ZREMEENER LTt &
EEHERMERNENREEEBIEERTERIRN
RE;

testing the controls over financial instrument valuation

process;
HEmM T AGEBENEZERmETAE
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BIAZENER S

NON-CONSOLIDATION OF STRUCTURED FEHEBEEERRBRATEFARE
ENTITIES AND VALUATION OF FINANCIAL NEMEENEE @)

ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

REEZER BAINEZLMFAREZER

o selecting samples and checked the appropriateness
of the valuation methods used and evaluated the
assumptions used in those methods;

ERER AN S ERPTRGMES ENEE Y U1
ZEFHEFERNRRE ;

o recalculating fair value estimates and comparing the
results to the Group's valuations and investigating
significant differences, if any; and
BB ATE HERE SEEMNGEE
TS THEREE WA) ETRE ; &

o performing audit procedures on selected financial
statements items of the private equity funds.
HIWEREESNECHFRREBEHSBEZE
o
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IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Refer to notes 2(f),
financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter
FREEZER

Independent Auditors’ Report

(o)(i), and 15 to the consolidated

VRS IR

ME - BERRERE

F2RGEEMHBHRRME2(f) (o)) K15-°

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANERMAREZEER

We identified the impairment of property, plant and
equipment as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as a whole
and the judgement associated with the determination of
impairment of property, plant and equipment. As disclosed in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment is RMB913,518,000
as at 31 December 2023, of which mainly are used by the
Group for the manufacturing of the multi-layer ceramic
capacitors ("MLCC").

HPEE -BERZENHES ABEEZEE 20
REREGREMBREBEBZEEZUURNEED X K
B Fe % R B AE B 2 FI B o S SN 47 5 A 75 R R Y 53 1 5FT 4
B R2023F 128318 X - BERRENRAESAR
%913,518,0007c° EEETEZRMFEERAZEMRES
As (TMLccy) »

There is a risk that the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment of the MLCC segment may not be recoverable in
full through the future cash flows to be generated.
MLCCAERZ % B E KR ENRBEFTAAREZES
AREENREREFZHNE 2 BK -

Management review the performance of the MLCC segment
at the end of each reporting period to identify if there are
any negative performance criteria which could indicate
impairment or reversal of previously made impairment. The
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment is
determined by management at the higher of the value in use
and the fair value less cost of disposal of these assets.
BEEBRSBRSHRBRAMICCAZRF LUBRERS
T?‘—JHEEETME%?@?EHUDHEMEZEHE\E%%EEW
EME-BERZBEZINCEEHEEBRAEEEY
@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁi“iﬁﬁﬁ‘iﬁﬁw UBREERE) EE-

In determining the value in use of the cash generating units
where the property, plant and equipment belongs to, a
valuation is carried out by independent professional valuer
with reference to a discounted cash flow forecast prepared by
management.

TEEM*: BERREBBZREELBAZERH
BER BIEXHEMSETEEBREZETR
FIRTEAEITEE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of property, plant and
equipment included the following:

HFEHEME BERREAENEZEFEENTRE:!

challenging the Company’s impairment assessment model
by assessing the impairment indicators identified by
management and by considering whether the discounted
cash flow forecasts supported the carrying value of the
relevant assets;

BETEEREEER AESR KA BRERITRER
EOXFHEEEEZRAE H SQRZRENLE
BRNES

evaluating the methodology used by management in the
preparation of its discounted cash flow forecast and the
valuations performed by independent professional valuers
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
SERTEAEIRETAERETRRESRITRE
AR FTERN A E KB IL FE G ERMAELAGE ;

comparing the most significant inputs used in the
discounted cash flow forecasts, including future revenue
growth rates, future margins and future costs, with
the historical performance of the cash generating unit,
budgets approved by management and agreements signed
subsequent to the reporting date;
RREMMBEBVAMCAZREEZHAYE (BFRK
W RE  RARM B R AR A) BREEL B E
FRBE - EEEMEZRERREHRREI 2 HEE
1Ttt$5( )

assessing the discount rates used in the discounted cash
flow forecasts by benchmarking against other similar
companies;
FEEEMBURAEEHR
FBRZIFEE,;

SHERERITRTAAPR
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Independent Auditors’ Report

BAZREMER S

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
FHREEZER

M BERRERE (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANERMAEREZEER

In preparing the discounted cash flow forecasts, key
inputs, including future revenue growth rates, future
margins and future costs of the cash generating
unit are determined by management taking into
consideration factors which include changes in product
mix and changes in expected customers numbers, all of
which involve the exercise of significant management
judgement.

ERHERSRITRARE > ZIEERHEA B (81
REEEBARRREIE R REFE R AR
RN)DHEEELKERZERREET -AZRE
FERSRITHEEREEEBHENERESEET K

Assessment for impairment of property, plant and
equipment, including identifying impairment indicators
and determining the level of impairment, if any, involves
a significant degree of management judgement,
particularly in forecasting future cash flows and
estimating the recoverable amounts of these assets,
both of which are inherently uncertain and could be
subject to management bias.

HYE BB R ERENTEEERIRETR &
EERENKT WA) I REAEENEIEEHE 15
AIRTERARRBEERENTLZEEEZ TR EE
EoEMmEXAGAEIEEN BESEEENR

2. 48
RE#o
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evaluating the experience, competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent professional valuer
engaged by management to carry out the valuations
of property, plant and equipment and to understand
the methodologies adopted and key inputs used in
the valuation of property, plant and equipment.

ML EEEMEBUREYE BRERZEHETHE
NETSEXHEMNEE SE - EHREHN
MR TRENE BB kR EGEBEFRFAERBN
T3 75 2 P (5 F Y A 52 g A\ B9 ©



Independent Auditors’ Report
BIAZHERS

VALUATION OF INVENTORIES FEEE
Refer to notes 2(q) and 20 to the consolidated financial FR2RGE M BHRERMEE2(q) %200

statements.

The Key Audit Matter
FMREEZER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANBERMAEREZEER

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and the
judgement associated with the determination of write-down
of inventories.

IMREEAEINABRERER RARGHREGSM
BRRERZEEN KEETEFE AR HIE -

As disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of inventories is
RMB195,314,000 as at 31 December 2023.

AR S M BRI G20 IR T > FEREER20235F12
B318% AK195,314,0007T °

In estimating the amount of write-down of inventories,
management reviews the net realisable value of inventories
periodically with reference to the condition of the inventories,
historical and current sales information to ascertain the
amount of write-down of inventories.
REstEERLEER SEER2EFEN R BEKR
BHEBERNBFEN SR FETHETR  KMEE
FERLEE

In addition, the management carries out a review of its
inventories on a product-by-product basis with reference to
subsequent sales and usage, latest selling prices and current
market condition.

o EREKSEZHBHERAR RNEENRER
ThRE ERFEEREENHEGETES-

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the reasonableness of the
valuation of inventories included:

B EERESENNEFEENTAE

. understanding the inventory allowance policy of the Group
for measurement of the write-down of inventories;

TH EEESEFERTHENTERFEER,

J assessing whether the inventory allowance at the end of the
reporting period was calculated in a manner consistent with
the Group’s inventory write-down policy;
AMERBERANEERERETRE SEEFGRT
BR—BNANHE

J discussing with management and assessing the bases of
management'’s estimations of subsequent selling price, costs
to completion and costs necessary to make the sale;
HEEENRITLEEEMAAHRER TR AR
WESHERARNEE ;

J assessing the reasonableness of the estimation of the net
realisable value of inventories with reference to usage and
sales of inventories subsequent to the end of the reporting
period and latest selling prices, on a sample basis.
2ERTAREBEENARKHEUA RSN ES
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Independent Auditors’ Report

BAZREMER S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards issued by IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

VR 2 Gl
BT B SRR AR 2 &

ZPNERRHGOMBRREEESAF
EHRRGFNERMERBE AR LI
SEERE THASERMERENZHBEAR
ToAREEMH BT (FRER) 2% Kit
ZHFRREREMABR - HABFEAIMERER
RNE  HERMEMALTEERREEZRSE-

GERBESKTHNRE  EFERIBERRE
BEFSENETHER AR -—EAHRRL
FERBEZR -HBRRA T LB IMFFHEER
Sl MRSERPCMEBEBEIERERAE
TEGROMBREERAERBZEIRAYME
R /FH BYAS T RTE > BB RR 88 5R R 2L °J 4
MBEKR-

ERESBEELETEZNARZEH > HM
BRHTHEEXENE RETEXEREE - KM
i o

. s Bl A0 Y 5 BB B BR SE SN BE SR T B W AR
GUBREGFEEANERRAN AR
Rt RBTESEFUAREELERR
URhERZTRMNBENEZESE  FH
RMHERNER AR IMFEAIES REH
mORE - BERER ERBERL UERE
P A BB EE S 2 £ o [FIE oK B 35 3R (X HR 5F
MERBEKIERRAAE RS ARGE
HMAERMERMWERERER A E

2
oo O
9N

. TR EZAARMBREES] > IR ETTE
EREBRATBEENEZER  BEH
WIS SEERILERNEREER

BER-
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BIAZENER S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2024

Leung Pak Ki
Practising Certificate Number PO8014

VRS IR

1?%5(Em%ﬁ%*ﬁﬁﬁﬂ#ﬁ%&%iﬁﬁiﬁZ%EEE

ZPERNEEEAEEERIER  RAHLM
ENEERBIMNERERERER 1A
MM EBEIESEMBIAEXLEHME
EMPRERFGENEMEERE UREBRNIE
T BEREWTELUNREE N ERAN
LI

NEFEELREREBEBNEER HMEE
MEFEHTIPAGEUHZRRNEZRAE
ZoEMBKREAREEZSIE FRIFARERED
AFARKRE  AEBEFRNBER T OR
CERAERMARSTEREFTHEENNE
HEREBBEEMNARNGE  SRMIRTE
FREPBEBRZFE SRIHMHEEZHER
ERHRAMEREE

BELEE(FR) SN EFFRBER AT
HED A
H#HE 202438278
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

fraEm A HMEENmR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
s AR%®TT AREBTT
Revenue WA 6 488,016 361,377
Cost of sales SHE A (410,147) (345,625)
Gross profit EF 77,869 15,752
Other income HAth 7 17,975 13,918
Other gains and losses Hhh s g8 8 (4,709) 66,781
Impairment of property, ME--BRER
plant and equipment R RIE 15 (80,688) -
Selling and distribution costs 5 & e D L A (19,965) (17,573)
Administrative expenses THER (86,183) (87,020)
Research and development costs IR 5T e B S AR S 9(c) (65,331) (56,307)
Loss from operations REEEEE (161,032) (64,449)
Finance costs =YD % 9(a) (34,224) (24,420)
Share of profit of an associate FE(E—EHE A B aF - 20,894
Loss before taxation PRI EIES I8 9 (195,256) (67,975)
Income tax (expenses)/credit st B /iK% 10(a) (28,260) 3,256
Loss for the year FEEBE (223,516) (64,719)
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEURE
for the year, net of income tax NBRFR1FIA
ltems that will not be reclassified to TEENHREEEAEN
profit or loss: 1=
Financial assets at fair value through BATESTAEM
other comprehensive income 2ElE (EAFE
("FvOCI”) STAHMPEEE])
NEmEE
— net movement in fair value reserve — AT EREEEFEE
(non-recycling) (R E) - 22,606
ltems that may be reclassified HEreBMREE
subsequently to profit or loss: B@WIEE
Reclassification of cumulative exchange RN EENBARRZ
fluctuation reserve upon disposal of RETERRBHEE
subsidiaries to profit or loss SN EEER - 1,232
Reclassification of cumulative exchange N i NET S
fluctuation reserve upon dissolution of REtEREHRES
associate to profit or loss MoEERG - (2,192)
Exchange differences on translation of HMEBINETEN
foreign operations PE = 2E 3,545 1,394
Other comprehensive income FEHME2EWE
for the year, net of income tax NBREASIA 3,545 23,040
Total comprehensive loss for FEZHEEBERE
the year, net of income tax NBREAISIA (219,971) (41,679)

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (e

FelEmhEMEEWNER @

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &E2023F 12831 HIEEE

2023 2022
20235 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s ARBFRT ARETT
Loss for the year attributable to: MUTFALRGEERE :
Owners of the Company KATEB A (222,148) (63,851)
Non-controlling interests JFIERG S (1,368) (868)
(223,516) (64,719)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income UTFTALTESGEEZA
for the year attributable to (B518) W zs48%E -
Owners of the Company KRBHEB A (218,635) (52,628)
Non-controlling interests FEIERGHE (1,336) 10,949
(219,971) (41,679)
RMB cents RMB cents
ARES ARED
Loss per share SREE 14
basic B (29.8) (8.6)
diluted e N/A RERA NATEA

The notes on pages 84 to 252 form part of these

consolidated financial statements.

E8AEEE252EMMEBRILEFNHFRE

H—&B 5 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR MR

At 31 December 2023 22023 12H31H

2023 2022
20235 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
W AR®FT ARBTT
Non-current assets JEREBNEE
Property, plant and equipment EN Y 15 913,518 751,965
Investment properties KREME 16 24,122 24,936
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, gt ENYSET
plant and equipment Frft¥esE 22 29,215 25,278
Financial assets at fair value through BATESt ABGE
profit or loss (“FVPL") (B AT EFT ABE)
HNEREE 17 41,032 256,179
Other intangible assets HithEArEE 18 443 450
Deferred tax assets RIS E 29(@a) 17 29,213
Total non-current assets EREEEEE 1,008,347 1,088,021
Current assets MENEE
Inventories 78 20 195,314 195,060
Financial assets at FVPL BATFESAERN
TRMEE 17 371,102 155,882
Accounts and bills receivables FEW R IE K FE W ZE 21 347,160 261,595
Prepayments, deposits and FANRIE - EER
other receivables HhEW EIE 22 44,960 53,670
Cash and bank balances IB& KIRTTHE R 23(a) 32,671 62,469
Restricted bank deposits ZIRFIERITFR 23(b) 14,236 =
Total current assets MENBEEME 1,005,443 728,676
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

ARE TR w0

At 31 December 2023 722023F12831H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
zx AR®FT ARETT
Current liabilities mENAE
Trade and bills payables FE B Z R B 245 24 116,045 60,769
Deferred income, accruals and other IRIE A FESTE A K&
payables HAE RIE 25 109,335 109,893
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 9,221 13,023
Tax payable FETRIE 13,217 10,968
Bank and other loans IRITREMER 28 715,807 420,120
Total current liabilities mENB AL 963,625 614,773
Net current assets MENEERE 41,818 113,903
Total assets less current liabilities BEEMERTRESEE 1,050,165 1,201,924
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Lease liabilities HE&R 26 1,577 5,884
Deferred income RIEUT A 27 4,144 5,111
Bank and other loans BITREMER 28 359,029 276,614
Deferred tax liabilities IRIERIEAE 29(b) 17,452 24,072
Total non-current liabilities JERENEELERE 382,202 311,681
Net assets EEFE 667,963 890,243
Capital and reserves BARMEE
Share capital (RN 33(a) 6,637 6,637
Reserves = 661,326 879,961
Total equity attributable to owners of QTR AELLEEZ
the Company 667,963 886,598
Non-controlling interests JEERE e - 3,645
Total equity et 667,963 890,243

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 27 March 2024.

Zhou Chunhua
BEE
Director

EF

The notes on pages 84 to 252 form part of these

consolidated financial statements.

R —

=)

FR2024F3R27HEESEHEL R BT -

Pan Tong

B
Director

EF

%84EEMZSZE\E’JW£%EB¢ ERGMH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

n\7|'\

B EER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE20235E128331HIEEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BATRAAREER

Fair
value Retained
Share Share Exchange reserve profits/ Non-
Share premium  Contributed award  fluctuation Statutory (non-  (accumulated controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve reserve recycling) losses) Total interests equity
& Ex ATERE  9ERA/
kx  BIYEER RAER REHE KB tEdE  FUEE)  (BHER) ag  EREG L4
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTm  ABBTm  ABBTm  ABBTm AEBBTR ABBTR ABBTR
note33(a)  note33()  note33(c)i)  note33(ci)  note33(chi)  mote33(cv)  note 33(c)vi)
e MESO0  MEBNON)  MERCG)  MEBOM  WE3NN 30N
t 1 January 2022 R202E1818 6,637 491,518 201,761 4975 (1732) 88,119 7,330 140,618 939,226 9216 948,442
Loss for the year FEEE = = = = = = = (63,851) (63,851) (868) (64,719)
Exchange differences arising on translation of  HAE BN EBAIELR

foreign operations ERER - - - - 503 - 19 - m 672 139%
Reclassifcation of cumulative exchange HREERBAREZ

fluctuation reserve upon disposal of ZHERRHERE

subsidiaies to proft or loss BB ER - - - - 123 - - - 123 ) 13
Reclassification of cumulative exchange FRESBEARR

fluctuation reserve pon dissolution of ERERRBER

associate to profit o loss ENNERER - - - - 219 - - - (2,19) - 2,19)
Financial assets at far value through other BATEHAHMEENER

comprehensive income - net movement SHEE-NTERE

infair value 2938 - - - - - - 11,461 - 11,461 11,145 22,606
Total comprehensive incomel(oss) for the year  EE2 WG/ (1) 4% - - - - (457) - 11,680 (63851) (52628) 10949 (#1679
Capitl reduction by a non-contralling HRATFERRRN

shareholder of a subsidiary EAHE - - - - - - - - - (29) (2%)
Disposal of investments in equity instruments ~ HERATFEH ALH2E

at Vol Wiz TERE - - = = = = (7013) 7013 - - -
Disposal of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries HEFLENBAF (H3i38)

(note 38) - - - - - - (11,997) 11,997 - (15,374) (15,374)
Dividend paid by a non-wholly owned subsidiary —FE3F2EHBATEMRS - - - - - - o o o (850) (850)
At 31 Decernber 2022 and 1 January 2023 RNRENANER

0351818 6,637 491,518 201,761 4975 (2,189) 88,119 - 95,777 886,598 3,645 890,243
Loss for the year FEFS - - - - - - - (222,148) (222,148) (1,368) (223516)
Exchange differences arising on translation of  HEENERFRELA

foreign operations EREH - - - - 3513 - - - 3513 3 3545
Total comprehensive incomel(oss) for the year ~ £E2E M/ (1) A& - - - - 3513 - - (222,148) (218,635) (1,336) (219.971)
Dissolution of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary ~ BEEGF2EHBAT - - - - - - - - - 2,075) (2,075)
Dividend paid by a non-wholly owned subsidiary —EF2ERBAREMRE - - - - - - = = = @34 (234
At 31 December 2023 R023%128318 6,637 491,518 201,761 4975 1324 88,119 - (126371) 667,963 - 667,963

The notes on pages 84 to 252 form part of these

consolidated financia
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘7r [ | iﬁ%/}lli%

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2023 2022
20235 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B sE ARBFT ARETFTT
Operating activities KEES
Loss before taxation PRIRATES 1B (195,256) (67,975)
Adjustments for: KEREE
Finance costs =% 9a) 34,224 24,420
Interest income M EUA 7 (242) (178)
Depreciation e 9(c) 72,389 73,011
Amortisation of other intangible assets Htvim i, & s 9(c) 360 560
Write down of inventories FERT 9(c) 37,953 54,680
Reversal of write down of inventories FEREEE 9(0) (4,643) (61,294)
Impairment loss of property, M2 R R sk R (B RS 18
plant and equipment 90 80,688 =
Net impairment loss of accounts receivables FESGRIE 2 R (B 5 18 3 88 8 1 1
Impairment loss of other receivables HMEWRIB R ERSE 8 3,904 -
Release of government grants as income BB A EABA 7 (1,769) (2,503)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME -BREMREZHE
plant and equipment 9(c) 2,879 101
Net loss from financial assets at FVPL BATESF ABmNER
BEBRPH 6 3,187 33,699
Share of profit of an associate e —REE AR - (20,894)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 2 W 8 - (2,729)
Gain arising from modification on other loan HMEREBES 2 WaHE 8 - (41,859)
Cumulative gain on exchange differences LR —REBE A a#
from translation of foreign operations HEBIEBENER
reclassified to profit or loss on dissolution ERRSNRRENDE
of an associate % 8 - (2,192)
33,675 (13,152)
Changes in working capital SEETEH
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =5 @gm R (33,564) 59,757
Increase in accounts and bills receivables FEUSRRIE I FE MR ZR 4R 12 10 (83,092) (82,762)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and BRE - RE K
other receivables HhEUGRIER 9,864 32,193
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables FE1T B Z R RHE
g, Ge) 55,276 (8,214)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income, FEWA B ERK
accruals and other payables HAnpESRIEE I, (Bi2L) 16,959 (4,174)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows conines

n\7l'\ EE%/}ILE‘IEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12331 H LEEE

2023 2022
20235 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B sE ARETR AR®BTR
Cash used in operations RESTHFAZRE (882) (16,352)
Interest received BIKF] S 242 178
Hong Kong tax paid Eﬁ%‘}%ﬁlﬁ (2,564) (3,327)
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") B E AR EME (THE))
tax paid I8 (1,310 (418)
Net cash used in operating activities RS ESMAZIRE B (4,514) (19,919)
Investing activities BREEH
Cash receipts from dividend income KEREWAZRERE 2,675 58,877
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, W BB 2~ R B Ko sk e
plant and equipment Fr{d# & (15,936) (11,959)
Payment for the purchase of property, BEME -BRERREZAR
plant and equipment (313,909) (316,356)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERZBNE
plant and equipment I8 9,200 43
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZRERAFEE 38 - 11,737
Payment for the purchase of other intangible BEHMELBEEZ(IR
assets 18 (353) (191)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERAFEFARMER
assets at fair value through other WamNERMEEMSRIE
comprehensive income - 12,707
Placement of restricted bank deposits EHZREIRITER (14,236) -
Net cash used in investing activities BREEEMAZRE 3 (332,559) (245,142)
Financing activities RLEES
Dividends declared by subsidiaries to B AR ST IFERERDN
non-controlling interests g8 (234) (850)
Capital reduction paid to non-controlling Eﬁ—ﬁaﬁ B 8 A B FEFERR
shareholder of subsidiary Rz EARD - (296)
Return of capital to non-controlling REN—EIFRENB AR
shareholder upon dissolution of a mIFER R RIREE A
non-wholly-owned subsidiary (2,075) -
Capital element of lease liabilities paid BNHEEEZELRED (11,674) (12,285)
Interest element of lease liabilities paid BENHEERGZANERD (787) (1,347)
Proceeds from bank advances for discounted RITRIREREM
bills FriSmR 185,351 133,990
Repayment of bank advances for discounted BIER1T ﬁuﬁfﬁ??}ﬁ
bills B (160,675) (85,447)
Proceeds from new bank loans WELIRTERFEIE 288,730 249,600
Proceeds from new other loans HitrELEERFIETIE 50,939 75,998
Repayment of bank loans BEIRTER (11,497) (18,000)
Repayment of other loans BEAMER (6,222) (53,530)
Other interest paid HtBEMAFIE (24,680) (20,709)
Net cash generated from financing activities FEZEELEZREFE 307,176 267,124
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (contineo

nT = iﬁ%/]ll%% #)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR®BTR
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁ%&*ﬁﬁ%{ﬁwz
cash equivalents L) /B0 ER (29,897) 2,063
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January BB ZRERREEEN 62,469 62,864
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEEXREHZEE B
changes, net 99 (2,458)
Cash and cash equivalents at R12B31BZRERINEEEN
31 December 32,671 62,469
The notes on pages 84 to 252 form part of these FIBEEF 22BN BALELRSM T
consolidated financial statements. WERH—F Do
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Tianli Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) was a
public limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 6 March 2007 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised). The Company’s
registered office address is the office of Conyers Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands, and the head office and the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong was located at
Unit 2711-12, 27/F The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 36.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Material
accounting policy information adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRS
Accounting Standards which are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from the initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

[tems included in the financial statements of each entity in
the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB"”) which is the Company’s
functional currency and the Group's presentation currency,
and all value are rounded to the nearest thousand RMB
except where otherwise indicated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
financial assets at FVPL are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS Accounting Standards requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

2. RUBERBEAGFAHREH (E

b) MBHRRZEREE

HE2023F12A31ALEFEEZEEHBRE
BREARNTRENBAGS KB IARER]) o

AEREETRERYHTRRANEESUE
REEMAMNEIELBRENEGR (T8
EBNFAE-ZFMBERERUAARE (AR
K1) 25 MARBEREARININEEENZA
EEMNESER BRIFZAFZH TRIFFA
KEONBERBAZARE T T

FRATESARGNEMEERAEATE
25 (BRFBER G5t BRER) I MBkRE
ZHRBEPOUBEEMEBEEERSTERE

RERBERVHZRSENNSAENRRY B
BRREEZEERBFHIE G5t REBER BH
HE - B RBREFERRNERNEE
BE-WAKRAXBNEREE A /G KA
HRXEERBEUETERNEEBBRLTRES
GENZEAEMEARFL BERBR T E
EREMERKCERSANEELGRREE
FHHENER BERERAANNZEIM
5t o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRS Accounting Standards that have a significant effect on
the financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainly are discussed in note 4.

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group incurred a net loss of RMB223,516,000. The
current liabilities included bank and other loans
of RMB715,807,000, of which (i) bank loans of
RMB141,077,000 are repayable within 12 months
from the end of the reporting period; (ii) bank loans of
RMB441,500,000 that contain a repayable on demand
clause but expected to be repayable after 12 months from
the end of the reporting period; which the Group did
not meet certain financial covenants of the relevant bank
loans as at 31 December 2023; and (iii) bank loans of
RMB133,230,000 which were originally repayable after 12
months from the end of the reporting period, but being
reclassified as current liabilities, as the relevant bank has
the right to require immediate repayment on 31 December
2023 due to the provision of the loan agreement.
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB32,671,000 as at 31 December 2023.

On discovery of the non-fulfilment of financial covenants by
the subsidiaries of the Group, the directors of the Company
informed the lenders and commenced a renegotiation of
the terms of the loan with the relevant bankers. Up to the
date of approval for issuance of the consolidated financial
statements, the negotiations are still in progress.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The above conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. In view
of such circumstances, the directors of the Company are
undertaking a number of plans and measures to improve
the Group’s liquidity and financial position, including, inter

alia:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

actively negotiating with the existing banks on the
terms and financial covenants of loan agreements
and communicating with banks on the renewal of
existing bank loans and refinancing arrangements;

undertaking certain corporate restructuring within
the Group including but not limited to further
capital injection by way of cash and/or capitalization
of intra-group debt balances to improve the financial
ratio;

implementing measures to speed up the collection
of outstanding accounts and bills receivables; and

exploring other debt or equity financing
arrangements.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
cash flow projections prepared by management, which
cover a period of not less than 12 months from 31
December 2023. The directors of the Company are
confident that, taking into account of the above-mentioned
plans and measures, particularly with the proven good track
records on repayment of bank loans and good relationship
with the banks, the negotiations with the lenders will
ultimately reach a successful conclusion and the Group is
able to restructure its existing borrowing facilities; and the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due within the next 12 months from 31 December
2023. Accordingly, the directors of the Company are
satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare these consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis. Up to the
date of approval of the consolidated financial statements,
the banks have not demanded for any accelerated
repayment of the outstanding balances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist
as to whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and
measures as described above. Should the Group be unable
to achieve the above-mentioned plans and measures and
operate as a going concern, adjustments would have to
be made to write down the carrying values of the Group's
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Q) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interest

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered. The Group reassesses whether or
not it controls an entity if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the elements of
control.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

- the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

- rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Q) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interest
(Continued)

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time
that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income or loss for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Q) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interest
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted,
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRS Accounting
Standards). Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss (see note 2(0)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

d) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale). The financial statements of an associate used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment. The cost of the
investment includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment, and any
direct investment into the associate that forms part of
the Group's equity investment. Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted to recognise the Group's post-acquisition
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate and any impairment loss relating
to the investment. At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any acquisition date excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment (after
reassessment) is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

d) Associates (Continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group'’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method,
together with the Group's any other long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate after applying the expected credit loss
model to such other long-term interests where applicable.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence
that its net investment in the associate is impaired. When
there is objective evidence of impairment, the entire
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset, by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. An
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the net investment in the associate. Accordingly, any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the net investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

d) Associates (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would have been required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

e) Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first
to financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets/liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

f) Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses:

- interests in leasehold land and buildings where
the Group is the registered owner of the property
interest;

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered
owner of the property interest; and

- other items of property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets arising from leases of
underlying property, plant and equipment.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

f) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:
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Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the profit or loss in the period the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

f) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

9) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(n))
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
Such properties are initially measured at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 40
years.

Investment properties also include leased properties which
are being recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased
by the Group under operating leases.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. A leased property which is recognised
as a right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group as
intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance lease.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

g) Investment properties (Continued)

Any gains or losses from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for
as described in note 2(y)iii).

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its carrying amount at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment” up
to the date of change in use.

h) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the Group's statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

i) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

i)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
measured subsequently at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
measured subsequently at FVOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured
subsequently at FVPL.

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the following
irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a
financial asset:

the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if certain
criteria are met (see (i) below); and

the Group may irrevocably designate a debt
investment that meets the amortised cost or FVOCI
criteria as measured at FVPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)
) Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets (that is, assets that are
credit-impaired on initial recognition), the effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
excluding expected credit losses (“ECL"), through the
expected life of the debt instrument or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the
debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted
effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows, including ECL to the amortised
cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying
amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)

) Amortised cost and effective interest method
(Continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost and at FVOCI. For financial assets other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in
subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Group recognises interest income by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. The
calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the
credit risk of the financial asset subsequently improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in the “other income — interest income” line item
(note 7).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Equity instruments designated at FVOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments at FVOCI.
Designation at FVOCI is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading or if it is contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling). The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the equity
investments. Instead, it is transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the
‘other income’ line item in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated at FVOC] (Continued)

The Group has designated all investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading at FVOCI on initial
application of IFRS 9.

(i) Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (see (i) to (ii) above)
are measured at FVPL. Specifically:

o Investments in equity instruments are classified
as FVPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor a
contingent consideration arising from a business
combination at FVOCI on initial recognition (see (ii)
above).

o Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised
cost criteria or the FVOCI criteria (see (i) and (ii)
above) are classified as FVPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet either the amortised cost
criteria or the FVOCI criteria may be designated at
FVPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (so called ‘accounting
mismatch’) that would arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases. The Group has not
designated any debt instruments at FVPL.

Financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not
part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
‘revenue’ line item (note 6). Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 37(a).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end
of each reporting period. Specifically;

o for financial assets measured at amortised cost that
are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss
in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item (note 8);

o for debt instruments measured at FVOCI that are
not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences on the amortised cost of
the debt instrument are recognised in profit or
loss in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item (note
8). Other exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income in the investments
revaluation reserve;

o for financial assets measured at FVPL that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
‘other gains and losses’ line item (note 8); and

o for equity instruments measured at FVOCI, exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the fair value reserve (non-recycling).

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI, accounts and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, cash and bank balances and
restricted bank deposits. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
and bills receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including the
time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognizes
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will
result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realizing
security (if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate. The Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(a) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(b)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(c) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ in accordance with the globally understood
definition or, if an external rating is not available, the asset
has an internal rating of ‘Low risk’, which means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no
past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
the following as constituting an event of default for
internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that financial assets that meet either of
the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or
o information developed internally or obtained from

external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event (see (i) above);

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower'’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(e) significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor;

f) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses;
or

()  the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the debtor has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Subsequent recoveries of an asset that
was previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the
recovery occurs.

) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (that is, the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE20235E128331HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and
does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset
in the statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there was objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets was impaired. An
impairment existed if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset had an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors was experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there was a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assessed whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that were individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that were not individually
significant. If the Group determined that no objective
evidence of impairment existed for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it included
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed them
for impairment. Assets that were individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss was,
or continued to be, recognised were not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On the derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on
the derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on the
derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

i) Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

k) Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a
financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when
the continuing involvement approach applies, are measured
in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out
below.

Financial liabilities are classified as FVPL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination; (ii) held for trading; or
(iii) designated at FVPL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

k)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVPL

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading or contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination may be designated as at
FVPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVPL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

k) Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVPL (Continueq)

Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they are not
part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest
paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other
gains and losses’ line item (note 8) in profit or loss.

However, for financial liabilities that are designated at FVPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value
of liability is recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that
are recognised in other comprehensive income are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are
transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition of the
financial liability.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note
37(a).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

k) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities measured subsequently at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination, (ii) held-for-
trading, or (iii) designated as at FVPL, are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a
financial liability.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign
currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains
and losses are determined based on the amortised cost
of the instruments. These foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the ‘other gains and losses’ line
item in profit or loss (note 8) for financial liabilities that
are not part of a designated hedging relationship. For
those which are designated as a hedging instrument for a
hedge of foreign currency risk, foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in a separate component of equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

k) Financial liabilities (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses (Continued)

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a
foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting
period. For financial liabilities that are measured at FVPL,
the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair
value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss for
financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group exchanges with the existing lender
one debt instrument for another with substantially
different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the
Group accounts for substantial modification of terms
of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new liability. It is assumed that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any
fees received and discounted using the original effective
rate is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability. If the modification is not substantial, the
difference between: (1) the carrying amount of the liability
before the modification; and (2) the present value of the
cash flows after modification should be recognised in profit
or loss as the modification gain or loss within other gains
and losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

1) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

m) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period.

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

— computer software 10 years straight-line

n) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease components and
non-lease components, the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

n) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognizes a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments (less
any lease incentives receivable) payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
if that rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred. Lease
payments also include amounts expected to be payable by
the Group under residual value guarantees; the exercise
price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise the option; and payments of penalties
for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

n) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to
their present value, and is reduced by any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities
other than adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from
COVID19-related rent concessions in which the Group
applied the practical expedient.

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is
accounted for separately from the right-of-use assets
in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to
investments in debt securities carried at amortised cost
(see notes 2(y)(v) and 2(i)). Any difference between the
initial fair value and the nominal value of the deposits is
accounted for as additional lease payments made and is
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to
the Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost of
the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise
a purchase option, the Group shall depreciate the right-
of-use asset from the commencement date to the end
of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the
Group shall depreciate the right-of-use asset from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful
life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

n) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased asset at the end of the lease term, upon exercising
purchase option, the cost of the relevant right-of-use asset
and the related accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss is transferred to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets, that do not meet
the definition of investment property, in “property, plant
and equipment”, the same line item within which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned. Right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are presented within “investment
properties”.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments, or
there is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
by discounting the revised lease payments using an
unchanged discount rate, unless the change in lease
payments results from a change in floating interest rates.
In that case, the lessee shall use a revised discount rate
that reflects changes in the interest rate. When there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option, the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate, being the interest rate
implicit in the lease for the remainder of the lease term,
or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date
of reassessment, if the interest rate implicit in the lease
cannot be readily determined. When the lease liability
is remeasured in either of these ways, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

n) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) and that is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case, the consideration in the modified
contract is allocated to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the associated non-lease components are included
in the respective lease components. The lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and lease
term using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification. The only exceptions are rent concessions
that occurred as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B
of IFRS 16. In such cases, the Group has taken advantage
of the practical expedient not to assess whether the
rent concessions are lease modifications, and recognised
the change in consideration as negative variable lease
payments in profit or loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position. In the
consolidated statement of financial position, the current
portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as the
present value of contractual payments that are due to be
settled within twelve months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

n) Leased assets (Continued)
(i)  As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease. Initial direct costs attributable to finance lease are
included in the initial measurement of the net investment
in the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value
model.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. The rental income from operating leases is recognised
in accordance with note 2(y)(iii).

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-lease is
classified as a finance lease or as an operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described in note 2(n)(i), then
the Group classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

n) Leased assets (Continued)
(i)  As a lessor (Continued)

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals. The Group
accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease. For rent concession under which the Group
legally releases the lessee from its obligation to make
specifically identified lease payments, of which some of
these lease payments are contractually due but not paid
and some of them are not yet contractually due, the Group
accounts for the portions which have been recognised as
operating lease receivables (i.e. the lease payments which
are contractually due but not paid) by applying the ECL and
derecognition requirements under IFRS 9 and applies lease
modification requirements for the forgiven lease payments
that the Group has not recognised (i.e. the lease payments
which are not yet contractually due) as at the effective date
of modification.

o) Impairment of non-financial assets
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets;

- investment properties;
- other intangible assets; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company's
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

0) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and intangible assets
that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (that is, a cash-generating unit).
A portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (for
example, head office building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if the allocation can be done on a
reasonable and consistent basis, or to the smallest group of
cash-generating units if otherwise.

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying amount of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

0) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
- Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

ii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the financial year (see notes 2(i) and

2(0)(1)).
p) Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

q) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(i).

Cash at bank excludes bank balances that are subject
to regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash. Bank balances for
which use by the Group is subject to third party contractual
restrictions are included as part of cash unless the
restrictions result in a bank balance no longer meeting the
definition of cash. Contractual restrictions affecting use of
bank balances are disclosed in note 23(b).

s) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the drawdown occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a prepayment for liquidity service and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

t) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares
are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.
Consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, for purchase of the Company’s ordinary
shares is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s ordinary shares.

u) Interest rate benchmark reform

When the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of a financial asset or financial liability measured
at amortised cost changes as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform, the Group updates the effective interest
rate of the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the
change that is required by interest rate benchmark reform.
A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform if, and
only if, both these conditions are met:

(a) the change is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

(b) the new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous
basis, i.e. the basis immediately preceding the
change).

When changes are made to a financial asset or financial
liability in addition to changes to the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows required by interest rate
benchmark reform, the Group first updates the effective
interest rate of the financial asset or financial liability to
reflect the changes required by interest rate benchmark
reform. The Group then applies the policies on accounting
modifications to the additional changes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

V) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(ij)  Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share award scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”) of the Company.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial lattice model or Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model, if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

V) Employee benefits (Continued)
(ij)  Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting
is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition,
which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings/
loss per share.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

w) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided that those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, the entity has sufficient
taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, which will result in
taxable amounts against which the unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

w) Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination) and do not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless
it is probable that they will reverse in the future, and
temporary differences related to income taxes arising from
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted to implement the
Pillar Two model rules published by the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

w) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

= in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. If it
is probable that the taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, the Group shall determine the
taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits or tax rates consistently with the tax
treatment used or planned to be used by a group entity in
its income tax filings. If it is not probable that the taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the Group
shall reflect the effect of uncertainty in determining the
related taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits or tax rates, by using either the
most likely amount method or the expected value method,
depending on which method the Group expects to better
predict the resolution of the uncertainty.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

X) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts

(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

(ii) Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract, which consist of both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct
labour and materials); and an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling contracts for example,
an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling that
contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are measured
at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of fulfilling with
the contract.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

y) Revenue recognition

In determining whether the Group acts as a principal or
as an agent, it considers whether it obtains control of the
products or services before they are transferred to the
customers. Control refers to the Group’s ability to direct the
use of and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
from the products or services.

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods or the provision of services or the
use by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when a performance obligation is
satisfied, that is, when control over a product or service
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration
to which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding
those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

y) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration that is, only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer
for more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amount receivable, discounted using
the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer at contract
inception, and interest income is accrued separately under
the effective interest method. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method.
The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the
consideration for any effects of a significant financing
component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

y) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the products. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other goods and/or
services, then the amount of revenue recognised is an
appropriate proportion of the total transaction price under
the contract, allocated between all the goods and services
promised under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

(i)  Advisory and management services

Revenue from the provision of advisory and management
services is recognised over the scheduled period on a
straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

(iij)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(iv)  Finance lease income

The income under finance lease is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss using the effective
interest rate implicit in the lease over the term of the lease.
Contingent rent is recognised as income in the period in
which it is earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

y) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(v) Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

(v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets (other
than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets) measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rates
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset.

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised as income in profit or loss of the period in
which it becomes receivable. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful life of the related asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except
those arising from foreign currency borrowings used as
effective hedge a net investment in a foreign operation
which are recognised in other comprehensive income and
for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised initially in other comprehensive income
and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group's net investment in the foreign
operation.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates and
are not re-translated. The transaction date is the date on
which the Group initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured. When a fair value gain
or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit
or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value gain
or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into
RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in consolidated equity in the
exchange fluctuation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in an associate/a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences is re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and is not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint
ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control respectively), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss. Settlements of monetary items
which formed part of net investment in foreign operations
without changes in the Group’s ownership interests is not
considered as partial disposals.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

aa) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Any specific borrowing that remains outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

ab) Related parties

a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Group;
ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

ac) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's board of directors (the chief operating decision
maker) for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB to these
financial statements for the current accounting period
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2023:

IFRS 17 and
the Related
Amendments
Amendments to
IAS 1 and IFRS
Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to

Insurance Contracts

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estimates

IAS 8
Amendments to Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
IAS 12 Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction
International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules

Amendments to
IAS 12
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group has not applied any amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards that are not yet mandatorily effective
for the current accounting period. The application of the
new and amendments to IFRS Accounting standards in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

IAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it
can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such
information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate
how an entity applies the “four-step materiality process”
to accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE20235E128331HIEEE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject
to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting policy may
require items in financial statements to be measured in a
way that involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the
accounting policy may require such items to be measured
at monetary amounts that cannot be observed directly
and must instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective
set out by the accounting policy. Developing accounting
estimates involves the use of judgements or assumptions
based on the latest available, reliable information. In
addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in
IAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
in paragraphs 15 and 24 of IAS 12 Income Taxes so that it
no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition,
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

The amendments apply to income taxes arising from tax
law enacted or substantively enacted to implement the
Pillar Two model rules published by the Organisation for
Economic Cooperation and Development, including tax law
that implements qualified domestic minimum top-up taxes
described in those rules.

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year retrospectively. In accordance with the
transitional provisions, the Group applies the mandatory
temporary exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related
to Pillar Two income taxes. Following the amendments,
the Group is required to disclose that it has applied the
exception and to disclose separately its current tax expense
(income) related to Pillar Two income taxes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTIES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

a) Significant accounting judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following accounting
judgements:

(i) Preparation of the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis

The events or conditions, along with other matters set forth
in Note 2(b), indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Based on the cash flow
forecast of the Group prepared by the management and
assuming success of the measures set forth in Note 2(b),
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Group would have adequate funds to meet its liabilities
as and when they fall due at least twelve months from
the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company consider it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

a) Significant accounting judgements (Continued)

(ii) Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independent of the other assets held by the
Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify
as an investment property.

(iiij)  Control on structured entities

The Group’s management needs to assess whether the
Group has all the following: (a) power over the structured
entity; (b) exposure to significant variable returns from its
involvement with the structured entity; and (c) the ability
to use its power over the structured entity to affect its
returns. If such power, exposure and ability exist, the Group
has to consolidate such structured entity. When the Group
served as manager or trustee of the structured entity,
the Group uses the following judgement to determine
whether control exists in a structured entity: the scope of
decision-making as a manager or trustee, the power held
by other parties, the remuneration and the exposure to
variability of returns.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

a) Significant accounting judgements (Continued)
(iiij)  Control on structured entities (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls a
structured entity if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

For private equity funds where the Group involves as both
general partner and limited partner, the Group assesses
whether the combination of investments it holds together
with its remuneration creates exposure to variability of
returns from the activities of the fund that is of such
significance that it indicates that the fund manager is a
principal. The fund shall be consolidated if the Group acts
in the role of principal.

(iv) Classification of financial assets

The Group's management needs to make critical judgement
in classifying financial assets based on the purpose
and nature on the initial recognition date. Due to the
differences of the subsequent measurement of financial
assets, the classification will affect the financial position
and operating results.

(v)  Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowance for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in the tables in note 37(b).
The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainties
(i) Impairment assessment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has
to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any
indicator that may affect the asset value; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amount including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the assets belong, including allocation of corporate assets
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined at
the smallest group of cash generating units, for which the
relevant corporate assets have been allocated. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rate or the growth rates in a cash flow projection, could
materially affect the recoverable amount.

At 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and
investment properties subject to impairment assessment
are RMB913,518,000 and RMB24,122,000 (2022:
RMB751,965,000 and RMB24,936,000) respectively,
after taking into account the impairment losses of
RMB80,688,000 and RMBnil (2022: RMBnil and RMBnil) in
respect of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties that have been recognised respectively. Details
of the impairment of property, plant and equipment are
disclosed in note 15.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainties
(Continued)

(ij)  Fair value of financial instruments (Carrying
amount: RMB412,134,000 (2022: 412,061,000))

The Group uses valuation technique for financial
instruments which are not quoted in an active market.
Valuation techniques include the use of discounted cash
flows analysis or other valuation methods as appropriate.
To the extent practical, models use only observable data.
However, areas such as cash flows, credit risk, volatilities,
discount rates and correlations require management to
make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the estimated fair value of financial
instruments. As at 31 December 2023, the total fair value
of level 3 financial assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis amounted to RMB412,134,000 (2022:
RMB412,061,000).

(iiij)  Write-down of inventories to net realizable
value (Carrying amount: RMB195,314,000
(2022: RMB195,060,000))

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down amount
involves management'’s judgement and estimates. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will have an
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and the
write-down charge/write-back amount in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainties
(Continued)

(iv) Estimated useful lives and estimated residual
values of property, plant and equipment
and investment property (Carrying amount:
RMB937,640,000 (2022: RMB776,901,000))

In determining the estimated useful lives and estimated
residual values of items of property, plant and equipment,
and investment property the Group has to consider various
factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production, or
from a change in the market demand for the product or
service output of the asset, expected usage of the asset,
expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the
asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based
on the experience of the Group with similar assets that
are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is made
if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment are different from
the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period based on
changes in circumstances.

(v) Deferred tax assets (Carrying amount:
RMB17,000 (2022: RMB29,213,000))

The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future, which is a key
source of estimation uncertainty. In cases where the actual
future taxable profits generated are less or more than
expected, or changes in facts and circumstances which
result in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a
material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit
or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainties
(Continued)

(vi)  Provision of ECL for accounts and bills
receivables (Carrying amount: RMB347, 160,000
(2022: RMB261,595,000))

Accounts receivables and bills receivables with significant
balances and credit-impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

In addition, the Group uses practical expedient in
estimating ECL on accounts and bills receivables which
are not assessed individually using a provision matrix. The
provision rates are based on aging of debtors as groupings
of various debtors taking into consideration the Group's
historical default rates and forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group's accounts
and bills receivables are disclosed in notes 37(b) and 21
respectively.

4. EstFE KRG AEREN &

b) MHFHRERRZEEZRKR (@

(i) [ERIEREK ZERTFERT S B E 151
(BRET1E : A R 1$347,160,0007T
(20224 : A\ B #261,595,0005T))

AEREBRREERENBEREBERERE
BEMBEHRESRIRETER G-

o FEERBATEEL AN RERER
FE MR BT (AR IR IR & B W R IR 4 5 TR
HEEER REXBAREBAENZER
ANRES B EFSt RAEBELENER NG
ANMHABERAHLE DA ERSSEAF
RRBEZAEEEN - RNEREBH EMMaT
EELERMBENX LZEMEEENZ

2o

R EERRRERE S REEHRTE-AH
BHEEEERTEERUMRNERERRE
WER 2RI EE37(b) K211 EE -
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainties
(Continued)

(vii) Tax payable (Carrying amount: RMB13,217,000
(2022: RMB10,968,000))

The subsidiaries of the Company are subject to income
tax in the PRC and Hong Kong. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income tax.
There are many transactions for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the financial period in which such
determination is made.

5. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Board (the chief operating decision maker) for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following two reportable
segments. No operating segments have been aggregated
to form the following reportable segments.

(i) MLCC: manufacturing and sale of MLCC; and

(i) Investment and financial services; including but
not limited to (i) direct investments in debt, equity
and/or any other asset; (ii) asset management; (iii)
provision of financial advisory services; and (iv)
financial technologies.
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AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Board monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following basis:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets,
deferred tax assets and current assets with the exception
of corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all payables,
deferred income and deferred tax liabilities attributable to
the activities of the individual segments and borrowings
managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortization of assets attributable to those segments. The
measure used for reporting segment profit/(loss) is earnings
and loss of each segment without allocation of corporate
interest income, other corporate (loss)/income, central
administrative expenses, central finance costs and income
tax.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment (loss)/profit, the Board is provided with segment
information concerning revenue, interest income,
depreciation and amortisation, write-down of inventories,
reversal of write-down of inventories, impairment losses
of accounts receivables, impairment losses of other
receivables, impairment loss of property, plant and
equipment, finance costs, share of profit of an associate,
income tax and additions to non-current segment assets
(other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets)
used by the segments in their operations.

The accounting policy information of the operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policy
information described in note 2.

5. EEwE (E
a) NEFEE-BEKMAER

ABAEOBRERDEDBE R BT HIR
UTEEERR RO BELZEE - BE
REafE:

BEXEEIN DHEEREEZBENEE
BNEE - REERBEERRBEE - DEE
EEESDEERBE A RMMRIE IELE
WAKRBEEREGR Uk BEREEZE

=+
o

WARRAXB2EREZFDBZHE k&
ENMAELERAININENHRBEZFT IR
LEEFMEEZHAIXMAOEEI 2R DE -2
Bo®EF, (BB MAZAEFERED
MEXRDEEENBRAHi b2 (B1R)
WA-PRITHER PRBEREKRARFR
BER T 2B KEE-

FRUREI AR ER (BB1R) d Az D B E KN
EXCRERHABBA CFERAITERE
W FERGL FERGCEDR BRRERE
BEEC-HEMBWRRIBEREGERE -YE BEK
RBEHEBE BREAEL BE—HBEQF
R FIERERAEDBRREEETFRER
ZIERBNMBEE (EMITERELERNBEE
RSN 2 D BERE K o

EENH 2B BREMN AW 2P AER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition, as well as information
regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided
to the Board for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022 is set out below:

5. EEmS E

a) ZSDEHEE -BERER (B

B E2023F K2022F12H31BLEEE » ##IK
ABIFBE D Z2ELEHWA  UKREHF
EEGUETERDRE D I RIRETTME
ZEREENERDBERHFIWT :

Year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023FE12A31HILEE
Investment
and financial
MLCC services Total
REMA
MLCC &Rl BR TS st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREBFT ARETFT AR¥TR
Segment revenue: SEA
Disaggregated by timing of S ON S S E IR
revenue recognition
Point in time BB HE 441,495 - 441,495
Over time PE B IR R - 49,708 49,708
441,495 49,708 491,203
Revenue from other source REHAMICRE Z WA - (3,187) (3,187)
Revenue from external customers REIEEE ZWA 441,495 46,521 488,016
Segment (loss)/profit E (BB18) @F (188,893) 30,333 (158,560)
Other corporate loss HhbE18 (875)
Central administrative expenses RRITHER (8,869)
Central finance costs RREEE A (26,952)
Consolidated loss before taxation IFERBISGR SRR (195,256)
Segment assets DEEE 1,360,081 652,784 2,012,865
Cash and bank balances B KIRTTE R 815
Unallocated corporate assets KOMEXEE 110
Consolidated total assets REEEEE 2,013,790
Segment liabilities DEEE 975,962 6,003 981,965
Other loan HEm 359,029
Other unallocated corporate liabilities HMKDELEEE 4,833
Consolidated total liabilities FEaEEs 1,345,827
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AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(Continued)

5. DEI®S @)

a) ZDEEE -BERER (B

Year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12B31HLLEE
Investment
and financial
MLCC services Total
KREMR
MLCC SRR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREBFT AR®TRT AR®ETR
Other segment information HithERE R
Additions to non-current assets REFERBEE 332,037 3,369 335,406
Unallocated Fnie -
335,406
Depreciation and amortisation EREH (69,638) (3,111) (72,749)
Unallocated Fnie -
(72,749)
Interest income FEWA 73 169 242
Unallocated corporate interest income RPERENBERA -
242
Finance costs E= %N (7,209) (63) (7,272)
Unallocated ROEC (26,952)
(34,224)
Income tax expense PSR (23,461) (4,799) (28,260)
Unallocated Fnie -
(28,260)
Impairment loss of accounts receivables U IE R ERSE (1) - (1
Write-down of inventories FERTE (37,953) - (37,953)
Reversal of write-down of inventories FE R Eq 4,643 - 4,643
Impairment loss of property, ME KRR EHERE
plant and equipment (80,688) - (80,688)
Impairment loss of other receivables HEWRIE R ESE (3,904) - (3,904)
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(Continued)

5. EEmS E
a) ZSDEHEE -BERER (B

Year ended 31 December 2022

HZE20202F12831HIEEE
Investment
and financial
MLCC services Total
BEH
MLCC TR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NS AREFT AREFT
Segment revenue: FEUA
Disaggregated by timing of revenue BWAERREBE 2
recognition
Point in time ANES SR 356,609 - 356,609
Over time PR ISR - 38,467 38,467
356,609 38,467 395,076
Revenue from other source FEEMIRE KA = (33,699) (33,699)
Revenue from external customers REIINEIE R Z A 356,609 4,768 361,377
Segment (loss)/profit 2 (B518) /BH (106,280) 9,855 (96,425)
Corporate interest income EEMEWA 1
Other corporate income HERA 57,757
Central administrative expenses PRTHER (8,700)
Central finance costs FhRBYE A (20,608)
Consolidated loss before taxation BREIE S EE (67,975)
Segment assets PBEE 1,188,425 627,962 1,816,387
Cash and bank balances BE&RIRITHE R 255
Unallocated corporate assets Kol bEEE 55
Consolidated total assets FRBEEBE 1,816,697
Segment liabilities REERE 644,048 2,059 646,107
Other loan HiER 276,614
Other unallocated corporate liabilities HitkpEtxaR 3,733
Consolidated total liabilities IraaEEst 926,454
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AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(Continued)

5. ZEEmE E

a) ZDEEE -BERER (B

Year ended 31 December 2022

HZE20202F128310EEE
Investment
and financial
MLCC services Total
BEH
MLCC TR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
N S N S AREFT
Other segment information HithnEHER
Additions to non-current assets NEFRIEE 360,020 69 360,089
Unallocated KN =
360,089
Depreciation and amortisation TER#EE (70,266) (3,305) (73,571)
Unallocated FnEe =
(73,571)
Interest income FEWA 170 7 177
Unallocated corporate interest income RPEELERSRA 1
178
Finance costs =N (3,714) (98) (3,812)
Unallocated Faliw (20,608)
(24,420)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisiiigse,/ D) 5,847 (2,591) 3,256
Unallocated ke =
3,256
Impairment loss of accounts receivables PR FIE R ER1E (1) = (1)
Write-down of inventories FERR (54,680) = (54,680)
Reversal of write-down of inventories FERE B 61,294 = 61,294
Share of profit of an associate FEE—RE = AT aF) = 20,894 20,894

There are no inter-segment revenue for the years ended

31 December 2023 and 2022.

B E2023F K2022F12B31B L EE > i E

B1S D BRI WA o
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

b) Geographical information
(i) Revenue from external customers

The geographical analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers by geographical location based on
where the goods are sold and delivered or the services were
provided is as follows:

5. EEmS E

b) HMEHEHN

() FKESEBERZHUA
REmHERRNARFBREZMEBEUESY

REBRBEIIEER Z WA H B S
mE

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥FT AREF T

Mainland China (place of domicile) A RE (& &P Eih) 416,026 322,777
Hong Kong 58 10,537 12,462
Other countries HEzx 61,453 26,138
488,016 361,377

(ii)  Non-current assets

No non-current assets information is presented for the
Group's geographical location, as over 90% of the Group's
non-current assets (excluding financial instruments and
deferred tax assets) is located in Mainland China.

) Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group
are as follows:

(i) FERBEE

HRAEBEFASHEE (TEEEMIARE
JEFRIEE E) #190 % i it A7 B A fE > (K I I =
MAEEZMEBUEZIERBEEEN -
0 BAREEFRZEH

RERMEEEMTIERRERABEI0RLNE
FWAMT :

2023 2022

2023% 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR  ARMT

MLCC segment MLCC%3 &B

Customer A ZEA 72,250 63,495
Customer B =ZFB 66,965 N/AR 38 A3 *

3 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of * HEREBAN BN EREES M AERERANI0%

the total revenue of the Group for the relevant year.
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AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. DEIERE (&
d)  Revenue from major products and services d) XREFEERRERFZWA
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its UTARATXEERBEFEEELERBZHRAD
major products and services M
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®EFT AREFT
Sale of MLCC MLCCEHE 441,495 356,609
Assets management fee income BESEE&NKA 49,708 38,467
Net loss from fund investments EEREREFEE (3,187) (33,699)
Revenue from investment and financial services R BB E &R ARFEAIWA 46,521 4,768
488,016 361,377
6. REVENUE 6. KA
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing KEBZFEEBANEREEMLCCREKE
and sale of MLCC and investment and financial services. BB RARFS ©
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers REIZELARFENIDZ2EREGHOUWRA
by major products or service lines is as follows: wr
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR¥T T
Revenue from contracts with customers FTEERI RS 2R 1558
within the scope of IFRS 15 HENELSHUWA
Sale of MLCC MLCCEHE 441,495 356,609
Assets management fee income BEBEBRA 49,708 38,467
491,203 395,076
Revenue from other sources R B H AR Z WA
Net loss from financial assets at FVPL BAFEEFABTN
TREEBEFRE (3,187) (33,699)
Total revenue AN 488,016 361,377
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

6.

Notes:

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic markets
is disclosed in note 5.

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising from
contracts with customers in existence at the reporting date:

All sales contracts with customers for MLCC are for periods of
one year or less. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Contracts for asset management service typically have the
same terms with the funds managed by the Group, which
ranged from 3 to 7 years and are subject to extension of 2 to
4 years, in which the Group bills a fixed amount for service
rendered. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient
by recognising revenue in the amount to which the Group
has the right to invoice. As permitted under IFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.
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AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hthlk sz
2023 2022
20234 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBTF T
Interest income on financial assets BN A2 SMBEE
measured at amortised cost B A —RITH B WA
— bank interest income 242 178
Gross rental income from investment properties 2R B EY)EMH S A 4858 3,740 3,182
Government grants (note) B fE AL (IaE) 9,072 7,262
Release of government grants BB AR WA (Hf5E27)
as income (note 27) 1,769 2,503
Other management fee income HMEEEWA 578 515
Sundry income MIEWA 2,574 278
17,975 13,918
Note:  Government grants represented the subsidy to the Group Hiat . BURRREIE PR E A LR 2R TEEAR
by the government of the PRC as incentive primarily Bh 35 e DA B 7 B B B R Y 3t 5 AR B IR AR
to encourage the development of the Group and the Bl ZEHUBRFERBRIRMFREMRAS
contribution to the local economic development. There are fre
no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to
these grants.
In 2022, the Group successfully applied for funding 202285 REBRIHIEBBHNRIINEBEIEE
support from the Employment Support Scheme under the SRR EAEPRBFITESIF ZEEZ
Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the Hong Kong Government. ENRACERHMBIR UBEREEER
The purpose of the funding is to provide financial support to BZRE -REZMLZIGIRTE  FEEE R
enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise METSETRE TARMAEZSEERANI M
be made redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group RE#E -
is required not to make redundancies during the subsidy
period and to spend all the funding on paying wages to the
employees.
8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HftmKkEiR
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBT T
Impairment loss of accounts receivables, FE N R IE R (B 5 187 38
net (note 37(b)) (H15%37(b)) (1) (1)
Impairment loss of other receivables (note 37(b)) EMEKRERERSE
(H1a£37(b)) (3,904) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) HERBRAR Z W #aE38) - 2,729
Gain arising from extinguishment of other loan & ERESHMEREE
upon modification (note 23(c)) W (B1E£23(c)) - 41,859
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain ER (B518) /W35 (804) 20,002
Cumulative gain on exchange differences from  FhEREI— = A BB IREEIH
translation of foreign operations reclassified to ~ EFFHIER EZRER W EEH
profit or loss on dissolution of an associate NEEER - 2,192
(4,709) 66,781
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRMAIRSIE

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting)
the following:

RiIgABEENG GTA) TFEE

a) Finance costs a) E= D%
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT ARBET T
Interest on bank loans (note 23(c)) RITER R B (B5223(c)) 24,560 20,955
Interest on other loans (note 23(c) HtBEHRZHE (H5223() 27,072 21,717
Interest on lease liabilities (note 23(c)) HEsGEZME Wat23(c) 787 1,347
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not ~ W IEIRAFEF ABm
at fair value through profit or loss THEEMN SR 52,419 44,019
Less: Amounts capitalised in the cost of B BERNMEAREREE
qualifying assets A 2 I8 (18,195) (19,599)
34,224 24,420
b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) b) BTRE (BIEESEME)
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT
Salaries, wages and other benefits (notes i and i) ¥% ~ T & K EtEF
(eI 141,595 142,671
Contributions to defined contribution retirement & ZBHEFUGR AR~
plans (notes i and i) (1% %ii) 11,283 12,005
152,878 154,676
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AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 9.

BRIRAIESIR (B2

) Other items ) HithEH
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Mz ARBTE  ARETRH
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFSRHEE 373,529 348,933
Write-down of inventories EFEeRE 37,953 54,680

Reversal of write-down of inventories FERECER] (B a2i)

(note iii) (4,643) (61,294)
Cost of inventories (note i) FERAK (i) 406,839 342,319
Depreciation charge TERZ

— owned property, plant and equipment —BEBYE -REKEE 56,717 58,349

— investment property —KREY= 814 681

— right-of-use assets —fERAEEE 14,858 13,981
Depreciation (notes i and i) HE (W12 %) 15& 16 72,389 73,011
Amortisation of other intangible assets HMmp & E e 18 360 560
Research and development costs: PSR RS AR A -

Current year expenditure (note i) KEERZ (Wati) 65,331 56,307
Short term lease MHAAE 694 665
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BTN &

— audit services —IZH AR 1,499 1,434

— non-audit services —IERZEARTS 309 306
Impairment loss of property, MR E R E R ERE

plant and equipment 15 80,688 =
Impairment loss of accounts receivables,  FEUERIER(EES18 558>

net* 37(b) 1 1
Impairment loss of other receivables* HAE W IR E R 37(b) 3,904 =
Donation Ei=EN 18 43
Loss on disposal of property, HEMZE -BER&EZEE

plant and equipment 2,879 101
Rental income on investment properties R &Y EB S W AR EE

less direct outgoings of RMB447,000 AR #447,00070

(2022: RMB300,000) (2022F | ARH#E

300,0007T) (3,293) (2,882)
& The impairment loss of accounts receivables and other * FEUS RIS e H A FE SR IE 2 BB BB s AR &8s

receivables is included in “other gains and losses” of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

RE e EU R T E ik s B4R o

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZREMARAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &%

165



Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

0. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 0.
Notes: Hiat
(i) Cost of inventories includes depreciation of RMB57,036,000 (i)

(2022: RMB56,386,000) and staff costs of RMB81,833,000
(2022: RMB73,813,000), which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

(ii) Included in research and development costs are depreciation (i)
of RMB3,099,000 (2022: RMB3,521,000) and staff costs of
RMB23,087,000 (2022: RMB21,333,000), which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately
above.

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was a (iif)
reversal of write-down of inventories of RMB4,643,000 (2022:
RMB61,294,000) due to an increase in the estimated net
realisable value and subsequent usage and sale of obsolete

PRISAIRSHE (2

FERAEIEITE ARHE57,036,0007T (20224 :
AR #856,386,0007T) K £ T 24 A R#81,833,000
76 (20224 : AR#73,813,0007T) @ REFEESH
R EX BB E T 45ER -

MERMBERABIEITE AR3,099,0007T

(20224 : AR#3,521,0007T) RE L4 AR
23,087,0007T (20224 : AR #£21,333,0007T) @ 7N EL
RESER EXEBRE BTN -

REZE2023F12831HIEFEE » B Ao &3R0F
BNk EETER R ERETEESEE R
B A R#4,643,00070 (20224 : AR ¥61,294,000
o) ©

inventories.
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) 10. FRSMBSZ (%)
a)  Income tax recognised in the consolidated statement a) RNREGEzkEAMMZEREZRAESRZ
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income FriE#itE :
represents:
2023 2022
20234 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ABREFT ARBT T
Current tax BNHRIRIE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year (note (i) —KREEFBFER H1EE0)) 4,799 2,592
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") —KFEEFRHPEMSR
for the year (note (iv)) (T ZEFR1SHR)
(Hf£(v)) 470 600
— Under provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax —BEFERBEANER
in prior year BETRE - 24
— Under/(over) provision of EIT in prior year —IBEFEREMSER
BEHERE/ (BEEEE) 415 (29)
Deferred taxation IRIEFR TS
— Origination and reversal of temporary — Bt EENELE RER
differences (notes 29(a) and (b)) (K15229(a) R (b)) 22,576 (6,443)
Income tax expenses/(credit) for the year REEMEREL (E%R) 28,260 (3,256)
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a)

Notes:

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT)
(Continued)

(Continued)

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2023 is calculated
at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
for the year, except for one subsidiary of the group which is
a qualifying corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate
regime.

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits
are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are
taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
this subsidiary was calculated at the same basis in 2022.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, all PRC subsidiaries
were subject to EIT at the standard rate of 25% (2022: 25%)
on their respective taxable profit during the year, except
that FEIIHTFERZEREBER AR (literally translated
as Shenzhen Eyang Technology Development Co., Ltd.),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
recognised as High and New Technology Enterprise on
23 December 2021 and is subject to income tax rate of 15%
for three consecutive years commencing in 2021.

10.

a)

Mt -

(ii)

(iif)

FRSiA< (BE%) (&

(&

n=

FEBANESERNERBNAEREE 2 BE#
BEEZABREREEGNIMER

REEGFHERRFIEIZ16.5% (20224  16.5%)
IR SHR2023FEE B SR EE  EARER M
B ABREBRMABFESRREFNE T ZEERE
ERp[E3E

MZMBRABMES  EH2ER BT ERRFH
1#28.25% MR E BN - HERERINFH1Z16.5%89
MEE - ZWBRB 2 EBFISRBHFEI2022F
DAERE#ES B -

RENSHERABRELMES RARSAE A%
BZAS R B B RS R S R 1 B B B IR
8o

HZE2023F12831BIEEE  FIATENBATY
¥25% (20224 : 25%) iZEMERBRR A2 AEE
FERRMAHBM D ERER WRIITFER %
BERAE (RBZEEE2EWEAR) 1202145
12B23HERR B RMTEE> Wol522021F#E
BB = EFEEIR15% 2 MEBMAFTER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) 10. FrFIRA% (E%R) @)
(Continued)
b) Reconciliation between tax expenses/(credit) and b) MREREY (&%) BRBEARAMNEIAEN
accounting loss at applicable tax rate: BtEBEZENHER
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFR AR
Loss before taxation PRI ATRS 1R (195,256) (67,975)
Tax credit at the domestic tax rate HEMMIFAEZRIBIRSE (41,714) (11,527)
Tax effect of: UPRBZRIELE !
Lower tax rates for specific districts or countries 45 E & o ER 2 RIXIREK 463 (3,060)
Share of profit of an associate FE(E—EEE A B aF - (3,552)
Income not subject to tax BEFRUA (8,289) (15,529)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 40,539 2,029
Tax losses not recognised KREESR 2 MR 18 21,304 37,853
Tax effect of reversal of deductible temporary £ [Cl SR B REST —HEETD B
difference previously recognized ERMBEE 29,196 -
Tax incentives MBEE (8,050) (5,070)
Statutory tax concession EERTE R R (149) (141)
Utilisation of tax losses EANIERE (751) (402)
Under-provision/(overprovision) in prior years BEFE
BENRE (BREEHE) 415 (5)
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable FEINREAERETEMNE NS
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries A IKa A B 2
(note 29(b)) (Ft5E29(b)) (3,582) (3,408)
Others Hth (1,122) (444)
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year REEFREMREAS (ER) 28,260 (3,256)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 11. EFS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) BIEEBATEAFAEISI(NNERAE (RES
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the EMmER) RO F2PIRBECESMEUWT

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2023 #X20235F12A31HLEE
Retirement
Salaries and benefit Discretionary Share-based Total
Fees  allowances contributions bonus Sub-total  payments emoluments

HRfAs
i HEREM BHENHR  RETL Nt ERZfIR ol
RMB'000  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTT ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Executive Directors: BiTES:
Mr. Zhou Chunhua BEELE
(Chairman) (ER) - 1,981 16 14 2,011 - 2,011
Mr. Pan Tong (Chief BV it
Executive Officer) (1B - 2,161 16 114 2,291 - 2,91
Independent non-executive  HIFFHTES
Directors:
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus KRERE 162 - - - 162 - 162
Mr. David Tsoi BRUGRE 162 - - - 162 - 162
Mr. Xu Xuechuan B2ILE 162 - - - 162 - 162
486 414 2 128 4,788 - 4,788
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F12A31BIEEE
Retirement
Salaries and benefit  Discretionary Share-based Total
Fees  allowances  contributions bonus Sub-total payments  emoluments
NRGBA
e  HehEd BARHMED BBt Nt BEZAR <
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETE:
Executive Directors: BiTES:
Mr. Zhou Chunhua BEERE
(Chairman) (R - 1,891 15 il 2,077 - 2,077
Mr. Pan Tong (Chief AL
Executive Officer) (fTHaE) - 2,061 15 597 2673 - 2673
Independent non-executive  BUFHITES
Directors:
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus KRELE 154 = = = 154 = 154
Mr. David Tsoi BARUSE 154 = = = 154 = 154
Mr. Xu Xuechuan HE)|%4% 154 = = = 154 = 154
462 3,952 30 768 5212 - 5212
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

11. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Certain directors were granted award share during the year
ended 31 December 2017 in respect of their services to
the Group under the share award scheme of the Company
adopted on 14 July 2017, further details of which are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such award shares which was recognised in profit or
loss over the vesting period was determined as at the date
of grant. During the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, no equity-settled share-based payment expenses
were recognised.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
and chief executive as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office for
both years.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

12. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
two directors (2022: two directors), details of whose
emoluments are set out in note 11 above. The aggregate
emoluments in respect of the remaining three (2022:
three) non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
individuals for the year are as follows:

FRNLLEREHFALTEEMNBES (2022F
MBESR) 2HWFBHN EXWFI1-FRX
HEf=% (2022F : =8&) FEE - ERRIT
WABZEEH AL ZHMBGELT :

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT ARBEFT

Salaries and allowances i RoERL 3,379 4,315
Retirement benefit contributions RIAERHER 152 229
3,531 4,544

The number of non-director and non-chief executive and
highest paid employees whose emoluments fell within the
following bands are as follows:

HMBUTHEBE ZFEFT - FERITHAER
REmEEHEWT

2023 2022
20234 20224
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A#
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00178 75 £ 2,000,00078 75
(RMB1,359,000 to RMB1,812,000, (AR #81,359,0007cF
2022: RMB1,280,000 to RMB1,707,000) AR #1,812,0007T »
20224 : AR #1,280,0007cF
AR #1,707,0007T) - 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,00078 75
(RMB906,000 to RMB 1,359,000, (AR #906,0007cE
2022: RMB854,000 to RMB1,280,000) AR #1,359,0007T »
20224 © AR 854,000 &
AR #1,280,0007T) 3 —
3 3

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or any
of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals has waived or agreed to waive any emolument
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

HE2023F K2022F12H31BLEEE K&
BurEtNFMFESTHAEANRERLERSH A
THEABFERENBRBENBAEBRFN
RSB E NEE2023F &%20225%F12
B31ALEEE T EEERIETNRELRSH
ANTHELREBRET A EHN-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

13. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

14. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of RMB222,148,000 (2022: RMB63,851,000) and the
weighted average number of 744,750,000 (2022:
744,750,000) ordinary shares outstanding during the year,
calculated as follows:

13. BKBE

B E2023F K2022F12B31HILEE > I &
SINHEBERCTEARE  RBEHKRBIE
BERNEAKE -

14. EkkEE
(a) BREXEIE

ERERXEEBIIRERNASERA AEMGLE
IBARM222,148,0007T (20224 : AR
#63,851,00070) RERBITEINNZE B
BE N REF Y98 744,750,00088 (20224
744,750,0000%) st & WD FFA ¢

Loss Vi3
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT
Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share BRstESREXREBE BB 222,148 63,851
Weighted average number of ordinary shares: ZERMETISE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
‘000 ‘000
Fhe B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FREITEINN
outstanding during the year ARG N I98 744,750 744,750

(b) Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 is presented as there is no potential
ordinary shares outstanding during both years.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &#

(b) Sk#EHSE

Wi 25 & E2023F K2022F 128310 LS
ENESRBEEE RRAMEBEEEHY L 8
THEINNEBEZS B



Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ME-BERSZE
Office and
Plant and other Motor  Construction ~ Leasehold  Right-of-use
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress improvements assets Total
HAR
BF HBERME  HfR E  HEIR HEMRRE GEEEE 85t

RVBOOO  RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RWBO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD
Metn  ARMTn  ARETT ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR

At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated 120221818

depreciation and impairment NBRRHAERAE 21422 175,237 9,205 1,144 81,560 5,307 87138 481,013
Additions e 5 2389 604 4 - 163 45,135 48300
Construction expenditure capitalised ~ ERGNEERR - - - - 29208 - - 29208
Reassessment L - - - - - - 1431 1431
Transfer ag 2613) 6,976 Iy - (1003) - 2613 -
Transfer to investment propertis BA\LENE W)
(note 16) (4.745) - - - - - - (4,745)
Disposals HE = (142) ) = = = = (144)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ ERTER(E (454) (49,084) (5,215) (597) - 2999 (13981) (12,330
Exchange differences ERED - - 6 - - 50 176 i)
At 31 December 2022, net of R02E128318

accumulated depreciation and MBEHERAE

impairment 13615 235376 4,645 551 372,145 251 122512 751,965
At 31 Decermber 2022: RN02E128318

Cost ax 14,258 619,346 55,370 5,281 374250 8,209 178,499 1,255,213

Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERBEE

impairment (643) (383,970) (50,725) 4730) (1,505) (5,688) (55,987) (503,248)

(arrying amount Eiif 13615 235376 4,645 551 372,745 251 122512 751,965
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ME- -BEKRRE (&
(Continued)
Office and
Plant and other Motor Construction ~ Leasehold ~ Right-of-use
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress improvements assets Total
HAR
BF HEREE  EfR A8 HRIR HENERE [ERERE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEBTn  ARBTR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  AREfn AREfR
At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated 20381818 MRREHT
depreciation and impairment ERAfE 13,615 235,376 4,645 551 372,745 251 122512 751,965
Additions hE 5427 6,375 1,053 16 = 3% 3,728 17,694
Construction expenditure capitalised ~ EAGNEERR - = - e 30143 - = 301423
Reassessment Eff - - - - - - (19 (194)
Transfer ag 289619 165450 2,569 7 5765 - - -
Transfer rom prepayment BRERTE - - = = 6,941 S - 6,941
Impairment A (24452) (28,835 (429) ) (18,526) (47) (8,326) (80,688
Disposals i ’ (10,977 (151) - 827) (124) - (12,079)
Depreciation provided during the year —~ ERITEA(E (1,508) (49,682) 2,900 (404 = 2 (14,859) (71,575)
Exchange differences ERER - - 1 - - 3 ] 3
At 31 December 2023, netof 2023125318 AR Zs
accumulated depreciation and HERAE
impairment 282,701 317,707 4,788 807 204101 525 102,889 913518
At 31 December 2023: RNBENENA
Cost ik 309,304 780,159 58,635 6,023 22627 7501 179,981 1,564,230
Accumulated depreciation and EERAG
Impairment (26,603) (462452) (53.847) (5,216) (18,526) (6,976) (77,092) (650,712)
Carrying amount E 282,701 317,707 4,788 807 204,101 525 102,889 913518
a) The Group’s buildings are held under medium term a) AEBZEFVOE RN U EEEYNE
leases and long term leases in Mainland China. EHfENEE-
b) The Group has pledged certain property, plant and b) AEEBDHRBFETFYE HMERDLHE

equipment to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 (note 28(a)).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
certain leasehold land owned by the Group classified
as right-of-use assets and certain buildings with
aggregate carrying amount of RMB5,746,000 are
charged to the court for the legal proceedings
of a claim against the Group, which the Group’s
exposure to compensation not exceeding
RMB3,000,000, in order for the court to release the
frozen bank deposit of RMB3,000,000 (note 23(b)).
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d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Certification of ownership in respect of certain
buildings of the Group located in Luodin with net
carrying amount of RMBnil as at 31 December 2023
(2022: RMB6,535,000) had not yet been issued by
relevant PRC authorities.

At 31 December 2023, impairment reviews on
the property, plant and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) under the MLCC segment are
performed by the Directors since the new fixed
asset investment not yet achieved the expected
income due to market conditions. For the purpose
of the review, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit of MLCC
reportable segment to which the assets belong
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, including allocation of
corporate assets when reasonable and consistent
basis can be established. The cash-generating unit
represents the Group’s manufacturing operation
in the Mainland China. In view of the non-
achievement of expected operating results after the
new investments made for the new manufacturing
plants due to unfavorable market conditions, the
relevant property, plant and equipment in the cash-
generating unit were impaired to their recoverable
amount of RMB858,500,000, which is their carrying
value at year end and the impairment loss of
RMB80,688,000 has been recognised in profit or
loss and disclosed separately as a line item during
the year ended 31 December 2023. The impairment
amount has been allocated to each category of
property, plant and equipment (including right-of-
use assets) such that the carrying amount of each
category of asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use
and zero.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating
unit are determined based on value in use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on the financial budget approved
by Board of Directors covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated according to a constant 2% growth,
which does not exceed the long term average
growth rate for the relevant industry.

15.

ME--BERRE (&)

R2023F12831H > A EEHKREZF
EAARBZT (20228 1 AR
6,535,00070) 2 UM BETEZ & TIEFI
AEMEBAPEKBEEHES#EEE

BA2023¢12)§31E| EEHMLCCHE
ZWE-BERZE (BETEEEE)
i‘%ﬁ?i}ﬁi1ﬁ$ﬁ§’ﬁ%%ﬁii§§&
ERMHERTERBERBIHUWA - HR
BEMS ) BEZEANGTEERMBEN
AW El L EER A AREBHTMLCCH

EROBNETELEBELUNTREOE
FHOEAREEEHBRISE-REERD
RABDEE-HEELBURRTEER

RABRAMNREET AR HHRR
AR MRENMEZEEREERAREED
R EXE REELBEURERM
ME-BERRBEEDHREZHAKE
SR AR 858,500,000t BN F K ER
H{E BEFEARES0,688,000TE

RiEmAES WRBE2023F128
BIHLEEEEBRE - RESRE DK

EREVE -BEARB (BREERAE
BEE) BESEEENREEASCER
HEAFERLERES EERAEERT
ZREE-

ReEELBUZAROEBEZZRBER
EBEFEEE - ZSABEERESFERN
HEZVBRERBSBALEZHER
ERA -BHAOFHNREEREEE
2% ZBEERRRER > ZEEERE
FTEBHERTEZRATHEREK -
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

d) (Continued)

The key assumptions used for value in use calculations are
as follows:

15. ME- -BERRE (&)

d (&

EREBEABEEMRAZIZERRUT !

Gross margin
Annual growth rate
Discount rate (pre-tax)

2023

20235
EVIES 12% to 28%
FIERERK 20% to 40%
ITIRE (A 17.5%

The budgeted gross margin was determined by the
Directors based on past performance and their expectation
of the market development. The annual growth rate was
determined by the Directors based on expectation of the
market development and the business development of
the cash-generating unit. The annual discount rates are
before tax and reflect market assessments of the time value
of money and the specific risks relating to the relevant
segment. Judgment is required to determine the key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and the
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections.

The above value in use calculations were contained in a
report based on a valuation carried out by an independent
professional valuer, Graval Consulting Limited with recent
experience for this type of valuations in the manufacturing
industry in PRC.

e) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

BEEMNXDHEEREBERREAKSSH
TEERNAHEE FHRRXTHAEERE
THERNEAAFESELEEUNEBZER
BE FIMRERABBRMRAL KR KRE KBS
Bz HEFEREEIBZEERR - BER
ERERAFMRBAZEZRRBEEFFL
Hih BEEZRRZEFUHNREARAERAE
FEATE

LTHEREESEOHNBLEERGENME
EEXBEMAERAT ZMERS A - KA ER
BEERPERERETIHBGENHOERS-

e) WERAREE

REMEEENSONERREERE FE
oFWMT

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ANREFTT
Ownership interests in leasehold land in PRC AT ERRESIRZ
carried at cost less depreciation and impairment FEFEE L tiER EE R 97,293 102,430
Other properties leased for own use, carried at A ARITE RBEYIRZ
cost less depreciation and impairment HiBRABEEY= 5,596 20,082
102,889 122,512
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Notes:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
held for own use

The Group owns several commercial buildings where its
operating facilities are primarily located with office buildings.
The Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire these property interests. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties have
been presented separately.

Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as its
offices use through tenancy agreements. The leases typically
run for an initial period of 3 to 6 years. Lease payments are
usually increased every 3 to 6 years to reflect market rentals.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, additions to right-
of-use assets were RMB3,728,000 (2022: RMB45,135,000),
of which Nil (2022: RMB45,135,000) was purchase of
leasehold land during the year ended 31 December 2023. The
remainder primarily related to the capitalised lease payments
payable under new tenancy agreement.

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

15. ME- -BERRE (&)

o) EREEE (B
Mt -

0] FFERHEL M RIEFZEREED

FEEERSZEBEET HEERME2MANH
DNARE - AEERZEYFE D (BEARESEL
) 2 EELFHAE AN - AEE-REBRNHIBBURSG
ZEMFERD - ZFEANEHELIHEHBEE
‘25

(i) HtBERHEEME

FEFBEBHE RIS EREMYEERER
NENEN -HEBENS HH3EF - HEMNR
BEE3ECFEMURMTIZHEST

(i) EE2023F1N2A3ALEE FEETAREEAR
1%3,728,0007T (20224 : AR 1£45,135,0007T) © H
o #EE2023F 1283 1HIEFE BERELHE
(20224 : AR¥45,135,0007T) ° Flth = B H3E
EREE MEMNEMEAENRAR -

RE@mARREEEEMNMAXEESROT !

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B T ARBT T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class $Z1BRIE EE R B D EREE E
of underlying asset: HITER !
— Ownership interest in leasehold land —HELTtEEEE R 2,367 1,765
— Other properties leased for own use —HihBRHEEME 12,491 12,216
14,858 13,981
Interest on lease liabilities (note 9(a)) HEaBEZFE (Bit9a) 787 1,347
Expense relating to short-term leases BIGHATE E B RN 694 665
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. KEYE
RMB'000
AREF T
At 1 January 2022: 120221818 -

Cost B 7 25,078

Accumulated depreciation Kt e (4,206)

Carrying amount IREE 20,872
At 1 January 2022, 20221 A8 R RETHTE

net of accumulated depreciation 20,872
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BEBEME -BREKRFE HaE15)

(note 15) 4,745
Depreciation provided during the year FRITEREE (681)
At 31 December 2022 5220225%12831H 24,936
At 31 December 2022 and at 1 January 2023: 532022 12831H 52023FE181H :

Cost DS 31,117

Accumulated depreciation KEtieE (6,181)

Carrying amount FREE 24,936
At 1 January 2023, R2023F 1 A1 8 AR RETINE

net of accumulated depreciation 24,936
Depreciation provided during the year FRITEREE (814)
At 31 December 2023 12023F12831H 24,122
At 31 December 2023: 2023F128318 .

Cost DS S

Accumulated depreciation KEtifeE (6,995)

Carrying amount FREE 24,122
a)  The Group’s investment properties are held under a) FEEZEREVEARBIHBLNEAR

medium term leases and are situated in Mainland AT 72 AR P 3 o
China.

b) At the end of the reporting period, the investment
property of RMB24,122,000 (2022: RMB4,745,000)
which the certificate of ownership was custodied by
the bank.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &#
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Q) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the details of the Group's
investment property and information about the fair value
hierarchy as at 31 December 2023, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs, that is, observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the
fair value of the Group’s investment properties was
approximately RMB172,000,000 (2022: approximately
RMB177,700,000) based on the valuations performed by
Graval Consulting Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer with recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

16. REWE (@)
o ATEREB

TREVAREEN2023F12831HZEEY
XN BEHATEEBERNZEE  UIREER
MHEBREERFI3RIAFEFE2IFMREZ
NEEREDA=ZBAFERE - AFEF2
EREMBELEIMABAREBEZIBRREE
REEZHESABUTAERB :

. E—EhEE: AERAE—ERBAR
B (BEERHEREENREEE
S EREABZRE) STEATE

. F_ERGEE: FRAE _BREABE
(MR EEF—ERZITERH AL
B)FAEATE MAERAEEZNAH
BERBARBE - TR AHEREE
FRETBHEEZEARIE

. FZERELE: EREENTIEHER
ABEBFERTE

FR2023F 128310 K2022F 128318
AEBREMEZZAFEINNABAR
#172,000,0007 (2022F : N AR
177,700,0007C) * A iIREEBIE XS ER MG
EMEECXBREERAE (HAEHMATME
MENUERBRHNRELR) FHEHNGE-
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Q) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The details of fair value of the investment properties as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 determined by the external

valuer is as below:

16. REWE (@)

o ATEREE

R2023F K2022F12H31H > BHIMNEE G EED
BEZREYEANAFENEBNOT

Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2023 using
12023F 128318 AT EFELNIRA

Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEEREE HMEEHNT BEENART
BHIZHNERE BRBARE BROBABE
Description EH (B—E#H) (BZE#HR) (B=E#k)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AER®TR® ARBT T
Investment properties KREME - - 172,000
Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2022 using
1220221231 BN A EFE A KA
Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2 (Level 3)
MHRABEETE HMEZEMNH BENAT
BhZNRE BERHANE BHRGABE
Description HH =11 (EZER) (E=E4HR)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEFT ARETFT ARETT
Investment properties KEYE - - 177,700
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Q) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
valuation for the investment property located in Shenzhen
was based on income capitalisation approach (term and
reversionary method) which use unobservable inputs (Level
3) at 31 December 2023 and 2022 respectively. The key
inputs are term vyield, reversionary yield and market unit
rent. An increase in the unit rent adopted would result in
an increase in the fair value measurement of the investment
property by the same magnitude, and vice versa. An
increase in term yield and reversionary yield adopted would
result in a decrease in the fair value measurement of the
investment property and vice versa.

The Group did not change any valuation techniques in
determining the Level 3 fair values.

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (“FVPL")

16. REYE (@)
o AFTEREE

HE2023FEK2022F12831BLEEE R
FYZREYEZEEDRKRBZER L (FH
K88 E) DR ERBR2023F &20225F12
B3THZAAHREGARIE (F=BR) &7
AE - TEHGARBAFHALRRE ERLOR
EETGEUAS - RMNENRASEMEE
REEMENLAFEFEUERBEEMN &
ZIRER o FTER 4 B9 F HA [0] 3R X K¢ 16 5% (O] #k =< 1
MEERREDENLAFEAERL R ZTR
SR o

FEBYEREARCE=BRATENGEE
B B o

17. BAFESABmNEMEE

2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET T ARETT

Unlisted equity investments outside Hong Kong ~ &BMUINYIE EHRIEIRE
— fund investments —BEETRE 412,134 412,061

Representing: AV

Current portion BRERER 371,102 155,882
Non-current portion JERNHAER 41,032 256,179
412,134 412,061

All of the Group’s unlisted fund investments were
designated as financial assets at FVPL. The fair values of the
investments were measured with reference to the audited
net assets value as reported by the funds management.

FEBFAAFLTEESREDNEERLATE
SAABGDHNEREE - ZFRENATFEDE
2EZETEERAMERZIEBEREEF
BRsE-
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (“FVPL")
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, a portion of unlisted
equity investments will be terminated within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. The balances are
reclassified as current assets at the end of reporting
period accordingly. Subsequent to 31 December 2023,
(i) the general partner of a fund investment has received
unanimous approval from the fund’s investment committee
that the maturity date of the fund investment with carrying
amount of approximately RMB181,056,000 was extended
to 14 March 2027; and (ii) consent letters were obtained
from the limited partners of the fund, pursuant to which
the maturity date of the fund investment with carrying
amount of approximately RMB41,673,000 was extended to
24 January 2025.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, unlisted
equity investment of RMB155,882,000 at 31 December
2022 with original maturity date of 30 June 2023 was
extended to 31 August 2024, with the carrying amount of
RMB148,373,000 at 31 December 2023.

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. BAFESAABRZNEREE (&

R2023F K2022F 128318 HHIE EHRE
HERERBRREAREBI2EE NL LRI
ZEBRRSPBRBRENDEERFEE P
2023F12A31HR 2B (WEEKRENE
BEBAERESKEZET—NEE KA
BEHARK181,056,000cHESEHLENT
HHEREZE2027E38148 ; R(iVEBES
EREEANBEZ B BEEELOAR
41,673,000 EERENINPFRERE
2025418248 °

REZE2023F12H31BLEEEARN > 712022
F12831HEEEHHA2023F6H30HMIE
THTRELENIPHELERE20245F8H
313 R2023FE 12831 HNEEEEA AR
148,373,0007T °

18. HWEWEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AR¥TT
Cost D72
At 1 January R1B1H 6,436 6,245
Additions e 353 191
At 31 December R12831H 6,789 6,436
Accumulated amortisation FitEdE
At 1 January P1A1H 5,986 5,426
Amortisation provided during the year FAEBHEE 360 560
At 31 December 128318 6,346 5,986
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December 128318 443 450

Other intangible assets represent computer software held
by the Group. The amortisation charge for the year is
included in “administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

19. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED
STRUCTURED ENTITIES

To determine whether control exists in a structured entity,
the Group uses the following judgements:

For private equity funds where the Group involves as both
general partner and limited partner, the Group assesses
whether the combination of investments it holds together
with its remuneration creates exposure to variability of
returns from the activities of the fund that is of such
significance that it indicates that the fund manager is a
principal. The fund shall be consolidated if the Group acts
in the role of principal.

The Group served as general partner, manager of
structured entities and therefore had power over them. In
the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the variable
returns the Group is exposed to over the structured entities
that the Group has interests are not significant. The Group
therefore did not consolidate these structured entities.

The Group classified the investments in these
unconsolidated structured entities as financial assets at
FVPL.

The size of assets under management, carrying amount and
maximum exposure to loss of the Group’s investments to
unconsolidated structured entities are as follows:

19. RIESHEBUEERZ#ES

mEESEEN -—BERBEER
HltE s REBRA LT AT

ERABE

HRTEBERKFEREBGBAKRARER
A%M%%%%ﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ
HEWHNEN EEERRMEEESEIN

“@ﬁ%%%k URERBAESRERST
AN EFXEBREEZEAAARZEEZS
HARR -

FEEBRRETCEREERZEBGR A
EEA FILHEEFEERIE - RATESR
?% $§%lﬁ\%ﬁﬁ¢% E’J”M%IEEE—E?J%EB’]

nEI*%'&EEg /B:l:kﬁléo

AEBERNZEFEGHEBEERNRED
BRBATESFAEaNEMEE-

FEBHIFFEHERBLEERNRENEES
ERE REERRAGERKROT

31 December 2023

2023128318
Size of Maximum Income from
assets under Carrying exposure  structured
management amount to loss entity  Income type
REEREYE
ERBEERR REE RABHEARE BENORA BARE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®FTR AE®TrR ARBTR ARETR
Private equity funds hWEREESE 5,170,613 412,134 412,134 46,521
49,708  Management fee
income
BEERA
(3,187)  Investment loss
REBE
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

19. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED 19. RIEGHGEEBENERZER &)
STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)
31 December 2022
2022128318
Size of Maximum  Income from
assets under Carrying exposure structured
management amount to loss entity  Income type
RELEHEE
EHEERE REE ZABERE BEIKA WARE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ETT ARETR ARETRT ARETR
Private equity funds hEREES 5,096,724 412,061 412,061 4,768
38,467  Management
fee income
EEEKNA
(33,699)  Investment loss
REEE
20. INVENTORIES 20. &
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®EFT AEEEFT
Raw materials R 29,161 20,227
Work in progress TS 43,162 24,746
Finished goods B AN 188,547 241,118
260,870 286,091
Provision against slow-moving inventories HiHE ERH (65,556) (91,031)
195,314 195,060
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

21. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. BRFHIEREWVRERE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥EFT ARBEFT

Accounts receivables FE W FRIE

— Contracts with customers (note a) — BB &K (Wata) 262,530 208,384
Less: Allowances for credit losses (note 37(b)) B EEEBEEE (WaE37m) (8,474) (9,449)
254,056 198,935
Bills receivables (note b) W EE (atb) 93,104 62,660
347,160 261,595

At 1 January 2022, account receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to RMB184,677,000.

All the accounts and bills receivables are expected to be
recovered within one year.

a)

(i)

Accounts receivables

Accounts receivables consist of trade receivables
and asset management fee receivables. The Group's
trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit periods for accounts receivables
of MLCC segment are generally one to five months
(2022: one to four months). The credit periods for
accounts receivables of investments and financial
services segment are due from the date of billing.
The asset management fee is received or receivable
at the end of each quarter. Each customer is
assigned a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control policy to
minimise its credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by management. The accounts
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

R2022F 1B 1H  REER SN ZEIRTIEA A
R #£184,677,0007T °

PRA FEWRIE R B R BRI —FRE -

a) [MEUFRIA

iy, ERFECEERKBSHREREREE
EREBE- AEBERTRZEZERETE
BEE-MLCCOEBMZEKRRIENEE
H—EAa—ZEZREAE (2022F : —EM
BR) REKRERRFE DI 2 EUR
BENEERRSEHRERIP - BEE
BEERNESTERBERAER ELER
ENfi—EREEEE AEBHKE
EEWNAREBEERERESEZ URXKBEE
EHBREUREEERRBEERKE B
EEg TR aiim RIKRIES
RetB e
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

21.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Accounts receivables (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivables as

21. BRRIEREBKRERE (&

a) WA (B

(i) M|ERAXR BBEWRAEIBHZEK

at the end of the reporting period based on the MIERE2HAOT
revenue recognition date is as follows:

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B T ARBTF T
Within 90 days 90H R 74,163 49,796
91 to 180 days 91&E180H 11,208 13,017
181 to 360 days 181E360H 20,825 20,330
1 to 2 years 1224 41,553 51,593
2 to 3 years 2FE3F 46,349 40,800
Over 3 years 3FEM E 68,432 32,848
262,530 208,384

b)

(ii)

Bills receivables

The bills receivables were all due within one year
from the end of the reporting period.

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of bills receivables based on bills issue date
is as follows:

b) BN ZE

Bl

(i) FMERUERBEIHHRTHARES1IER
FH -

(i) MESHR REFLFLEAHRSEEZ
B RBZREDOT !

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETT AREEFT

Within 90 days 90HA 63,344 38,586
91 to 180 days 91&180H 28,260 22,399
181 to 360 days 181E360H 1,500 1,675
93,104 62,660

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &#



Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

21. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

b) Bills receivables (Continued)

(iii) Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety

The carrying amounts of the bills receivables include certain
receivables which are subject to a factoring arrangement.
Under this arrangement, the Group has transferred the
relevant receivables to the banks in exchange for cash
and is prevented from selling or pledging the receivables.
However, the Group has retained late payment and credit
risk. The Group therefore continues to recognise the
transferred assets in their entirety in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The amount repayable
under the factoring agreement is presented as secured
bank loans. The Group considers that the held to collect
business model remains appropriate for these receivables
and hence continues measuring them at amortised cost.

Management considers that in substance the factor (i.e. the
bank) collects the amounts receivable on the Group’s behalf
and retains the cash in settlement of the separate financing
transaction. The Group therefore presents the cash inflows
received from the factor as financing cash inflows and the
subsequent payments by the debtors as both operating
cash inflows and financing cash outflows.

21. BUWFRRIEREBWER (&
b) EBWERE @@

(i) RAEMBRHERLDNCBEBRTHEE

BREENREAEEEETRASREZHY

ROEKMRIE-RFEILEBERZS AEEEHFE
el FE WA TH 858 T iR 1T U IR & > Y388 2

ENERERMBURRE - RAM > ZEBNRE
BHERNKREERR FHIt > & B #ER R
EUBERREANEIEHECEREE - RIEWH
EITHNEEERBEUARIFRITEREZS &
EERA FAEWBMHNEZELDABRAR
ZERWARIE A EEZBHEA AR

BEERR RIEM BRT) BELRAREE
EWEERRE TREFRETUAENMNE—ME
R HI RERRRAREFHERINES R
ANARMERERA REBABERELNE
%’XEE%@J@%«%EE ﬁ)\&nﬁﬁfﬁi/)utﬂo
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

21. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

b) Bills receivables (Continued)

(iii) Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety (Continued)

The following were the Group’s bills receivables as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 that were transferred to
banks or suppliers by discounting/endorsing on a full
recourse basis. As the Group has not transferred the
significant risks and rewards, it continues to recognise the
full carrying amount and has recognised the cash received
on the transfer as a collateralised borrowing (note 28).
These financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

21. BRRIEREBKRERE (&

b) REWERE @@

(i) RE=MPRHBINEFEEREE (B)

UTAKRERNR2023FX20225F12831B2
ERER ZEEERBRE2EERERAR
REBEEFRTIAEEED AR EAEE L &
BEEAARKOHR HEEBEIZ2MBER
B THEERIMNIES RS EEER (M
28) RETHMEEN GV HFERAETANE
i 0H pl AR B BR o

Bills Bills
discounted endorsed to
to banks suppliers
with full with full
recourse recourse Total

REEEREE BEEEREE

MEFIRTT HETFHES

Rk ZER® st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBFT

As at 31 December 2023 52202312831H
Carrying amount of bills receivables FEUNZE R~ BREIE
Carrying amount of trade payables FE{J & 5 IB 7 BREE

Carrying amount of bank loans IRITEMZREE
As at 31 December 2022 120229 12H31H

Carrying amount of bills receivables  FEUR Z 45 2 BREIE
Carrying amount of trade payables FE{J & 5 R IB 7 BREE
Carrying amount of bank loans RITERZIRAEE

74,574 12,052 86,626
= (12,052) (12,052)
(74,574) = (74,574)

49,898 5,647 55,545
- (5,647) (5,647)
(49,898) = (49,898)

Further detail on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from accounts and bills receivables are set out in
note 37(b).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 22. FARRIE R R HEHMEUWTRIE
OTHER RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBT T
Prepayments to suppliers AR 2B 17,124 5,104
Other prepaid expenses HfEMHEZ 6,820 6,845
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, UTEBY2E ~ R BB &2
plant and equipment BRI IRE 29,215 25,278
Rental deposits MEfE 1,201 952
Other deposits Hihigs 835 249
Other tax receivables HAE IR IE 12,316 30,044
Other receivables (note (7)) HAhFEWGERIE ((H7520)) 11,419 11,327
78,930 79,799
Allowances for credit losses (note(ii) EEBBEE W) (4,755) (851)
74,175 78,948
Representing: (AVES
Current BN EA 44,960 53,670
Non-current JERNER 29,215 25,278
74,175 78,948

Notes:

(ii)

As at 31 December 2022, the other receivables included loan
amount of RMB1,527,000 due from an independent third
party which is unsecured interest bearing at 8% per annum
and with the maturity date on 25 April 2023. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the loan amount is fully recovered
by the Group.

The movements in the provision for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

Mt -

(i) 2202246128310 » EtEW R B IR R — 281
FZHIESTES ARNE1,527,000c 2 B GEI
R IR EF|FRB% 5T B HL2023F4825H FIHA) o
HZE2023F12831HIEEER  AEEE 2 H (D
ZEREEE

(ii) HEW IR REREESNT !

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT AREBFT

At 1 January K1B1H 851 851
Impairment losses recognised during the year FRERERSE 3,904 -
31 December 128318 4,755 851

Included in the above provision for impairment of other receivables is a
provision for individually impaired other receivables of RMB4,755,000
(2022: RMB851,000) with a total carrying amount of RMB4,755,000
(2022: RMB851,000). The individually impaired other receivables relate
to debtors that were in financial difficulties and are credit-impaired.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

ST A LA HL At FE Wik TE R 1 43 S 5 1B B! B R B EL fh FE IR R
E#E AR 4,755,0007T (20224 : AR1E851,0007T) » &
BREEAREE A A R 184,755,0007T (20224 © AR 851,000
7o) BRI EREHEMEWRIERmEMH RS EEAE
B TEETEERE AERTERILSEFHFTEEMR
RS E thinsa (s S8 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE20235E128331HIEEE

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, 23. HRESRIRITER ZREIRITERR
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND HthEEREER
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
a) Cash and bank balances a) RERIBITLERR
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETT AR¥T T
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIFEHEY 32,671 62,469
Notes: Hat :

U]

(ii)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and bank
balances and time deposits denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB20,211,000 (2022: RMB37,585,000). Although
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for
varying periods ranging from three months to one year
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group
and respective time deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks. The carrying amounts of
the cash and bank balances approximate their fair values.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &#

(ii)

REREHER AEBUARBIEZ RS ERITHE
BR A EHIE SRR ARE20,211,0007T (20224 :
37,585,000) - ARMTRIBHRMAEMER 2
M > AR B KFEZ (IMEEIRIRP ) K (58 ~ S EE
RNBEERTE)  NERBEBBEREETIH
BEFZRITRARBRIMEMEE-

RITRETDBES ARITERF BRI 5
A S - AEREMERBRENIIEAENERE
R 2 5 [ B9 RN B 3R <5 7R SRADME 3 & HAF /R R
T RTHEBEFRNEERFZRTAR - RERIER
TR REEREATERES-



Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, 23. RERIPITHEER  ZIRHIBITERK
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND HMIREREER (&)
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(Continued)
b)  Restricted bank deposits b) ZREIRITEFER
2023 2022
20234 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT
Pledged bank balances for bank loans IRTTEMNEIRRIRITAER 10,815 -
Frozen bank deposits for legal ERT AN R A IR TR
proceedings (note i) (Kt52i) 3,421 =
14,236 -

Note i: Frozen bank deposits included bank deposit of RMB3,000,000

frozen by the court for a legal proceeding of a claim against
the Group. Such deposit is released by the count subsequent
to the end of the reporting period upon the Group charge
certain properties to the court as a replacement of security
(note 15(b)).

At 31 December 2023, restricted bank deposits situated
in Mainland China amount to RMB14,236,000 (2022: nil).
Remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to
relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control.

Hfati: REERTEREE AR RS A E B EEREERFTR
MR &S IIRITFE AR 153,000,0007T © iR &5 HAK
B ZEEMNAEERERBIRE TYEESE
IR RIS AR IR (5E15()) o

72023F12831H » L5 AR B A #8932 R )
BITERAAREE14,236,0007T (20224
T) o BESTELHPEAMBEFIESEN
MHERESE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES,
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(Continued)

Q) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

23. RERVITLHEER  ZIRFIRITERK

HtREREER (@)

0 WEERHAMELEERZHR

financing activities

Lease Bank and

liabilities other loans Total
R1T

HEAaE HthEx “Est
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR¥F T AR®T T

(Note 26) (Note 28)

(MFzE26) (HfzE28)
At 1 January 2022 1220221818 29,567 391,046 420,613
Reassessments B 1,431 = 1,431
Changes from financing cash flows FEIRERE 2 EH) (13,632) 281,902 268,270

Extinguishment of other loan NEFEREEFEMER

upon modification = (254,019) (254,019)
Recognition of modified other loan HERET HME R = 212,160 212,160
Interest expenses (note 9(a)) B (at9@) 1,347 42,672 44,019
Exchange adjustments BE 2 FHEE 194 22,973 23,167
At 31 December 2022 and at 122022128318 &

1 January 2023 2023%F1H1H 18,907 696,734 715,641
New lease entered ]I FTFRAY 3,728 = 3,728
Reassessments B (194) = (194)
Changes from financing cash flows REIREME 2 EE) (12,461) 321,946 309,485
Exchange adjustments bE e R 31 4,524 4,555
Interest expenses (note 9(a)) A ERRX (Wat9a) 787 51,632 52,419
At 31 December 2023 72023%E12H31H 10,798 1,074,836 1,085,634
d) Total cash outflow for leases d) HERESMHAEEE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash HEESFAGERERERIANEBEEMLT
flows for leases comprise the following: K18 .

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®ETT AR¥TF T

Within operating cash flows REESHEEMEN 694 665
Within investing cash flows REERESREN - 45,135
Within financing cash flows RRIEIRESREN 12,461 13,632
13,155 59,432

Except for the investing cash flows which related to
purchase of leasehold land, all the other amounts relate to

the lease rentals paid.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 24, BIEBESRIEREMERE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT
Trade payables FE(T B Z I8 110,138 59,439
Bills payables NS 5,907 1,330
116,045 60,769
a) An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the a) RESHR REEEAEBEHHEAR

end of the reporting period based on the suppliers’ EZENEBZREBEZREDNOT !

statements date is as follows:

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Within 90 days 90HA 94,299 49,193
91 to 180 days 91&E180H 14,680 7,371
181 to 360 days 181E360H 323 2,019
1 to 2 years 1FE25 15 190
Over 2 years 28 E 821 666
110,138 59,439
b)  The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are b) ENESZREATSHE > —MRN30E
normally settled within 30 to 120 days. 120H AEfT
@ An ageing analysis of the bills payables as at the end c) RESHR BEBRELERAERES
of the reporting period based on bills issue date is as BUEHREZEREDHNOT :
follows:
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T
Within 90 days 90H R 5,907 1,330
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

25. DEFERRED INCOME, ACCRUALS AND 25. REWA - FEHERKREMESRIE
OTHER PAYABLES

2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBEFT ARETT

Accruals FESTE 4,086 2,302
Salary payables 3NE 32,642 36,306

Other payables for acquisition of property, WEEMZE - -RERZEZ

plant and equipment HAME I 28,041 44,756
Other payables HAERIE 19,568 7,264
Refundable trade deposits received BWRAIREEZ%E 13,373 6,209
Dividends payable FETIRE 88 88
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost ~ WM At Er SR EE 97,798 96,925
Deferred income (note 27) RIEW A (I1aE27) 4,300 5,102
Other tax payable HiENIRIE 7,237 7,866
109,335 109,893

26. LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, lease liabilities were

26. THE&\E
R2023F K2022F12R31HB  EEEZHES

repayable as follows: BT :
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B T ARBTF T
Within 1 year 1R 9,221 13,023
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBE2FRN 1,538 5,763
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FBESER 39 121
1,577 5,884
10,798 18,907
The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities MEEEERANEEERMMENTL44%E

range from 4.4% to 8.3% (2022: 4.4% to 8.3%).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

27. DEFERRED INCOME

27. REWA

Government grants BT i R
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B T ARBTFT
Carrying amount at 1 January R1B1BZREE 10,213 12,716
Released as income (note 7) ERIEWA (Hfz27) (1,769) (2,503)
Carrying amount at 31 December 128318 ZREE 8,444 10,213
Current portion included in deferred income, BEEEERABAERR
accruals and other payables (note 25) H i fE B 2 BIHRER 3
(Hfzt25) (4,300) (5,102)
Non-current portion JERNERER 4,144 5,111

The government grants have been received from various
government authorities specifically for the purchases of
qualified plant and equipment in respect of the production
of MLCC. Except for the condition that the government
grants must be specifically used for the purchases of
qualified plant and equipment in respect of the production
of MLCC, there are no other conditions attached to these
grants.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, there are no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attaching to these
grants.

RABBARBARBRZRFHEEREBE
EEMLCCZEENRMBRE KR o BT /RS
HABEFREBELEEMICCZEERKE K
R BYAR M Sh > 52 F ARG I E AR A o

R2023F K2022F 12831 2L ML &=
FERBREBRGREMIGASEH-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

28. BANK AND OTHER LOANS

28. RITREMER

2023 2022
2023 20226
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT
Bank advance from discounted bills: BRERZRITRM
— Repayable within one year ——FREE fixed rates  0.4%-8.0% 74574 fixedrates  1.3%-3.9% 49,898
B BlIER=
Bank loans: BITER
Bank loans that contain a repayment on - 8B REXEERERZ
demand clause (show under current  SFTER (RABEEET
liabilties) but repayable: 5m) BERU THEEE .
— Repayable within one year ——FREE variable variable
rates  3.7%-4.2% 66,503 rates  4.3%-4.5% 16,000
EEGIES HEH=
~ Repayable after one year but within ~ ——F&BRERERE variable variable
two years rates 4.2% 100,000 rates 43% 44,000
EIGIES HEH=
— Repayable after two years but within ~ —REZBLENER variable variable
five years rates  4.2%-4.7% 357,500 rates 43% 304,000
EIGIES HEH=
— Repayable over five years -hERER variable
rates 4.7% 117,230 N/A N/A =
EIGIES TEm TEf
Other loans: 2R
— Repayable within one year ——FREE N/A N/A - fixedrates  9.1%-9.7% 6,222
TEH TEH EifaiE:
~ Repayable more than two years but ~ —REZREBRERERE
not exceeding five years fixed rates 5.5% 359,029 fixed rates 5.5% 276,614
EIEHIZ BlIER=
1,074,836 696,734
Analysed for reporting purpose as:  FtIRE BHDHA |
Non-current liabilties FRBEE 359,029 276,614
Current liabilities GiEI=NE 715,807 420,120
1,074,836 696,734
Analysed as: iR
Secured (note (3)) BIEE (16) 715,807 420,120
Unsecured EiTE 359,029 276,614
1,074,836 696,734

The maturity of bank and other loans shown above
represents the amounts due based on scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
Included in the current liabilities of bank and other loans,
RMB133,230,000 are repayable on demand due to breach
of loan covenants, details refer to note (d) below.
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28.

Notes:

b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment of RMB519,811,000
(2022: RMB51,804,000), investment property
of RMB24,122,000 (2022: RMB4,745,000),
bills receivables of RMB74,574,000 (2022:
RMB49,898,000) and restricted bank deposits of
RMB10,815,000 (2022: nil) of the Group were
pledged to banks to secure the banking facilities
and a guarantee was provided by a wholly owned
subsidiary to the banks in respect of the bank
facilities.

As at 31 December 2023, bank loan of
RMB133,230,000 (2022: nil) is also secured by the
entire equity interests of a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Shenzhen Eyang Technology
Development Co., Ltd.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has aggregate
banking facilities of approximately RMB788,000,000
(2022: RMB550,000,000). Unused facilities
amounted to approximately RMB105,270,000
(2022: RMB186,000,000) as at 31 December 2023.

Certain other loans are secured by property, plant
and equipment of the Group of RMBnil (2022:
RMB15,939,000) as at 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has aggregate
other facilities of approximately RMB420,033,000
(2022: RMB414,031,000). Unused facilities
amounted to approximately RMB61,004,000 (2022:
RMB137,416,000) as at 31 December 2023.

The carrying amounts of the bank and other loans
approximate their fair values.

At 31 December 2023, other loans comprised
of outstanding principal and interests of
RMB359,029,000 (2022: RMB276,614,000)
which was due to the independent third parties
to the Group. On 21 April 2022, other loan of
RMB254,019,000 was extended to 12 August
2025 and the interest rate was changed from
10% to 5.5% per annum. The modification on
21 April 2022 is substantial and it is considered
as an extinguishment of the original loan payable
with carrying amount of RMB254,019,000
and a new financial liability of loan payable of
RMB212,160,000 is recognised at the date of
modification.

28.

B -

a)

IRTTRHEMER (&)

XEBYME BEERKXKEARE
519,811,0007T (20224 : AR 551,804,000
TT) SR EYEAR®E24,122,00075T (2022
F . ARME4,745,00070) ~ FERNEE AR
74,574,0007T (20224 : AR %49,898,000
) XX REIRITERAE10,815,0007T
(20225 1 &) » BIRIFEFIRIT > LARTT
REREER TH—B2ENBAEM
RITEEAIRITIRMAER.

R2023F12H831H SBRITERARKE
133,230,0007% (20224 : &) JFEHAAT
—EE2BERBEATN T FERAEEE
BEATMEERIREIEILIR -

R2023FE 128310 AEBERTRES
H 49 A R #788,000,0007T (20224 : AR
#£550,000,0007T) ©FA2023F 128318 K
HAEEAHYARK105,270,0007T (2022
F AR 1186,000,0007T) °

R2023F12831H BT HMEFHUAE
B ARBEIT (20224F © AR15,939,000
T ZWE R KGR E AR o

FR2023F12831H  KEBBEMEES
H49 AR 1£420,033,0007C (20224 : AR
#414,031,00070) ° 2023 12831H &
HRABEALARK61,004,0007T (2022
F : AR1E137,416,0007T) °

RITREMERKEERZA
EO

AF{ENE

R2023F12HB31H  EMMEZE@EX
EERAERMNE AR®359,029,0007T
(2022%F : AR#276,614,0007T) *
TARNFAEEBIE =S B
R2022F84821H HthBEH AR
254,019,000 0 ERE2025%F8812
H>FAEXHI10%HEA55% 2022
FAB21THHERNBE KR THEAEE
EEREmEAARB254,019,000 02 /R
WENER U ENHBREIVENE
TR EaEARK212,160,000

7‘50
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

28. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

d) Certain Group’s banking facilities are subject to
the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain
balance sheet ratios, net assets level, and financial
results of the borrower and guarantor. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down
facilities would become payable on demand. The
Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in note

37(e).

During the year, in respect of a bank loan with
a carrying amount of RMB485,503,000 (2022:
RMBnil) at 31 December 2023, the Group breached
certain terms of the bank loans, which are primarily
related to the asset-liability ratio and current ratio
of a subsidiary and the net assets level of another
subsidiary which is the guarantor of the bank loans.
These loans are repayable by instalments up to 31

May 2028.

In addition, other bank loan of RMB133,230,000
which is repayable by instalments with scheduled
repayments starting from 2026 up to 2033 contains
cross-default terms causing such bank loan became

immediate repayable as at 31 December 2023.
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IRITREMER (2

(&

AEBRETROEGEHRETERE
PRARERAETEEERRLEER F
BEKFURUHZRENZE - HAE
HERZE BERIRERARERE
B-AEBETHENEBTREHHES
MeBMRAEBRSERAREENE —
T BHNMEE37(e) o

REEMANR2023F12831H0 FRE
BEA ANRBA485,503,0007T (20224 :
AEBZT) WIRTERMS ' A~EE
ERBTERNETERZT TEHA—H
MBAEMNEEERBLEERKRREANEE
UREABRITERERANS — BN B
REINFEEKTFER ZEERERED
ER{E38> EE2028F5H31H

b9 RFEB2026E B E20334F
S HEENEMRTERARK
133,230,00070 HIREBE XX ELNKE
TERERMBITERN2023F12831
HBENRFEE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued)

On discovery of the breach, the directors of the
Company informed the lenders and commenced
a renegotiation of the terms of the loan with the
relevant bankers. At 31 December 2023, those
negotiations had not been concluded. Since the
lenders have not agreed to waive its right to
demand immediate payment at the end of the
reporting period, the loans have been classified as
current liabilities at 31 December 2023. Up to the
date of approval for issuance of the consolidated
financial statements, the negotiations are still in
progress. With certain corporate restructuring to be
undertaken inside the Group including the further
capital injection by way of cash and/or capitalization
of intra-group debt balances, the directors of the
Company are confident that the asset-liability ratio,
current ratio and net assets level of the subsidiaries
will meet the requirement to be proposed by the
banks and their negotiations with the lenders will
ultimately reach a successful conclusion. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, out of
the loans of RMB485,503,000, other than balance
of RMB44,003,000 which will be repayable within
one year in accordance with the original maturity
dates as set out in the relevant loan agreements,
the remaining loans of RMB441,500,000 will be
extended by the relevant banks for at least the
next 12 months based on the negotiations with
the lenders. Up the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, the banks have
not demanded for any accelerated repayment of the
outstanding balance.

In any event, should the lenders call for immediate
repayment of the loans, the directors of the
Company believe that adequate alternative sources
of finance are available to ensure that there is no
threat to the continuing operations of the Group.

28.

IRITRHEMER (&

BIRBNTAB ARBEEEENE
A UGB HEBRETENERER
B oFR2023F 128310 BAERE
REMR - PREBPFR ENERAHR
BEREEEKRMNHEERNERN > ZE
BFR2023F12831HE D EH AR
NEE - BEEMATEREVHERERE
B EmMEETP BHRAEERI
BETETLESH BEURE R
RREEBNEFGRBEEACH AN E—
TEE ARBDEEFEGELZENBAR
ANEEEBEE -RAEERURFE
EXERERTEEMRBTRENER
BEREHEFRANETREEE®K
NeRARBEERA EZZTETAR
#485,503,000cEH > kRirEE AR
44,003,000 c % RBREER B ZEFT
HERBERIPHAEAR—FAEEIN B
TR AR®EA41,500,0007T 7 £ 48 B8
BTREBEEEFIANEFSERZE LD ARK
NRERB - BEMAEZSEHFEVERRE
HoRITWRERNMBEEZEE A E KRE
BAERR

EERBRT HERAZKRAEESZ
ERCAABDEFHEREAETENT
EARBERE UBERAEERFELE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE2023F12831HIEFE

29. DEFERRED TAX IN THE 29. RERBRRRRPARIERIE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

a) Deferred tax assets recognised a) CHRPBZEIERESE
Credit loss Impairment
Provision allowance of of items
against accounts of property, Recognition of
slow-moving and other plant and accelerated
inventories receivables equipment expenses Total
IR R
HittEmEZ ¥ BER
WHEEEE CERRRE IEEERE BRRHEX izt
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
UN:LS o AEBTT ARETT AREBFT ARBFT
At 1 January 2022 1202241818 15,769 1,348 10,423 756 28,296
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated ~ ERREEAIEE REM
statement of profit or loss and 2EKERTA/ (06)
other comprehensive income (Hzt10)
during the year (note 10) (444) - 513 833 902
Effect of foreign currency NEEREBTE
exchange difference - 15 - - 15
At 31 December 2022 and 120225128318k
1 January 2023 2023%F181H 15,325 1,363 10,936 1,589 29,213
Charged to the consolidated statement of ER R4S 1EE REHM
profit or loss and other comprehensive 2R TN (#a#10)
income during the year (note 10) (15,325) (1,346) (10,936) (1,589) (29,196)
At 31 December 2023 120235126318 - 17 - - 17
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29. DEFERRED TAX IN THE

Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

IR R R P RVEEIRTE (2

29. #xHER

b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised b) EBHEBZIRERBEAE
Withholding Accelerated
taxes depreciation Total
FEINR iR E “ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®BTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2022 7202241818 18,875 10,738 29,613
Credited to the consolidated FRANRGEERK
statement of profit or loss and Hh2EWmRTA
other comprehensive income (Hiz£10)
during the year (note 10) (3,408) (2,133) (5,541)
At 31 December 2022 and 2022 12831H %
1 January 2023 2023F181H 15,467 8,605 24,072
Credited to the consolidated FARGEERK
statement of profit or loss and HhemkmzRst A
other comprehensive income (Hiz£10)
during the year (note 10) (3,582) (3,038) (6,620)
At 31 December 2023 220235%12831H 11,885 5,567 17,452

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable

to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated as from 1 January 2008.

RETHRGCEMERZEZ IEREERLN S
BABERINIIBRECEXESIREAR
FB10% MM B TEINR - ZIREHMN2008F1
B1HEER  BAMR2007F12831HEZR®
Mol AKERINENKEEEMED ZRET
ERBBE AIJERBRBEFEIRE AE
EBERREAS% HIL B ARBERILZ
MB AT EM2008FE 1B 1HEELEZRA D
KRB REBBEHMEINR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE2023F12831HIEFE

29. DEFERRED TAX IN THE 29. REBBRRRPIVEERIE (2
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

) Deferred tax assets not recognised 9} RIEDZIRIEREEE
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of BREMBEE L EN TIBEEETES !

the following items:

2023 2022

2023% 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBF T ARBT T

Tax losses IR 18 541,372 405,912
Other deductible temporary differences H e kil G R =28 215,437 =
756,809 405,912

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect WGt N IEERRIEEREBEEE ) VR EW
of the above items as it is not considered probable that BARKAESESCHMNESRER EF B

taxable profits will be available against which the above ey FakiEgE o
items can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

29. DEFERRED TAX IN THE 29. REBBRRRPIVEERE (2

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

) Deferred tax assets not recognised (Continued) 9] KRERZIRIERIEEE (&
Expiry dates of unrecognised tax losses are as follows: FAEFBMEBENIBBEAOT
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBTF T
Unrecognized tax losses will expire in: RERRIEEB BRI UT
BFREEIHA
2024 20244 494 3,336
2025 20254 3,543 4,163
2026 20265 6,894 6,894
2027 20274 42,533 42,533
2029 20294 133,870 133,870
2030 20304 124,234 124,234
2032 20324 77,439 77,475
2033 20334 128,239 -
517,246 392,505
Unrecognized tax losses without expiry date THEEIHAE 2 RIERIRIEE 18 24,126 13,407
541,372 405,912
Other deductible temporary differences may be carried HmeiEiNEEE=EERHALE-

forward indefinitely.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

Share award scheme by the Company

On 14 July 2017 (the “Adoption Date"”), the Board adopted
a share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”)
for the purposes of (i) providing the beneficiaries with
an opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the
Company; (i) encouraging and retaining the beneficiaries
to work with the Company; and (iii) providing additional
incentive for the beneficiaries to achieve performance
goals, with a view to achieving the objectives of increasing
the value of the Company and aligning the interests of the
beneficiaries directly to the shareholders of the Company
through ownership of shares. A trustee, as an independent
third party, was appointed by the Company for the
administration of the Share Award Scheme. The award
shares may be satisfied by (i) existing shares to be acquired
by the trustee from the market; or (ii) new shares to be
allotted and issued to the trustee by the Company under
the mandate sought from the shareholders in its general
meeting, in both case the costs of which will be borne by
the Company. The trustee shall hold such shares in trust
until they are vested to the beneficiaries in accordance to
the rules of the Share Award Scheme.

The directors of the Company may, from time to time,
at its discretion select any employee of the Group for
participation in the Share Award Scheme and grant such
number of awarded shares to any selected employee of the
Group at nil consideration. The directors of the Company
are entitled to impose any conditions with respect to the
vesting of the awarded shares.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share award scheme by the Company (Continued)

The Share Award Scheme came into effect on the Adoption
Date, and shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the tenth
anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (i) such date
of early termination as determined by the directors of the
Company.

The aggregate number of shares, whether they are new
shares to be allotted and issued by the Company or
existing shares to be purchased on-market by the trustee,
underlying all grants made pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed in total 10% of the Company’s
issued share capital as at the Adoption Date (the “Scheme
Limit”). No account shall be taken into the calculation of
the Scheme Limit of any shares where the right to acquire
such shares has been released or lapsed in accordance
with the Share Award Scheme. The Scheme Limit may be
refreshed from time to time subject to obtaining of prior
approval from the Board (the “New Approval”) but in any
event the aggregate number of award shares administered
under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
the New Approval.

Save as disclosed above, there is no specific maximum
entitlement for each eligible participant under the Share
Award Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no share of
the Company has been purchased from the open market
(2022: nil). At 31 December 2023, no share of the
Company was held in trust by the trustee (2022: nil).

A total of 5,958,000 awarded shares had been granted
and remained unvested under the Share Award Scheme at
31 December 2023 and 2022. The total number of shares
available for grant under the Share Award Scheme as at
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 were 68,517,000
shares.

As at date of approval of these financial statements, the
total number of shares of the Company available for issue
under the Share Award Scheme was 74,475,000 shares,
representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company.

30. RELEEURMARRZRS (&

A AT Z R EREHE (4

RMOBERET BN RMBBAENR > LURBRUT
REHRWARKLE (()ERMEBHE R+
BE;, R(NEABDEFTRENEEKILEHR

BERODEBSERBEZFAARD (ERE
NEREERBETZHMRODBARZEAFN T
BEBAZEARN BESHITERBERL
AEREMWEBBEETREZ10% (T5H8) L
IR1) - et B 58 LIRE » IRB I (7 22 Bh 51+ 8
W BB R B W AR PR B R 3 2 R ) B 1 A FE 5t
BERN-StE ERIKESFTEFAHE (THTH
B BAREN  EREROERGFEEEZ
RERDBHEERNLETHAIEBBREETRIN
MM ERHEETREZI0%

fREXFrIREEN  ROZBABIETEZSE
R2RETERERSKE-

REE2023F12B31HIEEE - BER LS
MIZBATARATTRM (2022F © 8) o B
2023F12B31H RXABMEUGETEERF
BEEAAERABRM (202245 ) o

R2023F K2022%F 128318 BB Rt
EE®FTEH5,958 000 ERMEM > BN
REEB N 2023F181HK2023F12831
H BROBBASIHBRENROBEE S
68,517,0008% °

RZEUHBREMERR AR RERD
REE I HETHRMBEST74,475,000
RO EERATEETRMNI0%-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share award scheme by the Company (Continued)

Movements in the number of unvested awarded shares

30.

a)

REGBURDABRZR S (@)

KRB Z D EREE (&)

BEERRTENARARERRRNMBEEZ D

outstanding during the years are as follows: mE
Number of unvested awarded shares
FRERBRAHE

Balance at

31 December
Fair value Balance at Lapsed 2022 and Lapsed Balance at
Categories of Date of grant per share 1 January during 1 January during 31 December
awardees (Note 1) (Note 2) 2022 the year 2023 the year 2023

12022
BRATHE 12022 12B31A 20235 120235

RRBARS RHEM 2 z2)  1B1BZER RERXH 1B1A 24k RERKY  1B31HZEH

Directors of the Company (note 4) 14 July 2017 RMB1 5,958,000 - 5,958,000 - 5,958,000

TATEE (fz4) 2017£78148 AREIT

Notes: Bt .

1 The date of grant refers to the date on which the selected 1 EHBHRIEEEES R R AKG R IRE R M IR K
employees agreed to undertake to hold the awarded shares MEFEARERMD IR EZ RGBT EIFRRARZ
on the terms on which they are granted and agreed to be HERo
bound by the rules of the Share Award Scheme.

2 The fair value of the awarded shares are based on the fair 2 BEROZATFELBREAREHBHAZATE

value at the date of grant.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share award scheme by the Company (Continued)

Notes. (Continued)

3 The awarded shares granted to the beneficiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2017 would be vested in three
tranches of 1,986,000 shares each on the vesting date on
31 March 2018, 2019 and 2020 respectively. Subject to the
expiration of the Share Award Scheme, in the event that the
specific vesting conditions in relation to performance targets
of the Group determined by the board of directors of the
Company cannot be fulfilled on a particular vesting date of
any given year, the entire vesting schedule shall be adjourned
until such conditions are met. Upon expiry of the Share Award
Scheme, any outstanding but unvested award shares shall
lapse and become returned shares.

4 5,958,000 awarded shares granted during the year ended 31
December 2017 were granted to Mr. Zhou Chunhua.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the vesting
conditions cannot be fulfilled and the vesting schedule has
been adjourned. There is no awarded shares being vested
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
there is no awarded shares granted, cancelled, forfeited or
expired.

31. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

30. RELEEURMARRZRS (&

a) AT ZRDERFE &
izt (#)

3 REE2017F12831BLEER TS HEAZER
D =HEEE > &t %1,986,0008% k11 BFE
HERD B 220184 ~ 20194 22020438318 o 4
PR EREIERE  BANBESEMEEAS
EEXRBEEEZAEPNEERBEGELNMEMIER
EEZRTERB HER BIR(ERBHBEIEL
BEEEREHEEMN - RDEBEERE  EH
8 AR AT B 1) 7R 57 B DV R B IR S 5 AR S A A 3R

BRRG e

4 REE2017FE 1283 1HEEERFEAEELE
5,958,000F% #2 BN AR 17 ©

REE2023F12A31HLEFE  BEFHE
RERN RBHBER 8 E2023F 52022
F12R31HLELEE BERZBROHNESHEE-

B E2023F K2022F12B31HBILEE » i iE
RERHEEE FEH BB IER-

31. EEEBKEF

TEFR TR IRETE

REERBEB(ARFELBETEKH) A
SEB(EEERA)EENEERILAGELR
Eastd (IgEesta)) - 2B 22—
EHBUSTACENTCEMETRAKE R
Bt BEXTREEDHBRESHEE
WA Z5%ME T8I (FH R AR WA
30,0008 cA LR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

31. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(Continued)

Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

Contributions to the plan vest immediately. The Group also
participates in a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The employees
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of RMB11,283,000
(2022: RMB12,005,000) represents contributions paid
to these schemes by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, there were no
material forfeitures available to offset the Group's future
contributions (2022: nil).
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BEstEEFHNERANEREE AXEBIIT2M
— T B F B BT &% 12 B9 B &K B 3 AR K AE A Bt
go-AERETTEMBELATNEEHNSMER
EERAEMNFE -ZFEWNBRAR AR FHEN
KZHEHB D EEBRKEFR S EFH H R
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 32. ZAEATHFBERRRER
OF THE COMPANY
2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
izt AR¥FxT AREBTT
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME B Rkt 4 4
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZKE 252,188 252,255
252,192 252,259
Current assets RENEE
Due from subsidiaries A NI O] 952,814 942,297
Deposits and prepayments ¥ RTENRIE 74 22
Cash and bank balances B & MIRTT4E R 576 234
953,464 942,553
Current liabilities mENAE
Accruals and other payables FESTE A M E & FIB 3,461 3,363
Due to subsidiaries N NI 547,971 539,115
551,432 542,478
Net current assets MENEERE 402,032 400,705
NET ASSETS BEFE 654,224 652,334
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARKEE
Share capital A& s 33(a) 6,637 6,637
Reserves = 33(b) 647,587 645,697
TOTAL EQUITY ERETE 654,224 652,334
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

33. KRAEKf#E

a) Share capital a) BB
Authorised and issued share capital EEREEITRE
2023 2022
20234 2022%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAEIT
Authorised: ERE -
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,0000¢ S REE B
HK$0.01 each 0.018B Tz EERK 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITREE -
At the beginning and end of the year REV /e EFK744,750,0008%
744,750,000 (2022: 744,750,000) (20224 : 744,750,0000%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE.0IB T LB 7,448 7,448
Equivalent to RMB’000 ARETFTZz%EE 6,637 6,637

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

b) Capital and Reserves

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial

statements.

Details of the changes in the Company's individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end
of the year are set out below:

33. RRAKH#E (@)

b) EBXki#E
AEERTFERBEFEZH#AETEKRE
IRV BERERPZGEERaEHRES

FNEFRBARTE R D < & E 5T
BEEIOT

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRATER AL
Share Share
Share premium  Contributed award Accumulated Total
capital account surplus reserve loss equity
iani
kE  ROEER  BE4BRK  RZBHEE  RHER Bien
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETR ARBTR AREBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2022 202241818 6,637 491,518 364,952 4,975 (222,945) 645,137
Profit and total comprehensive FREN REEREERE
income for the year - - - - 7,197 7,197
At 31 December 2022 and 7?2022&€12B318 K&
1 January 2023 2023F181H 6,637 491,518 364,952 4,975 (215,748) 652,334
Profit and total comprehensive FERaFREER @A
income for the year - - - - 1,890 1,890
At 31 December 2023 12023128318 6,637 491,518 364,952 4,975 (213,858) 654,224
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(Continued)

) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which a dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

(ii)  Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus of the Group mainly represents:

- the difference of RMB203,536,000 being the excess
of the nominal value of the shares and contributed
surplus of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
group reorganisation over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor;

- the deficit of RMB2,823,000 arising from the
acquisition of Dongguan Eyang Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“"DG Eyang”) from the non-
controlling shareholders of DG Eyang;

- the deficit of RMB1,774,000 arising from the
disposal of Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co., Ltd. to
the related party;

— the credit of RMB9,468,000 arising from the
deemed contribution from the shareholders when
acquiring Shenzhen Eyang Energy Company Limited
and its subsidiary (the “Energy Group”) during the
year ended 31 December 2012; and

— the deficit of RMB650,000 arising from deemed
distribution to the shareholders when disposing the
Energy Group during the year ended 31 December
2013.
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0 fEEZMEERAR
() REEE

BRIERSBESEREE (ER])  XRATDZKRMD
HERADIKTEATDRR  EERERZD
KREERR ARBABENFERBES
FHEEER -

(i) EHEE
rEBZERREBEEE

— REEEEHCKWENRBATZRME
BREBBGBHARNT M IBMEIT
zRhEE =8B ARK®203,536,000
TG

— HARETFHRKXERAERAF (IR
RFB) FERRRBBREFTHME
FZEMAKE2,823,0007T ;

- BEBIEERIITEEBNRERAT
EEZEMARE1,774,0007T ;

= HE2012F12B31HILEEE FREE
RINTFHRERBRERABTRENEB A A
(TSERER)) B BIEREIEELE
2 #EIR AR %9,468,0007T 5 &

— ®E2013F12A31HLFEE -ELHE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(Continued)

) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iiij)  Share award reserve

The share award reserve comprises the portion of the fair
value of unvested outstanding award shares granted by
the Company that has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 2(v)(ii).

(iv)  Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(z).

(v)  Statutory reserve

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, certain PRC
subsidiaries in the Group are required to appropriate 10%
of their profit after tax (after offsetting prior year losses)
to the statutory reserve until such reserve reaches 50%
of their registered capital. Transfers to the reserve must
be made before distribution of dividends to shareholders.
Upon approval by relevant authorities, the statutory
reserve can be utilised to offset the accumulated loss or
to increase the paid-up capital of the subsidiary, provided
that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of its
registered capital.

(vi)  Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investment designated at FVOCI under IFRS 9 that are held
at the end of the reporting period (see note 2(i)).

33. RRAKH#E (@)

o REZIMERRRE @
(i)  RIFEZRIHE

RNBEREFEEEARDREZREEH XK
TEREBROZAFERD  ZBDRFED
R EE2(v) (DB BIURD B ER Z AR
RAZESBUERETHE

(iv) EXKEHE

EX N EEEEFMAEREBIEFTHBR
KFFEEZHNEEZR - REERBEME2(2)F
B HREE -

() ZEHE

REBEEBRRBER c&EBETHENELQ
BIARHI10%GEMNEBEN (ERFEBATFEES
B DBELAERE BEERBEAMREZ
50% - EBEBRANRBRRDIKKRSAEL -
KAEMERIER AEMB A AR IEHER
BIENENNEBARZEBERZ  MEZIEH
B EHRAFTDVDRHAEMEERZ25%°

(i) 2 FERFE (TA#E)

NEEEE (Fr#EL) BFEREBHRAFR
BERVBRSERNFINIET AR A FE
AHMEEWENREREZ ATER#
38 (RHEE20)) °
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(Continued)

d) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximize shareholders’ value.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements except for one subsidiary licensed by the
Securities and Futures Commission which is obliged to
meet the regulatory liquid capital requirements under the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR") at
all times.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. For
the licensed subsidiary, the Group ensures the licensed
subsidiary maintains a liquid capital level adequate to
support the level of activities with sufficient buffer to
accommodate for increase in liquidity requirements arising
from potential increase in the level of business activities.
During the financial year, the licensed subsidiary complied
with the liquid capital requirements under the FRR at all
times. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(Continued)

d) Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt
is calculated as the sum of bank and other loans, lease
liabilities, trade and bills payables and accruals and other
payables (excluding deferred income, receipts in advance
and the tax payable) less cash and cash equivalents. Capital
represents equity attributable to owners of the Company
(excluding share capital). The Group’s policy is to keep the
gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at
the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

33. RRAKH#E (@)

d B&xEEHE@

FEBUEBEERRIERERER EEARLL
KREFEHFHEUEEMEFRE - BFEHHR
ThREAMER HEEE BNEZMBEKRE
NEBE - BAEBERRAMEBARE (FEEE
FEW A~ FAU A R FE (S IR TR) Z F1OR IR & K
REEBYA B - BXRBRAREERAZEL
o (FEERE) AEEZHREREESR
BEXERFESEZ KT L REKEHRZE
EBRLERNT:

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®B T ARBTF T

Bank and other loans RITREMERR 1,074,836 696,734

Lease liabilities HE&®RE 10,798 18,907

Trade and bills payables FE B Z R IB R BN R 116,045 60,769

Accruals and other payables FEST & A & H A & FRIE 97,798 96,925

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 23(a)) B IRERIREEEY

(H15%23(a)) (32,671) (62,469)

Net debt FER 1,266,806 810,866
Total equity attributable to owners of N/NETEZ S DN Y

the Company excluding share capital (R BIERA) 661,326 879,961

Equity and net debt Wm R FER 1,928,132 1,690,827

Gearing ratios BESMRLXE 65% 48%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

34. COMMITMENTS

a) Operating lease arrangement
The Group as lessor

The Group leases its investment property (note 16) under
operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to eight years, with an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of
the leases includes contingent rentals.

At 31 December 2023, undiscounted lease payments
receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

34. KiE

a) IEEEOLHE
FEEESLHTAN

FEERBESHOZEEHREY X (M
16)  KENZENEHRHIEESELRF |
EERENEAMARARKER ZFHEOTR
BEIAEE -

FR2023F 128310 REATHEEEEL
Wz REREESEEMT

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®B T ARBTF T

Within one year 1R 3,150 3,213
After one year but within two years 1FBRE2FER 1,312 2,358
After two years but within three years 2FBEIFER 551 527
5,013 6,098
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

34. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
b) Capital commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2023

not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

34. KiE (2)
b) BARKIE

R2023F12B31H RN BHRERFERBZ
BRAENT

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AR¥T T
Contracted for: B5J4 .

Construction fE= 111,376 220,765
Plant and machinery R 55 e 1% 23 40,710 45,841
Fund Investments HEaKRE 101,438 99,989
Interest in an associate =N i 6,000 =
259,524 366,595

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 35. PR Bt BR

BALANCES

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year and
balances with related parties at the end of the reporting
period:

Key management personnel remuneration

K%ﬁ?%%ﬁa‘%“%&%ﬁmﬁkﬁﬁﬂzx%9|\ ZIN
EENREFRNERBLD ZXSRNEBSHKRA
REE 5 ZAEERA0E ©

FEEEEASZHM

The key management personnel include directors of the FEEEBABOREARAES (W&E11) &
Company (note 11) and certain highest paid employees ETERSHES (WsE12) » HFHMNERB ZZD—F
(note 12), and their remuneration is as follows:
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBT T
Short-term employee benefits HAEE R 8,776 9,496
Post-employment benefits EEREBEER 263 260
9,039 9,756
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note FEIN4EZEST ATE TR A) (B EE9(b))

9(b)).
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

36. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 36. ARFMBARZFEER

COMPANY
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December FERBATIN2023F12831HZHBEER
2023 are as follows: MmE
Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid-up/ attributable to the
Name operation registered capital Company Principal activities
&g MR EEME ERTRAR/ERRE TAEEERERSL TERH
Direct Indirect
E# A
% %
Eyang Management Co., Ltd. BVI/HK 10,000 ordinary shares of 100 - Investment holding
US$1 each
Eyang Management Co., Ltd. EERYEHE/EE 10000kERARIETZ BRERR
TRk
Hong Kong Eyang Holdings (Group) ~ HK/PRC 10,000 ordinary shares - 100 Investment holding
Co., Ltd.
BEFHER EE) ERAH &5,/ HE 10,000% & 3 % REZR
Hong Kong Eyang Technology BVI/HK 50,000 ordinary shares - 100  Trading of MLCC
Co., Ltd.
Hong Kong Eyang Technology HERYHE/EH 50,000 LER BEEMLCC
Co., Ltd.
Hong Kong Eyang Electronics Limited ~ HK/PRC 500,000 ordinary shares - 100 Investment holding and
trading of MLCC
EEFRETERAT &8/ HE 500,0008% & &A% RERRKEEMLCC
Shenzhen Eyang Technology PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. RMB350,000,000 out MLCC
of registered capital of
RMB500,000,000
A FERRERERAT g,/ HE AR #500,000,000703F BB RIHEMLCC
BEAREHERARE
350,000,0007T
ZHEFHEFHERRAT PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of - 100 Manufacture of MLCC
RMB 100,000,000 out
of registered capital of
RMB 130,000,000
i,/ HE AR #130,000,000705% BUEMLCC
BAREHELARE
100,000,0007T
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &#



Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

36. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 36.
COMPANY (Continued)

ERABEIMBABZHBEER (&)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid-up/ attributable to the
Name operation registered capital Company Principal activities
Eap MM EEME BROKME ERERE FARRERETAL FEXHR
Direct Indirect
EH# A
% %
ERATFHYEEERERAT PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of - 100  Property holding
RMB20,000,000 out
of registered capital of
RMB20,000,000
e,/ AR 120,000,007t WERE
BXAREHERAARE
20,000,0007T
ZHFHEREERBRAT PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of - 100 Manufacture of MLCC
RMB221,850,000 out
of registered capital of
RMB230,000,000
e,/ HE AE#230,000,0007c £ BUEMLCC
BEXREHELARE
221,850,0007T
BRMREFHRETHEER PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of = 100 Manufacture of MLCC
BRRF" RMB 180,000,000 out
of registered capital of
RMB250,000,000
R/ HE AR #250,000,0007cE BUEMLCC
BEXHEHELARE
180,000,0007%
BRTFHHNEREERAD PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of = 100 Manufacture of MLCC
RMB30,000,000 out
of registered capital of
RMB30,000,000
e,/ AR #30,000,0007c 5% BUEMLCC
BXREHERAARE
30,000,0007T
Tianli Financial Limited HK/HK 105,200,000 ordinary shares - 100 License corporation and
provision of advisory
services
KAEMERAE &8/ B8 105,200,0008% BB BB R EBARY
Tianli Investment Management Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 Provision for fund
Limited management services
GV REEIETZEER RUEESEERY
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

36. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 36.
COMPANY (Continued)

ERATEMBABZHIBEER (&

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid-up/ attributable to the
Name operation registered capital Company Principal activities
k2L MR EEME ERTRERERERE FAERIGREE DL FEEH
Direct  Indirect
EH# FiEE
% %
Tianli Financial Group Limited Cayman/HK 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100 - Investment holding
Vg REEIZTZEBR REZR
Tianli Capital Limited Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 Investment in private funds
BE/He REEIET BER hWEETERE
Tianli Global Opportunities Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 each = 100 General Partner of
Investment Partners Limited investment private fund
e /He REEIETZEEK MWEEEREEREBA
Tianli China Opportunities Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 General Partner of
Fund | Limited investment private fund
BE /HE REEIZTZEBR MWEEETREEEEBA
Tianli China Opportunities Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100  General Partner of
Fund Il Limited investment private fund
BE/He REEIZETZEBR MWEETREEBEBA
Tianli UK Opportunities Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 each = 100 General Partner of
Fund Limited investment private fund
e /He REEI1ZTZ B8R MWEEEREERABA
Tianli US Opportunities Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 General Partner of
Fund Limited investment private fund
GV REEIZTZEBR MWEEETREEREEBA
Tianli Private Debt Investment Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100  General Partner of
Partners Limited investment private fund
Be/He REEIETZ BER IWEESREEREABA
Tianli Private Debt Fund Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 each = 100 General Partner of
Investment Limited investment private fund
e /He REEI1ZTZ B8R MWEEEREEREBA
Tianli Public Markets Investment Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 General Partner of
Partners Limited investment private fund
BE /HE REEIZTZEBR MWEEETREEREEBA
Tianli Special Situations Investment Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100  General Partner of
Partners Limited investment private fund
He/He REEIETZ BER IWEEFREEREEBA
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36. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 36.

COMPANY (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

ERABEIMBABZHBEER (&)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid-up/ attributable to the
Name operation registered capital Company Principal activities
k2L AR EEME ERTREREREE FAFEIGRET DL FEEH
Direct Indirect
EH# FiEE
% %
Tianli M & A Investment Limited Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 General Partner of
investment private fund
GV REEIZTZEBR MWEEETREEBEBA
Asia Enhanced Income Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100  General Partner of
Investment Ltd. investment private fund
e/ /He REEIZETZ EER MEEEREERABA
Wasen-Tianli Investment Cayman/Cayman 2 ordinary shares of US$1 each = 100 Assets managements
Management Limited
HE /He JEEREEIET 2 EBR BEEE
Wasen-Tianli SPC Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 Assets managements
GV REEIZTZEBR BEEHE
Universal Blossom Limited BVI/Macau 10,000 ordinary shares of = 100 Investment holding
US$1 each
EEFRAT HEBRUEE /B 10,000 EREEIETZEE REER
f&
Tianli Financial Holdings Limited HK/HK 2,000,000 ordinary shares - 100 Investment holding
and provision of
management services
KAERERERAR &8/ B8 2,000,000 & &% REERREEEERRS
Star Chaser Ventures Limited Cayman/Cayman 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100  Financial investment
US$1 each
GV 10,000k B REEIZTZ B SHRE
iz
Asia Capital Real Estate V Pte. Ltd. Singapore/Singapore 5,316,169 ordinary shares of - - Financial investment
("ACRE") (note i) US$1 each and 100 ordinary
(i) shares of SGD$1 each
HOSR /#A0 5,316,169R B REEIZTZ TRRE
EERRI00RSREEIHN
Tz Bk
Tianli Investment Trading Limited HK/HK 20,000,000 ordinary shares - 100 General trading
FHAREEZERAT &8/ BE 20,000,0008% & B2 —RES
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

36. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 36. ARFIMBATZFHEER (&

COMPANY (Continued)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid-up/ attributable to the
Name operation registered capital Company Principal activities
Eap MM EEME BRAOKME ERERE FAREERES AL FEXH
Direct Indirect
EH# FiEE
% %
Celestial Hope Limited BVIHK 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100 Investment holding
US$1 each
KEARRAH EBRUHBE/FE  10,000REREEETZ BB REER
&
RAImRERRBRAR PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of - 100 Property investment
RMB70,000,000 out
of registered capital of
RMB70,000,000
R,/ HE AR #70,000,00075 35 MERE
BEXHEHELARE
70,000,00070
3 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of & ZENBBRPEL NI EEE R

wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

-

L These companies were established in the PRC as PRC &
domestic-invested companies.

foreign equity joint venture.

ZENB I PBIR PR ERE AT

This company was established in the PRC in the form of sino- g ZAB RN PBENIIPISELERE-

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, there is no subsidiary of FR2023F 20225128310 KEB B ET
the Group which has material non-controlling interests. ANEBACIEEERIEERER
The English name of companies established in the PRC are RAPBRIZIZABIZELBTHERBR -

for identification purpose only.

Note: Mk :

(i) ACRE, a subsidiary owned by the Group as to 94.42%, was (i) REZE2023F12831BLEFE - AEBEHR

dissolved during the year ended 31 December 2023.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &#

94.42 %I M /& A BIACREE A& R AR ©



37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include the

Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

MHHBEAREEZ BEREE

FEBZIESHITAGEUTRE!

followings:
Categories of financial instruments ST EER
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®EFT AREEFT
Financial assets EMEE
Accounts and bills receivables FE W TR TE B FE I 2 4% 347,160 261,595
Refundable rental deposits (note i) AREBHEERSE (W) 1,201 952
Other receivables Hih g siE 6,664 10,476
Cash and bank balances IR & MIRTT4E R 32,671 62,469
Restricted bank deposits ZIREIRITER 14,236 -
Financial assets at amortised cost RBEN At ENEMEE 401,932 335,492
Financial assets at FVPL BAFTEFABGZNEMEE
— Designated at FVPL —EEAEATES AEBR 412,134 412,061
Financial liabilities ER&E
Trade and bills payables FET B Z R IB R B R4 116,045 60,769
Accruals and other payables FEST & A A H A & TRIE 97,798 96,925
Bank and other loans IRITREMER 1,074,836 696,734
Lease liabilities HE&E 10,798 18,907
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEHER A EZEREE 1,299,477 873,335

Note:

(i) Rental deposits are typically paid for leased properties, which
are refundable after the expiry of the leases.

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bank
and other loans, and cash and bank balances. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise/provide
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as accounts and
bills receivables, lease liabilities, trade and bills and other
payables, which arose directly from its operations. The
Group also invests in equity investments.

Wit :

0] HERESBEMNEENESN AR EEERER]
RE-

rEBZIEERIAGRERTREME
POBRERBOTER RFEMIAZEIEHR
MhAAEBE2REERE REES K&
EEEZRERNHEHEEELEZHMEME
ERBE ANBRREREREER HEE&
B -BNESZREBERENREUREMES R
HeAEBRTRENRKREKSE -
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's exposure to
these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

a) Fair values

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs, that is, observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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37. MHRAKBERZBREREEK &

FEBTRIAIRZZERARASFAXREA
FHNNERR - FEERRKRABET AR &
EEERzZFRARAAERREEZTA
SRARAZEMAREERR KB RN
Ko

a) Q¥E

() HELXTFEAEZEZHEERER

RFERE

TERENFEBRRBREHRBEEHEEES
BYEMIBZRATE UREBEBEKRYBRS
HERBI3RTAFEFEIMREZAFER
BOR-BATERB AFESEGSZHE
BREAFMRABABEBZAEREEREEZ N
BlomAEEROT :

. F—REBAhEE: IEAEF—ERAA
B (AMETEQMEREERERRE
EETS EREHBEZRE) HEQT
Be

. E_EREE: ERE_BREARE
(AR EFEF—EBRZIBEHAK
B) MECREENTABREH AR
SFEAFE - AIRRBAHBEEEX
REDZEBEZWASIE-

. EZERLE: EREENTIEHER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Fair values (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group has a team headed by the finance manager to
perform valuations for the financial instruments, including
financial assets at FVPL which are categorised into Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy. The team reports directly to the
executive Directors and the audit committee. A valuation
report with analysis of changes in fair value measurement is
prepared by the team at each interim and annual reporting
date, and is reviewed and approved by the executive
Directors. Discussion of the valuation process and results
with the executive Directors and the audit committee is
held twice a year, to coincide with the reporting dates.

37. MHRAKBERZBREREER &

a) QAFEGE

() BELXTFEAFEZZHEERER (H)

R FEFE (B

AEBEE —ERVYBEETARNNME B
MIHE (BERESATERBE BRI
AFEFABEGNERNEE) ETEE &/
HEEARTEEREREZESER &4
RETFHAEERSAHRRRNA QR TES
EE2POMNGEERS UMEATESFERK
HE TEATEZERELZEGTHEERE
RERETHR ZwSFEETMR AR
HEHBAE—--

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2023 categorised into
202351231 BN AT EHERE

Fair value at
31 December

2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
20235
12H31H
HATE F—B% BB BB
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETR ARBTR ARETR®

Recurring fair value measurements EEHATLEHE

Assets: BE .
Financial assets at FVPL BATEF A ERNEREE
— Unlisted equity instruments (note a) —JEEHERT A (Hsta)

412,134 - - 412,134
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

37.

a)

()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair values (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

37. MHRAKBERZBREREEK &

a) QAFEGE

() BELXTFEAEZZHEERER (H)

R FEFE (B

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2022 categorised into
12022512831 BN AT ES ENE

Fair value at
31 December
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
20224
128318
NATE F—BH& F_BR BB
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEBTFTE ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Recurring fair value measurements  EEHATLEHE
Assets: BE .
Financial assets at FVPL BATESABRNSHEE
- Unlisted equity instruments (notea) ~ —JE LR TR (fita) 412,061 - - 412,061

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Notes:

(a)

For unlisted equity instruments classified under Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy, the fair values are determined based on
the net asset values of those investment funds determined
with reference to valuation of underlying investment portfolio
and adjustments of related expenses. The higher the net
assets values, the higher the fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. MBERAMEEZEBEREBE &
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

a) Fair values (Continued) a) AFE #E)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BATFEASZEHEEREE (B
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) WNFEZE (B

Notes. (Continued)

(b) The movements during the year in the balance of these Level (b)

3 fair value measurements are as follow:

Mz . (4)

Financial assets

ZEF=BMATEABZEHRNENEIUT

Financial assets

at FVPL at FVOCI
BATE
BATE T AH(th
sTAE=H 2EKREN
ETMEE EWMEE
Unlisted Unlisted
equity equity
instruments instrument
JEET JEET
E=ETH HETH
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFT
At 1 January 2022 12022518518 409,092 12,435
Net gain recognised in other comprehensive income REMEER @RS 2 W FER - 22,606
Net loss recognised in profit or loss included in revenue* 5t AUA Z IR 1BE FERR 2 B518 5 58+ (33,699) -
Share buy back by investee KREHROER®N = (12,707)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBE AT - (23,150)
Exchange differences included in “exchange fluctuation AR M EE U TG B AL 2 B
reserve” in other comprehensive income BERE 36,668 816
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 1120225128318 %2023F181H 412,061 -
Net loss recognised in profit or loss included in revenue* 5 AUA Z R 1B SR 2 B5 18 F 58+ (3,187) =
Exchange differences included in “exchange fluctuation FFAEMEEWREIER G EEIZ
reserve” in other comprehensive income BB 2 =28 3,260 -
At 31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H 412,134 -
* Includes unrealised gains or losses recognised in profit or loss attributable to balances held at the end of the reporting period
E BER S EARP ARG T A B FEsS 2 R B B W e sU B 18
2023 20234 (3,187) -
2022 20224 (33,699) -
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Fair values (Continued)

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at amortised cost are not materially different from
their fair values at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to accounts receivables and settlement of certain accounts
receivables are backed by bills issued by reputable financial
institutions. The Group assessed 12m ECL for bank
balances by reference to information relating to probability
of default and loss given default of the respective credit
rating grades published by external credit rating agencies.
Based on the average loss rates, the 12m ECL on bank
balances is considered to be insignificant and therefore no
loss allowance was recognised. The Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and bills
receivable is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.
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37. MBREBEERZBEREE (&

a) RFEGE

(i) BATELNIEZEBEERARZA

¥
AEEEBERAEZSHT AL REE
BEHN2023F %2022F12831HZA¥EL
REAZR

b) EERER

FEERRERZHFERGNEEERLTE
.EEHZL?IES?EZHKW°21§$.E’]1:.,\ b2 =

2REBUWIR BE D F‘%TH&ZTAIEB’J“.:%LM_
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Accounts and bills receivables

The Group'’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 18% (2022:
18%) and 53% (2022: 59%) of the accounts and bills
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Accounts receivables from MLCC segment are
due within one to five months from the date of billing.
Debtors with balances that are more than five months
past due are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers. The Group only
accepts bills issued or guaranteed by reputable PRC banks
if accounts receivables are settled by bills and therefore the
management of the Group considers the credit risk arising
from the endorsed or discounted bills is insignificant.

37. HHEAREEZBRREE (&

b) EERR &
() BRHBERERERS

AEBFERNEERE FETZIETANE
ST E MIUERERAMEENITE
FAENER ALLEAEEEmEENTA N
BEAERE BRELfSEETNEERRK R
REPR AEBZRBABERARAEAERZE
HAEWRIEREWNEEDBIZEI18% (20224 :
18% ) F%53% (20224 :59%) °

FrEBHMAEERGEBBARESTENETR
ETENEET G ZFFEETRERBE
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BRERFZREBHNUNEBEEMAKLEBIRIEZ
BEBR - MLCCOB ZBUWRIENEHIRE
B—E=RERREM IRAHBBALERN
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Accounts and bills receivables (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for accounts
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors' aging to assess the impairment for its
customers in relation to its MLCC segment because these
customers consist of a large number of small customers
with common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms. For accounts
receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Accounts and bills receivables (Continued)

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for accounts receivables of

MLCC segment as at 31 December 2023 and 2022:

37. HHEAREEZBRREE (&

b) EERR &
() [ERFBEREKEE (B
TREHEHBEARNEBMLCCH B 2 BURRIER

2023F 2022 12HA3 1 HEEREMNEE R &
BHEEHREZER @

Expected Gross
loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TEHARSIR R IREAEEE BiaEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 20234 % AREBTT ARBTT
Current (not past due) BNER (R ER) 0.1% 64,160 34
1-30 days past due AHA1E30H 6.7% 136 9
31-60 days past due #HA31E60H 4.3% 12 1
61-90 days past due #HA61E90H 8.6% 10 1
91-180 days past due #FIHA91E 180H 100.0% 65 65
181-360 days past due AHA181E360H 100.0% 52 52
More than 360 days past due B HABE360H 100.0% 8,312 8,312
72,747 8,474

Expected Gross
loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TRHARS IR IRMEAEEE EiaEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
2022 20224 % ARBTT ARBTT
Current (not past due) BPER (K38 HR) 0.0% 41,290 =
1-30 days past due AHA1E30H 25.0% 694 171
31-60 days past due AHA31E60H 31.0% 170 53
61-90 days past due AHA61E90H 32.0% 181 58
91-180 days past due #HA912180H 32.0% 96 31
181-360 days past due #EI181E360H 93.0% 74 69
More than 360 days past due R IE360H 100.0% 9,067 9,067
51,572 9,449
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BMERAMEEZBERBEK &
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued) b) EERK (&

(i)  Accounts and bills receivables (Continued) () EWRZFIEREKER (B)

TRIEBHBEAARERR2023F K%20225F128
STHMERERERRE DS 2 E W IERR

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for accounts receivables

of investments and financial services segment as at 31 NEERMMTEHREEBEZERN !
December 2023 and 2022:
Expected Gross
loss carrying Loss
rate amount  allowance
FEHARS A= IREA2%R EiE1R A
% RMB'000 RMB'000
2023 20234 % ARBTT ARBTT
Current (not past due) BPER (GRia ) 0% - -
1-30 days past due AHA1E30H 0% 18,754 -
31-60 days past due FHA31E60H 0% - -
61-90 days past due BHA61E90H 0% 10,527 -
91-180 days past due #HA91E180H 0% 10,510 -
181-360 days past due #HA181E360H 0% 9,595 -
More than 360 days past due EHAEEIE360H 0% 140,397 -
189,783 -
Expected Gross

loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TRHARS 1A= IREA2%R RBiER A
% RMB'000 RMB'000
2022 20224 % ARETT AR®T T
Current (not past due) BNER (GR#AER) 0.0% = =
1-30 days past due AHA1ZE30H 0.0% 10,293 -
31-60 days past due #HA31E60H 0.0% - -
61-90 days past due #HA61290H 0.0% 10,293 =
91-180 days past due #HHA91ZE 180H 0.0% 10,212 =
181-360 days past due #HA180FE360H 0.0% 9,461 -
More than 360 days past due B HABE360H 0.0% 116,553 -
156,812 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Accounts and bills receivables (Continued)

Debtors with significant outstanding balances with gross
carrying amounts of RMB189,783,000 as at 31 December
2023 (2022: RMB156,812,000) were assessed individually.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. The management
of the Group considered that the debtors from investments
and financial services segment, mainly the private equity
funds, are with adequate financial resources to repay to
the Group and hence no impairment allowance (2022:
nil) were made on these debtors with significant balances
during the year ended 31 December 2023. As at 31
December 2023, the loss allowance for the debtors
assessed individually amounted to nil (2022: nil).

An ageing analysis of the bills receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

37. HHEAREEZBRREE (&

b) EERR &
() [ERFBEREKEE (B

R2023F12831H BEEAKREBEHGIER
4 (E AR 1189,783,0007 (20224 . AR K
156,812,0007T) BIEF A B @RI F (& o

B ERETRERERFHNBETEREE
NESUREESNHELSRAIE NN ATEHN
AIEMENEHBREATFEB - AEEEE
BRRA REKREAETRMBRFTOBHEREE
BAEREES TEAEECHMBERAANE
EEEZE RIENEZE2023F12831HLEFE
TEMEEREHFNZEEHE AR EE
% (20224 : ) - X2023F 128318 > H@
M EEFANBERESEAT (2022F

) o
7y

WHRERHHAERARABEZEBREZIRE
DFWMT

Expected Gross

loss carrying Loss

rate amount allowance

FAHARS IR X ARME4A%A EiaEHE

% RMB’000 RMB’000

2023 20235 % ARBTRT ARBTR

Current (not past due) BIER (R HA) 0% 93,104 -
Expected Gross

loss carrying Loss

rate amount allowance

TEHARSIR R IREAEEE BiaEE

% RMB'000 RMB'000

2022 20224 % ARBFT AREBFT

Current (not past due) BOHA (R7EHA) 0% 62,660 -
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Accounts and bills receivables (Continued)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of

lifetime ECL recognised for accounts receivables during the
years is as follows:

37. HHEAREEZBRREE (&

b) FEERR &
() [ERFBEREKEE (B

EFERURERIZLPRBEEGEZ
EREBEHREZEHNT !

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired)
2 HATERAE EE1E
(It EEERE)
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
At 1 January PR1B1H 9,449 9,316
Amounts written off during the year F A EE IR (1,007) T
Impairment losses recognised during the year FREDRERIE 1 1
Exchange differences PERE%R 31 132
At 31 December R12831H 8,474 9,449

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of accounts receivables contributed to the
decrease in the loss allowance:

- a write-off of accounts receivables with a gross
carrying amount of RMB1,007,000 (2022:
nil) resulted in a decrease in loss allowance of
RMB1,007,000 (2022: nil).

The Group writes off an account receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. None of the
account receivables that have been written off is subject to
enforcement activities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 & Z2023F12831HILEE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii)  Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information. Assessment
of ECL and impairment made can be referred to note (iii)
below.

37. HHEAREEZBREREE (&

b) FEER @
(i) RtERFEREE

MEMBUREBERZEEME » FABEFRE
BEEMCR BECEURSEBERERS
FRRREEEREREN B HME KRB
R ¥ & B9 BT U [B] 1% % 17 T #1185 51 14 - W A A
EFEEEEKRAEMFLNFERNZ2R T XHE
(iii) e
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fAFsERAR MIsE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iif) Assessment of ECL based on internal credit
rating

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment,
which is used for ECL assessment for bank balances, and
other receivables and deposits, comprises the following
categories of internal credit ratings:

37. MBREBEERZBEREE (&

b) FEER @
Gii) BRASISEFRZBIEERRTE
K% B A MEERERRFE (ARIETE

HPM%H&ZMIEEZ#EEE’\J?E,HH%EEHEuTr
TE) BEUTERBAEE SR

Internal

credit rating Description ECL

RER S E 514K R FREAEE A58

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any 12m ECL
past-due amounts

R HFEHEORRE BXREFIAREEE 128 B FEfE B8

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settles in full 12m ECL

BRYE BEFAKERIABRER BT R 128 B TG E &8

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL — not credit-
recognition through information developed internally or external impaired
resources

EIE IRIBEATFAFSER SN E R EERMBEVIGHEDURESE 2PAEREEHEE—EE
a0 SRE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — credit-

impaired
e BRBREREELIREERE EHEIEEBEE—E8
BB

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery

it 55 BRBRANEBABARENHBHE  EAERTEBERINCIR RIBEMEH
THRYA] Ak
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 ER R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Assessment of ECL based on internal credit
rating (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group's bank balances, and other receivables and deposits.

37. HHEAREEZBRREE (&)

b) fEERR @

Gii) BRASISEFRZBHIEERRTE
)

TREHAEBNRITEES HMBWRRIER
RENEERRFS-

2023 2022
2023F 20224
External Internal Gross Gross
credit credit 12m ECL or lifetime carrying carrying
rating rating ECL amount amount
SMEREESTAR AEEETAR 12ERHZBEREEHE IREALE REAHR
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%®TR
Financial assets at amortised cost
BEERAENEREE
Other receivables and deposits N/A Low risk 12m ECL (not credit-impaired 7,865 11,428
(note (i) and assessed individually)
HttWRRIEREE FEH iyl REABHREESHE
(P 3Z()) (B(EERE R AR )
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired 4,755 851
and assessed individually)
FEH B8 2EREERR (EERE
R A BII3T )
Bank balances and restricted bank  Baa3 to A1 N/A 12m ECL (not credit-impaired 46,907 62,469
deposits and assessed individually)
BITREBERZRHRTER Baa3ZEA1 FEH REABREERE
(B(EERE R AR )
59,527 74,748

Notes:

@

For the purpose of internal credit risk management, the Group
use past due information to assess whether credit risk has
been increased significantly since initial recognition.

PI5E -

0] MABEERREEMNS  AEERAAERERU
SHEE SRR B VRIS EERM-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BMERAGEEREZBEREE &
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)

b) SERR (&)

(iii)  Assessment of ECL based on internal credit (i) BirAE 5 EFARZ B BE R
rating(Continued) #
2023 2022
20235 20226
Not past Not past
due/ no fixed due/ no fixed
repayment repayment
Past due terms Total Past due terms Total
REH/ K,/
bt A st A A wast

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETRT ARETR

RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTE AR®TRT ARETRT

Other receivables and deposits

HEWRIER S

4,755 7,865 12,620

851 11,428 12,279

Movements in loss allowance account in respect of lifetime
ECL recognised for other receivables during the years as

£F P 3k L PR W SR IBRE R > 2 B TR S NS 1R 5T
RHESREES IS T

follows :
Lifetime
(credit-impaired)
2
(EERE)
2023 2022
20235 20224
RME’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETFIT
At 1 January BT 851 851
New financial assets originated IMEEMEE 3,904 T
At 31 December R12831H 4,755 851
) Interest rate risk Q) FERE
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash MEXBEREETM TR AFEHIARRRES M
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of EEATMHHEEHMAERREZ AR SEH
changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest rate AR EEZRBBITEFARRBITREME
risk arises primarily from bank deposits, bank and other MREEEBE:.

loans and lease liabilities.

Bank deposits and bank loans at variable rates and time
deposits, bank and other loans and lease liabilities at fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk respectively. The management
continuously monitors interest rate fluctuations and will
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I e
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consider further hedging interest rate risk should the need
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Bank deposits are carried at low interest rates and the

interest income thereon is not significant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Q) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The effective interest rates of the interest-bearing financial
instruments of the Group are set out below.

(i) Interest rate risk profile
The following table details the interest rate risk profile of

the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments at the
end of the reporting period:

37. HHEAREEZBRREE (&)

o HEXRREE @

FEBFERERTIAZERMERFEFN T

() FIEEEER

TRFLAAEBFEEMIAENBSHRZ

MERREEER

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREEFT
Fixed interest rate EEF=E
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Bank and other loans WITREMER (433,603) (332,734)
Lease liabilities HEaRE (10,798) (18,907)
(444,401) (351,641)
Variable interest rate FENFIE
Financial assets TRBEE
Cash at bank IRITIRE 32,671 62,469
Restricted bank deposits ZIREIIRITER 14,236 =
Financial liabilities TRIEE
Bank and other loans IRITREMER (641,233) (364,000)
(594,326) (301,531)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZE2023F 12831 HEFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Q) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ij)  Sensitivity analysis

Bank and other loans, and lease liabilities of the Group
which are fixed rate instruments, are insensitive to any
change in interest rates. A change in interest rates at the
end of the reporting period would not affect profit or
loss. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the
reporting period. For variable-rate financial instruments,
the analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 (2022: 100) basis
points increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2022. Bank balances and restricted
bank deposits are excluded from sensitivity analysis as the
management considers that the exposure of cash flow
interest rate risk is insignificant.

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 (2022: 100) basis points in
interest rates for variable-rate financial instruments,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group's loss after tax and decrease/increase
retained earnings by approximately RMB4,832,000 (2022:
RMB2,745,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bank loans.

Other components of consolidated equity would not
change in response to the general increase/decrease in
interest rates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E,E2023F12831HIEEE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
d) Currency risk

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables
and cash and bank deposits that are denominated in
a foreign currency, that is, a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States Dollars (“US$"), HK$ and Japanese
Yen. The Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates when necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

The following table details the Group's exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the spot rate
at the end of the reporting period.

37. HHEAREEZBRREE (&

d S¥ER
() EEREERE

AEBTERNEEURTZERBNEBA Y
RBIIETNBE G’ > Bl LGNS 5T E BB IR IE
BARERREERBTERNEERZMA
ZREBRB -SIMZARNEREERET
(T&mx))  BohkBE - AEEZEER B E
R g BN EAE R E A S B NS » IR AB IR
o RBUEERRFEABRPEERNAIER ZK

7 o

TERFNFEERRBEHMARAAAINERR
o ZSEBERDERBEBERNINEES
KLU EBSENERIEENEBME
E-MEHREIMS > BBRBBUAREIIR
WL SR BI BRI E R 55 -

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

SMEERE (UARBEREMD

2023 2022
20235 20224

Japanese Japanese

us$ HK$ Yen Us$ HK$ Yen

E AT H ETT BT H

RMB000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETr ARETRT AREBTRT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Accounts and bills receivables  FEUNFUIB R E W ZE K 3,345 188 - 10,489 564 =

Cash and bank balances RERIRITER 6,519 1 - 12,264 1,656 1,775
Trade and bills payables and SN E Rl ES Y5

other payables H A I8 (17.526) (296) (7,668) (4,974) (280) (3.152)

Net exposure arising from ERIEERBBRELZ
recognised assets and liabilities k2 FEE (7,662) (107) (7,668) 17,779 1,940 (1,377)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

d) Currency risk (Continued) d) B ER @)

iij)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SHREDHT

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in

MZEREEEZBEREER (&

TRIWTEFRMBEEHMAZFRFTIAENEBR
TORRERRETEBZFRATBREEE7T
BT KRBBEZEXSEOEEH ZHRE-

the United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar, and Japanese
yen exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s loss before tax.

2023 2022
20234 20224
(Increase)/

decrease Decrease/
Increase/ in loss Increase/ (increase)
(decrease) before (decrease) in loss before
in rate income tax in rate income tax
FRERIEIR BRETISHR
EXiEE/ FilsiE  EXREs/ A58
(PR{E) (1) D (1) R/ (GEAD)
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
Us$ ETT 5 (383) 5 889
(5) 383 (5) (889)
HK$ BT 5 (5) 5 97
(5) 5 (5) 97)
Japanese Yen H 5 (383) 5 (69)
(5) 383 (5) 69

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group entities’ loss before tax measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated into RMB at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged
rate between the HK$ and US$ would not be materially
affected by any changes in movement in value of the US$
against other currencies. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2022.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

e) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to the
parent company’s board approval.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial liabilities and financial assets
(for example, accounts receivables) and projected cash
flows from operations.

The Group's policy is to maintain sufficient reserve of
cash and cash equivalents and have available funding
through bank and other loans to meet its working capital
requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay, is as
follows:

37. HHEAREEZBRREE (&

e) HBEERAR

rERBETZENEEERABTEERS
EEI ORATEGZENRERERE
RUBNRMARE[TR HAEBEIRTES
THER DRET

FEEERARBRERDESHI IAERES
TRRER - LTEEEHEREERERNE
E(EWmE 2 HEREKEZRE

= EB=
TRE ©

FEBZHREBEFERRERREFEY
#m RBBROMEMERESITREEZ N
BNHEEETRE

RBERR *EBZIFTESTRERER
MARITRERIAE (BEUSGHF X (0B F
M) BRBERRZBETANRGFEZFER
H) 2B RARAER A AN RF BN
T

2023
20235
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
HESE ekt
More than More than

1 year but 2 years but Carrying

Less than less than less than amount at

On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total 31 December

ZIME 25 ®128318

RERE DME {B0R24 BA5E it ZIREE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTRT AREFR ARBTR ARETR
Non-derivative financial JEfTE£RAE

liabilities

Bank and other loans IRITREMER 641,233 74,574 410,393 - 1,126,200 1,074,836
Trade and bills payables &S B ZFIBK

INES: - 116,045 - - 116,045 116,045
Accruals and other FEsHE B R E M

payables FETRIE - 97,798 - - 97,798 97,798

Lease liabilities HEAE - 9,527 1,573 43 11,143 10,798

641,233 297,944 411,966 43 1,351,186 1,299,477
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

e) Liquidity risk (Continued)

37. HHEAREEZBRREE (&)

e) HRBEERR (E

2022
20224
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SIAARITIRBE R
More than More than

1 year 2 years Carrying

On Less than but less than but less than amount at

demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total 31 December

E2NES 24 128315

RERE DRE BR245 B/R5E “est ZEREE

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETFT ARETR ARBTT AREBTT AREBTx ARET:T
Non-derivative financial ~ JFfTEERERE

liabilities

Bank and other loans RITREMER 364,000 69,260 13,048 272,291 718,599 696,734
Trade and bills payables & & 7 HIERK

ELEE - 60,769 - - 60,769 60,769
Accruals and other FEsH & B R E A

payables FE(TRIE - 96,925 - - 96,925 96,925

Lease liabilities HE&RE - 13,381 6,224 133 19,738 18,907

364,000 240,335 19,272 272,424 896,031 873,335
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

e) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis. At 31 December 2023, the aggregate
carrying amount of these bank loans amounted to
RMB641,233,000 (2022: RMB364,000,000). The
management believes that such bank loans will be repaid
after the end of the reporting period in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements, details of which are set out in the table below:

37. HHEAREEZBRREE (&

e) HBETER B

MEEBREREFREIZIRITERE L2
B MPAATRERI ZEBEAN - ®
2023F12B31H ZEFRTERZEEEE
A ANRM641,233,0007 (20224 1 ARHE
364,000,0007c) - BEER A ZERITER
BHREPRERIBZEERBEMBEBEENRH
HBEE  HPEBENWTxR:

Maturity Analysis - Bank and other loans with a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments
AN -EREREN BN ARER

BEERZBITRAMER

More than More than Total
Less than 1 year but less 2 years but less More than  undiscounted Carrying
1year  than2years than5 years 5years cash outflows amount
BE BHE RIGH
DRME B2 BR5E S5 RERHAHE SREE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AT AREBFR AE#EFT AREBFT ARBTR AR#BFT
31 December 2022 2022%12A31H 25,355 67,314 323,949 - 416,618 364,000
31 December 2023 2023F12A831H 92,937 123,097 394,627 136,452 747,113 641,233
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2023
There is no disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2022

On 28 June 2022, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interests in Tianhe Medical Investment Limited and its
wholly-owned subsidiary (collectively the “Tianhe Medical
Group”).

The net assets of Tianhe Medical Group at the date of
disposal were as follows:

38. HEKNRBLRE

#F2023F12831HLLFE
HE2023F 12831 HIEFETEHERB AR

HE2022F12831HLLEE

$12022F6H28H » AAEE H & E i Tianhe Medical
Investment Limited & EE2EHENE AT @8
lTianhe Medicalf£ & 1) BY 2 ZBAZAE o

MW HE HHA > Tianhe Medical EEEEZEW T ©

RMB'000
ARBTT
Consideration received: BigtE :
Cash received [EeisER 11,737
Total consideration received B B4R 1737
Analysis of assets and liabilities over KEEHEEERGRD N
which control was lost
Financial assets at FVOC| BAFTESAEMEERENEHMEE 23,150
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFRE 23,150
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A W=
Consideration received EULE 11,737
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFRE (23,150)
Non-controlling interests IR T 15,374
Reclassification of cumulative exchange fluctuation reserve  H £ Tianhe Medical£E B B £ 51 & R ) &)
upon disposal of EEEN
Tianhe Medical Group to profit or loss DEEBH (1,232)
Gain on disposal HE W m 2,729
The gain on disposal is included in “other gains and losses” H & Wz B 5t A TE i e K B5 48 )
(note 8). (M15E8)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: REHENRERAEE !
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEMEWRE 11,737
Less: Cash and cash equivalent disposed of B BEHEREARESEEY -
11,737
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39. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Up to the date of approval for issue of these consolidated
financial statements, the IASB has issued a number of
amendments which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2023 and which have not been adopted in
these consolidated financial statements, as follows:

Amendments Classification of Liabilities as Current or

to IAS 1 Non-current and Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants'

Amendments Supplier Finance Arrangements'
to IAS 7 and
IFRS 7

Amendments Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’
to IFRS 16

Amendments Lack of Exchangeability?
to IAS 21

Amendments Sale or Contribution of Assets between
to IFRS 10 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
and IAS 28 Venture3

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

The directors anticipate that the application of the
amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

39 #HF2023F12A31HLEFEBEM
BEREMZETERZ2BERE

BEEFEV BRI ESHEER  EE £
ZESEEME TEBII A EHILEBITEANRER
2023F 12831 HIEFEHEREN INARGS B
IR PERA 28T

EREst#AIE15E RERIESARTER

ZAERT R SIERBERRARR
HEIERE AR
BIFRE st ERE75E HESREZH

K BIBR A 53k S 2E R
BTRZMEFT A

BIFRR B ¥k S 2R %6
1658 Z (BT 2

PR & 5T 2R 5521558
ZAEFT R

BRI BR 75 ¥k S 22 R REZEHHBE TN
FIEMEREE SECEZHANEES
AISE285 2 EFT 2 BEIEE

ERMELFHEAEER'

TAZ B S H 1 42

i K204 1 B1HS 2 BB 2 FEBRBEN
2 20256181 o2 Bt~ EE R EN

: RRFEEZ HRRZ BRGBNFERBEN

EEBH R IBRRIRAE R BRE £
BHERE A NG AN BERR L REAN S
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39.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current (“2020 Amendments”)
and Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (“2022
Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

(ii)

specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the 2020 Amendments clarify that;

the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the
liability within 12 months; and

if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are met
at the end of the reporting period, even if the lender
does not test compliance until a later date; and

clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity recognises the
option separately as an equity instrument applying
IAS 32 Financial Instruments.: Presentation ("I1AS
32").
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39. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current (“2020 Amendments”)
and Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (“2022
Amendments”) (Continued)

The 2022 Amendments modify the requirements
introduced by the 2020 Amendments on how an entity
classifies debt and other financial liabilities with covenants
as current or non-current. The 2022 Amendments specify
that only covenants with which the entity is required to
comply with on or before the end of the reporting period
affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Covenants which are required to comply with only after the
reporting period do not affect whether that right exists at
the end of the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of
financial statements to understand the risk that the
liabilities could become repayable within twelve months
after the reporting period, if the entity classify liabilities
arising from loan arrangements as non-current when the
entity’s right to defer settlement of those liabilities is subject
to the entity complying with covenants within twelve
months after the reporting period.

Based on the Group's outstanding liabilities as at
31 December 2023 and the related terms and conditions
stipulated in the agreements between the Group and the
relevant lenders, the application of the amendments will
not result in a reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.

39 #HZF2023F12831HLLFECHE
ﬁ‘(ﬂE;r']EEE%ZZ{P}JZISZ*"* TR
/ILE

HER gt ERFIRZETABEaEIELER
aEHIEREE) (T12020FE:T4)) RTEFZ
HHIEREI A E) (T12022F8574)) (&)

2022 F BT AME ST 2020 B 5T A 5| ARIREI B A8
AR ERREMEREE I ESRABAREZR
BNIERBMIRTE  2022F BT ARE RBE
X%EﬁﬁAiﬁiﬁ}%XEJZZH*RELTE’J;E‘”Z“T;%;
BEMBrEL T _EARNEREEEEERENE
FloEBERNKERBETHZEL I ERS
HiIRZ MBS FE

2022FEST AR A BRI INEE 2K > £l
BREAERAETREZBERRERZHELENE
BRORBIFRIER ’ﬁ'ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%/ﬁﬁl—?%%
WREFBEFERERESHR T —EERE
ZENBERT E'J%Tfﬁ%i,\ﬁ“ﬁiﬂﬁfé—i— 1I
AAREENER-

1R A @R 2023512831 BOR BB A EUE
o4 S5 [B SRR R B 0 A 8T 14358 FF 1) R R R
o ERESET &K T e SN A EHa FER
548
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39. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance
Arrangements

The amendments add a disclosure objective to IAS 7
stating that an entity is required to disclose information
about its supplier finance arrangements that enables
users of financial statements to assess the effects of those
arrangements on the entity’s liabilities and cash flows.
In addition, IFRS 7 was amended to add supplier finance
arrangements as an example within the requirements
to disclose information about an entity’s exposure to
concentration of liquidity risk.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

The amendments add subsequent measurement
requirements for sale and leaseback transactions that
satisfy the requirements of IFRS 15 to be accounted for as
a sale. The amendments require a seller-lessee to determine
“lease payments” or “revised lease payments” such that
the seller-lessee would not recognise a gain or loss that
relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee. The
amendments also clarify that applying the requirements
does not prevent the seller-lessee from recognising in profit
or loss any gain or loss relating to subsequent partial or full
termination of a lease.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with early
application permitted and must applied retrospectively to
sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date
of initial application of IFRS 16.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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39. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability

The amendments specify a currency is exchangeable when
an entity is able to exchange that currency for the other
currency through markets or exchange mechanisms that
create enforceable rights and obligations without undue
delay at the measurement date and for a specified purpose.
When a currency is not exchangeable at the measurement
date, an entity estimates the spot exchange rate as the rate
that would have applied to an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date and that
would faithfully reflect the economic conditions prevailing.

When a currency is not exchangeable, an entity
discloses information that would enable users of its
financial statements to evaluate how a currency’s lack of
exchangeability affects, or is expected to affect, its financial
performance, financial position and cash flows.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025, with early
application permitted. An entity is not permitted to apply
the amendments retrospectively. Instead, an entity is
required to apply the specific transition provisions included
in the amendments.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

390 #F2023F12B31HLLFEEBHE
ﬁ‘(ﬁ{E;r'ﬁESt._x&Z{P}Jztz;% TR
/ILE
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39. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to /FRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a
subsidiary that does not contain a business in a transaction
with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method, are recognised in the parent’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,
gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of
investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has
become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method) to fair value are recognised in
the former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint
venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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